"EFFECTIVENESS OF LIFE STYLE MODIFICATION STRATEGIES IN LOWERING BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG NEWLY DIAGNOSED HYPERTENSIVE PATIENTS"

A Thesis

Submitted to The Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R Medical University, Chennai, for the award of degree of DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY IN NURSING



By

K.THAMARAISELVI

Professor

C.S.I. JeyarajAnnapackiam College of Nursing



Under the Guidance of Prof.Dr.R. RAJKUMAR, MD., Ph.D., Research Guide C.S.I JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING MADURAI

APRIL 2017

"EFFECTIVENESS OF LIFE STYLE MODIFICATION STRATEGIES IN LOWERING BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG NEWLY DIAGNOSED HYPERTENSIVE PATIENTS"

Signature of the Guide: _____

PROF.DR.R. RAJKUMAR, MD., Ph.D., RESEARCH GUIDE C.S.I JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING MADURAI

A Thesis

Submitted to The Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R Medical University,

Chennai for the award of the Degree of

Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing

"EFFECTIVENESS OF LIFE STYLE MODIFICATION STRATEGIES IN LOWERING BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG NEWLY DIAGNOSED HYPERTENSIVE PATIENTS"

Signature of the Guide: _____

PROF.DR.R. RAJKUMAR, MD., Ph.D., RESEARCH GUIDE C.S.I JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING MADURAI

Signature of the Co-Guide: _____

PROF.DR. SHANTHI APPAVU., M. Sc (N), Ph.D., RESEARCH CO-GUIDE C.S.I JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING MADURAI

A Thesis

Submitted to The Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R Medical University,

Chennai for the award of the Degree of

Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing

CERTIFICATE BY GUIDE

This is to certify that the thesis entitled "Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients", submitted by K.THAMARAISELVI, who registered for Ph.D in 2010 is a bonafide record of the research done by her during the period of study under my supervision and guidance and that it is not formed on any basis for the award of any other Degree, or Diploma, Associate ship, Fellowship or any other similar title or any other Universities.

I also certify that this thesis is her original independent work. I recommend this thesis should be placed before the examiners for the award of Ph.D degree.

PROF.DR.R. RAJKUMAR, MD., Ph.D., RESEARCH GUIDE C.S.I JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING MADURAI

CERTIFICATE BY CO-GUIDE

This is to certify that the work embodied in the thesis entitled "Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients", submitted by K.THAMARAISELVI, for the award of the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing is a bonafide record of research done by her during the period of study under my supervision and guidance that it has not formed the basis for the award of any Degree, Diploma. Associate ship, Fellowship or any other similar title in this university or any other university or institution of higher learning.

I also certify that this thesis is her original independent work. I recommend this thesis should be placed before the examiners for the award of Ph.D degree.

PROF.DR. SHANTHI APPAVU., M.Sc (N), Ph.D., RESEARCH CO-GUIDE C.S.I JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING MADURAI

DECLARATION BY THE CANDIDATE

I hereby declare that this thesis entitled "Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients" is an original work done by me under the guidance of PROF.Dr. R. RAJKUMAR, MD., Ph.D., and has not been submitted elsewhere, either partially or fully for the award of any other Degree, or Diploma. Associate ship, Fellowship or any other similar title.

K.THAMARAISELVI, M.SC (N), PRINCIPAL E.S.COLLEGE OF NURSING, VILLUPURAM

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

"Gratitude Unlocks the Fullness of Life"

The writing of a dissertation can be a lonely and isolating experience, yet it is obviously not possible without the personal and practical support of numerous people. Thus my sincere gratitude goes to all those who have contributed to complete this study.

I am forever grateful to "God Almighty" for all his bliss showered on me without which it would not have been possible to accomplish this endeavor successfully.

I am extremely thankful to Mr.Swamikannu, Chairman, Dr, Saravanan, Managing Director, and Mr.Senthil Kumar, Secretary, of E.S College of Nursing, Villupuram, for their positive approach, which led to the successful completion of this study.

I express my heartfelt gratitude to **Prof. Dr.C.Jothi Sophia, Ph.D(N)., Principal, C.S.I. JayarajAnnapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai,** who has contributed immensely to my personal and professional development.

I have had the good fortune to conduct this study under the supervision of my respected guide **Dr.R.Rajkumar**, **M.D.**, **Ph.D.**, **Professor**, **C.S.I. Jayaraj Annapackiam College of Nursing**, **Madurai** for his great concern, excellent guidance, constant support and encouragement without whom, I would not have not been able to accomplish this study.

I truly recognize the help extended by my co- guide Dr. SanthiAppavu, Professor, C.S.I. JayarajAnnapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai for her direction and suggestions throughout. My deep appreciation and heartfelt gratitude to Prof. Dr.Rajalakshmi, Research Guide, C.S.I. JayarajAnnapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai, my well wisher ,for her valuable suggestions and constant support in helping me to accomplish this task. I will remain forever in debt for her extraordinary guidance.

I would like to acknowledge and thank **Dr. Angela Gnanadurai,Research Guide,** for having offered valuable guidance to complete this study and for her keen interest, scholarly guidance, valuable and timely help. She was kind enough to acquaint me with the errors that she found during the process of study, and who also made constructive suggestions for improving them.

I owe tremendous debts of gratitude to Dr.Gabrieljeyachandren, M.Sc., M.Ed., M.Phil., Ph.D., Research Guide, for his superb guidance and positive criticism.

I wish to express my sincere and humble thanks to all ethical commitee members, **C.S.I. JayarajAnnapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai,** for having granted permission to proceed my research work.

I sincerely and whole heartily appreciate **Dr.AshokBhoorasamy**, **Statistician**, for his valuable suggestions and expert guidance for statistical analysis and interpretation of study findings.

I am grateful to the Chairman and Councilor of Vikkiravandi and Villupuram respectively for rendering their support in granting permission to conduct this study. It is my duty to oblige the study participants for practicing the intervention as my study demanded without whom this thesis would have been an empty vessel. My enormous debt of gratitude can be hardly repaid to **all the experts** who have validated, proof-read multiple versions of all the chapters of this dissertation, but also provided valuable suggestions to improve the presentation style of this dissertation.

I have had the excellent affluence to get support and encouragement from nursing faculty of C.S.I. JayarajAnnapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai, who were kind enough to acquaint me with the errors that they found during the process of study, and who also made constructive suggestions for improving them.

I am grateful to **Dr.Patricia True Man**, **HOD of Diet and Education**, MV hospitals, for diabetes Chennai for her guidance in constructing tool and teaching module in DASH diet. I also deeply appreciate the participants of this study for their kind cooperation, coordination and support during data collection. I am indebted to my volunteers for their fine efforts, hard work and kind assistance during the study.

I also acknowledge the help rendered to me by Dr. K.Vijayalakshmi. HOD, Mental Health Nursing, Apollo College of Nursing my friend and well-wisher for my thesis work..

I thank from bottom of my heart **Prof.Mrs. Porselvi**, **Vice Principal**, **Prof. Mrs.Annie Mary M.Sc (N)**, **Mr.Krishnamoorthy. M.Sc (N) and all teaching** and **non-teaching** faculty of E.S.College of Nursing for their immense support, encouragement in preparing dissertation report.

I am indeed grateful to **Mr. J.L.Narasimhan** for his commitment and timely support to edit this study report without which reading and interpretation of findings of this study would be demanding. I extend my heartfelt thanks to my beloved husband Mr.S.Shanmugasundaram, children Selvi.Miruthula and Master.Sri Harzan and Ms.I.Saravanakumarai for all the support and cooperation they rendered to finish my study.

I express my heartfelt and affectionate thanks to my beloved parent's in-laws and friends. It is impossible to have my research career without their love, support and prayer.

I wish to express my gratitude to all who directly or indirectly contributed to this study for their valuable suggestions, guidance, cooperation and assistance. This dissertation is dedicated to all who had supported me directly and indirectly to finish this endeavor successfully.

I also extend my thanks to staff of laser point, Madurai for their assistance in computer work.

With a thankful heart, Mrs.K.ThamaraiSelvi.

ABSTRACT

The purpose of this study was to assess the effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering Blood Pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients at sample areas of Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu, India.

Objectives:

- To assess the pre and post test Blood Pressure (BP) of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in control and experimental groups.
- To evaluate the effectiveness of Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) in lowering BP by comparing the pre and post test BP within and between the control and experimental groups among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.
- To find out the association between the blood pressure level and selected socio demographic and clinical variables among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

Methods

The research design used for the study was quasi experimental pretest/ posttest control group design. Conceptual framework of this current research was based upon the Wiedenbach's prescriptive theory (1964). The study was conducted among 275 newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in the age group of 31 to 60 years of both genders, residing in two community areas, namely, Vazuthareddy and Vikkaravandi of Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu. These areas were selected conveniently and randomly assigned for the control group and the experimental group using lottery method respectively. The patients were selected through purposive sampling technique.

The instruments used for the study consisted of proforma to assess socio demographic and clinical data, assessment of BP, teaching module on Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) and Observational checklist to assess the practice on Life Style Modification Strategies.

Descriptive (frequency, percentage, mean, standard deviation and range) and inferential statistics (Chi square, paired and independent t-test, RMANOVA, were used for summarizing the data and to test the study hypotheses.

Major Findings of the Study

- A majority of the patient's participants were, in the age group of 31-40 years (38%) in experimental group and 51-60 years (39%) in the control group with the mean age of 50 years. Predominant among were women (72%,64%), had higher secondary education (36,34%), married (96,98%), were homemakers44% and laborers 47%, had income up to Rs.10000/month(51%, 58%), non vegetarian(92%,99%), Hindus (93,97%), living in nuclear families(81%,77%), no history of smoking in the past (93%,92%) and present (96%,94%), had no history of alcoholism in the past (92%,94%) and present (91%,92%), had no family history of paternal and maternal hypertension (92%,94%), had been diagnosed through master health check(60%,40%), got prescribed lifestyle modification strategies (68%,57%) and compliant to drugs(32%, 43%) respectively in the experimental and the control groups.
- There is a significant difference between the pretest and the posttest IImean systolic BP in the experimental groupwith the mean difference of 23.19 mmHg and 't'-value being19.68 which is statistically significant at 0.001 level.

- Similarly the mean difference between the pretest and the posttest II mean diastolic BP in the experimental group was10mmHg and the t-value was9.45 which is significant at 0.001 level of significance.
- The F value of RMANOVA was 47.05 and 25.11 respectively for systolic and diastolic BP which reveals the effectiveness of LSMS in lowering BP across the periods.

Key Words: Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS), newly diagnosed hypertensive patients, Blood pressure.

Conclusion:

LSMS is an effective and easy method to practice and it can be incorporated in day today life not only to lower BP but also to improve general health.

	CONTENTS	PAGE
CHAPTER	CONTENTS	NO
CHAPTER I	INTRODUCTION	1-19
1.1	Background of the study	1
1.2	Need for the study	7
1.3	Statement of the problem	15
1.4	Objectives	15
1.5	Hypotheses	15
1.6	Operational definitions	16
1.7	Assumptions	18
1.8	Delimitations of the study	19
1.9	Projected outcome	19
CHAPTER II	CHAPTER II REVIEW OF LITERATURE	
2.1.1	Literature on hypertension - An overview	20
2.1.2	Literature and Studies related to Brisk walking in	22
	hypertension	
212	Literature and studies related to Yoga in	25
2.1.3	hypertension	PAGE NO 1-19 1 7 15 15 15 15 16 18 19 19 20-58 20 22 25 25 30 30 36
214	Literature and Studies related to DASH diet in	30
2.1.4	hypertension	
2.1.5	Literature and Studies related to Comprehensive	36
	intervention package and hypertension	
2.1.6	Literature on BMI, WHR and Blood pressure	43

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER		CONTENTS	PAGE
			NO
	217	Literatures on Knowledge and practice on	48
	2.1.7	hypertension	
	2.2	Conceptual frame work	51
	CHAPTER III	METHODOLOGY	59-85
	3.1	Research approach	59
	3.2	Research design	59
	3.3	Variables	63
	3.4	Settings	63
	3.5	Population	64
	3.6	Sample	64
	3.7	Sample size and sample size calculation	65
	3.8	Sampling technique	67
	3.9	Criteria for sample selection	67
	3.10	Development of tool	69
	3.11	Description of the instruments	70
	3.12	Interpretation and scoring of tools	71
	3.13	Reliability of the tool/ instrument	76
	3.14	Validity of the tool/instrument	76
	3.15	The pilot study	77
	3.16	Data collection procedure	79
	3.17	Plan for data analysis	84
	3.18	Ethical consideration	84

	CONTENTS	PAGE
CHAFTER	CONTENTS	NO
CHAPTERIV	RESULTS AND ANALYSIS	86-144
CHAPTERV	DISCUSSION	145-164
CHAPTERVI	SUMMARY, CONCLUSIONS,	164-180
	IMPLICATIONS AND	
	RECOMMENDATIONS	
6.1	Summary	165
6.2	Implications	171
6.3	Recommendations	178
6.4	Limitation of the study	179
6.5	Conclusion	180
	REFERENCES	181-201
	APPENDICES	i-lxvii

SL.NO	TITLE	Page no.
3.1	DASH diet	74
3.2	Level of Practice	76
3.3	Activity chart	79
3.4	Data collection schedule	83
3.5	Plan for data analysis	84
4.1.1	Distribution of samples based on their BP in their pre test.	103
4.1.2	Distribution of samples based on their systolic and diastolic BP in pre test, post test I & II.	104
4.1.3	Distribution of samples based on their BP in pre test, post test I & II.	106
4.2.1	Mean and standard deviation of pre and posttest systolic BP among the experimental and the control groups	108
4.2.2	Mean and standard deviation of pre and post test diastolic BP among experimental and control groups	110
4.2.3	Comparison of mean difference of post test II systolic and diastolic BP between the experimental and control groups.	112
4.2.4	Difference between the mean BP in the pretest and posttest II among the experimental and control group of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.	113
4.2.5	Comparison of pre test and post test II systolic and diastolic BP among the experimental group.	114
4.2.6	Comparison of post test II systolic and diastolic BP between the control and experimental groups.	116
4.2.7	Independent 't' test for mean systolic BP in posttest I Vs II based on level of overall compliance to LSMS among experimental group.	118
4.2.8	Independent 't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of compliance to LSMS among experimental group.	119

LIST OF TABLES

SL.NO	TITLE	Page no.
4.2.9	Independent 't' test for mean SBP in post test I Vs II on level	120
	of compliance to brisk walking among experimental group.	
4.2.10	Independent 't' test for mean posttest DBP in post test I Vs II	121
	on level of compliance of brisk walking among experimental	
	group.	
4.2.11	Independent 't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I Vs II on	122
	level of compliance to yoga among experimental group.	
4.2.12	Independent 't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I Vs II	123
	on level of compliance to yoga among experimental group.	
4.2.13	Independent 't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I Vs II on	124
	level of compliance to DASH diet among experimental group.	
4.2.14	Independent 't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I Vs II	125
	on level of compliance to DASH diet among experimental	
	group.	
4.3.1	Association between the pre test level of systolic BP in the	127
	experimental group and the selected socio demographic	
	variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients	
4.3.2	Association between the pre test level of systolic BP in the	131
	control group and the selected socio demographic variables	
	of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.	
4.3.3	Association between the pretest II level of diastolic BP in the	135
	experimental group and the selected socio demographic	
	variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.	
4.3.4	Association between the pretest level of diastolic BP in the	139
	control group and the selected socio demographic variables of	
	newly diagnosed hypertensive patients	
4.3.5	Association between the post test II level of BP in the	143
	experimental group and the BMI of newly diagnosed	
	hypertensive patients.	
4.3.6	Association between the posttest II level of BP in the	144
	experimental group and WHR of the newly diagnosed	
	hypertensive patient.	

LIST	OF	FIG	URES
------	----	-----	------

Sl. No.	TITLE	Page no.
2.1	Modified conceptual frame work based on Widenbach's helping art of clinical nursing theory (1964)	58
3.1	Schematic representation of research methodology	61
4.1.1	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group based on age	90
4.1.2	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group based on gender	91
4.1.3	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group based on education	92
4.1.4	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group according to marital status	93
4.1.5	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group according to occupation	94
4.1.6	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group according to income	95
4.1.7	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group according to dietary pattern	96
4.1.8	Percentage distribution of the experimental and the control group based on religion	97
4.1.9	Percentage distributions of the experimental group and the control group based on type of family.	98
4.1.10	Percentage distribution of history of smoking, alcoholism and family history of hypertension among the experimental group.	99
4.1.11	Percentage distribution of history of smoking, alcoholism and family history of hypertension among the control group.	100
4.1.12	Comparison of mode of diagnosis for the experimental group and the control group	101

Sl.No	TITLE	Page No.
4.1.13	Comparison of treatment prescribed the experimental group and	102
	the control group	
4.1.14	Distribution of patients based on their post test I & II level of	107
	BP in the experimental group and the control group	
4.1.15	Comparison of systolic BP in three periods	109
4.1.16	Comparison of diastolic BP in pre, post 1 & post 2 among the	111
	experimental and the control groups.	
4.1.17	Difference in pre and post test II systolic and diastolic BP in the	115
	experimental group	
4.1.18	Difference in post test II systolic BP of the experimental and	117
	the control group	

APPENDIX	TITLE	PAGE.NO
А	Letter requesting permission for conducting main study	i
В	Permission letter for conducting main study from Vikkiravandi,	ii
С	Permission letter for conducting main study from Vazhudareddy	iii
D	Institutional ethical clearance certificate	iv
E	Certificates	v
F	Letter seeking expert opinion for the content validity of tool	viii
G	Criteria checklist for validation of the tool	ix
Н	Criteria Check List For Teaching Module	х
Ι	Certificate of the tool validation	xi
J	List of experts who validated the tool	xii
K	Informed consent form – English	xiv
L	Informed consent form – Tamil	XV
М	Tools used for data collection –	
	Check list for screening the hypertensive patients	XV1
Ν	Values of bio physiological parameters	lviii
0	Work Schedule	lx
Р	Photo Documentation	lxiv
	Certificate II	
	Anti plagiarism report	
	Publications and conference attended	
	Photo documentation	

LIST OF APPENDICES

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

1.	<	:	Less than
2.	>	:	More than
3.	χ^2	:	Chi-square
4.	%	:	percentage
5.	d f	:	degree of freedom
6.	SBP	:	Systolic Blood Pressure
7.	DBP	:	Diastolic Blood Pressure
8.	SBP-I	:	Pretest
9.	SBP-II	:	Post Test I
10.	SBP-III	:	Post Test II
11.	DBP-I	:	Pretest
12.	DBP-II	:	Post Test I
13.	DBP-III	:	Post Test II
14.	LSMS	:	Life Style Modification Strategies
15.	WHO	:	World Health Organization
16.	ICMR	:	Indian Council of Medical Research
17.	NCD	:	Non communicable Disease
18.	DPH	:	Directorate Of Public Health
19.	JNC 7	:	The Seventh Report of the Joint National Committee on
			Prevention, Detection, Evaluation, and Treatment of
			High Blood Pressure

CHAPTER-I

INTRODUCTION

1.1 BACKGROUND OF THE STUDY

"Your life style -how to live, eat, emote, and think-determines your health. To prevent disease, you may have to change how you live."

Brain Carter

The incidence of hypertension has been remaining unabated, in developing countries. The primary reasons behind this are transformation in politics, economics and society. The resultant changes in life style, and desultory habits, lack of physical activity, smoking and mounting stress at work etc., have been causing hypertension.

WHO in 2013¹ reported the prevalence of hypertension was 40% in persons above 25 and causing 7.5 million deaths contributing one eighth of deaths in the year 2008. It is not surprising that 3.7% of the total Disability Adjusted Years (DHY) is seen due to hypertension. The report also indicates that hypertension gives raise to cardiac problems, renal diseases and Paralysis. But, the silver lining is that bringing down blood pressure to 140/90 mmHg can bring down complications.

Polit and Back² indicate that health promotion together with prevention of preventable diseases means expense of a smaller magnitude compared to that for treatment of diseases. Being a choric disease the authorities cannot have control over this disease. Hence, every human being in the society along with the concern organizations should take their due responsibility to practice right way of life. WHO 2009^3 indicates disorders leading to mortality in the case of noncommunicable diseases are namely as : raised blood glucose 6%, rise in B.P. 13%, physical inactivity and obesity 5% and use of tobacco and related products 9%.

Several studies lay stress on adherence to regular habits as important. in day to day life is very important. Chintamani⁴ and Brunner⁵ indicate lifestyle modification leading to changes in blood pressure. About 10 kg weight reductions can bring in five to twenty mm Hg of BP. DASH (Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension) food decreases 8-14 mm Hg. Restricted usage of sodium lowers BP of 2--8 mmHg. Physical activity can help reduction in BP to 2-8 mm Hg. Physical activity and DASH diet are the basic prescription for lowering BP.

AYUSH⁶ (Ayurveda, Unani, Siddha and Homeopathy) refers to the universal realization of Yoga as capable of getting BP under control. United Nation General Assembly (UNGA) has endorsed 21st June as "International Day of Yoga" with approval from member countries.

WHO report 2005⁷ indicates, chronic systemic diseases such as cardiac problems, oncologic disorder, diabetes and protracted respiratory problem as the significant reasons for approximately 50% of total diseases during 2005 with projection at 60% by 2015.

Diana Rodriguez⁸ estimates that, by 2030, cardiovascular disorders would be responsible for 85% of deaths in under developed countries.

Maher⁹ advocates greater emphasize on the continuance of regular habits to avoid hypertension. WHO 's 2010 report predicted 1.5 billion cases of fatality due to hypertension by 2025 compared to 972 million in 2000 and among 65% in developing countries. Figures of mortality arising from hypertension and related disorders have proved this effect. Arthur et al¹⁰ insist that increased arterial pressure is a disorder of the modern era extensive seen and that suboptimal blood pressure i.e. systolic blood pressure above 115 mmHg is responsible for approximately, 49% of IHD and 62% of cerebral vascular disease as universal irrespective of age, sex and ethnicity. Thirteen percent of all deaths of, 7.1 million deaths were shown as due to hypertension.

Ezzatiet.al ¹¹states that hypertension is considered as chronic problem lasting throughout life. Obesity, physical inactivity and poor diet are considered as factors responsible for this disorder which can be corrected easily.

An incisive study made by $Owusu^{12}$ at a teaching hospital at Kumasi , Ghana (Africa) points out to knowledge of hypertension with sedentary life as corollary for hypertension, with indication of 13% of cardiac arrest problems caused by hypertension.

Cheung et al ¹³ say about 65 million Americans have hypertension and go through related problems . Saha et.al¹⁴ report hypertension as one of the ten leading causes of death, 4% of mortality in Bangladesh arose from hypertensive complications.

AbriadoLanza¹⁵ avers hypertension affecting 50 million persons in America. Franco OH ⁷ says that longevity is getting reduced by about 5 years in cases of untreated hypertension.

Smeltzer et al in their book on Medical Surgical Nursing ¹⁶ disclose the prevalence of high blood pressure in U.S adults was 31% with increasing rate with advancing age and consistent heart and phlebitis disorders with deviation in terms of ethnicity, peaking of high blood pressure among African and Americans (37%). More than 90% among the proposed hypertensive patients were seen with hypertension of unknown etiology while the rest was caused by secondary hypertension.

Urden and Stacy¹⁷ authors of a book, indicate that one third of Americans having hypertension. Among those with awareness of hypertension, 34% had medication with BP under control. 25% were on medication but blood pressure was not maintained within optimum level. One fourth of them had medication but their BP was abnormal; 11% in the age group of 45 to 54 were hypertensive but are not under any medication.

Harrison TR¹⁸ predicted hypertension as 33.5%, 28.9% and 20.7% among non Spanish-speaking blacks, whites and Persons of mixed Spanish Indian descent, Americans respectively. Hypertension emerges as the persons grow beyond 60 years with the prevalence of 65.4%. About 60 million Americans are known to have hypertension. This would grow with advancement in age.

Hence, periodical monitoring of patients for blood pressure is necessary, once the presence of hypertension is seen. This helps keeping hypertension under control and initiating necessary action, say Black and Hawks , Smeltzer and Bare¹⁹

Professionals²⁰ have teamed up for an investigation on the effect of yoga together with regular care among ninety pre hypertensive patients. Yoga cum DASH group indicated a 6 mmHg reduction of SBP, 13 pre hypertensive patients turned to possess normal BP, indicated superiority over practicing DASH alone.

Hypertension is seen as the most common cardiovascular problem and as a predominant chronic disorder which should be scrupulously kept at bay. Promotion of self-management abilities among the patients with hypertension is a significant challenge to healthcare providers. Patients should be taught self management when seen with hypertension.

Neupane D et al²¹ have made investigation of the prevalence of arterial hypertension, pre hypertension in SAARC countries. Variance from 27% was seen as

hypertension and 29.6% as pre hypertension with difference among studies made by others from 13.6% to 47.9% with larger incidence in urban areas. A recent report points out to the distribution of silent killer as 17.9, 23.9 31.4, 31.5, 33.8, 25, 20.9 percentage in Bangladesh, Bhutan, India, Maldives, Nepal, Pakistan and Sri Lanka respectively. A startling fact is that the incidence is high among women. Abdominal obesity and interval obesity conditions have association with hypertension. Some member countries of SAARC were noted for the prevalence of more than the average BP with wide variations.

"Hypertension was one of the ten leading reported causes of death and approximately 4% deaths were due to hypertensive complications in Bangladesh" says Khandaker²² who points out that around 15 million adults in Bangladesh have been affected with hypertension.

Vaidya A²³ has to his credit, a project on BP in Eastern Nepalese town of Dharan in 2005. He reports 23% prevalence of hypertension on the basis of guidelines. laid down by Jet Navigation Chart VII. The silent killer was seen in 33.9% of the partakers in a study conducted in Eastern Nepal. A national representative survey made in 2007/8, showed gender differences with hypertension among 36.0% of men and 26.2% of women of 15 to 64 years.

With focus on issues of deep concern and the prevalence of hypertension, the objective of 2013 World Health Day²⁴ was to minimize the incidence of cardiac problems and stroke. In commemoration of that day, India set a goal to improve knowledge among decision makers, project leaders and concerned authorities for stabilizing the health care pattern of India to face the challenges from hypertension with the status as second most populous nation, and with 17% of the global in population, India gets a major impact to any estimation of diseases statistics.

Midha T et al²⁵ have accomplished a study from rural areas of Lucknow. The sample size was 800 persons. Their age was more than 20 years. The figure numbered both from urban and rural each 400. The study showed the distribution of high Blood Pressure as 0.26 with mean age as 35 years (SD14). Masculine gender predominance (34%) and prevalence getting higher with advancing age with the rate of 5.6 times for age above 35 was observed. More than half of the persons observed had no knowledge of developments of hypertension in them. All hypertensive patients were seen having BP above 140/90 mmHg.

National Cardiovascular Disease Database 2012²⁶ discloses hypertension in India as posing great danger progressing to greater problems during 1990. Among the 9.4 million total fatalities, hypertension contributed 2.3, CVD give rise to 1.2, and coronary heart illness and stroke caused 0.5 million deaths.

A study was performed by Mohan et al²⁷ in the southern part of India. It is surprising to note that hypertension prevails among one fifth of men and 17% of women. The sample size was 26,000 adults. 67% among them were ignorant of the hypertension status. Cases of undetected as well as having inadequate control were reported. This makes it mandatory to tide over hypertensive situation by adopting appropriate techniques to curb its menace.

A survey made in 2007 relating to risk factors associated with non communicable diseases²⁸ indicated the distribution of hypertension in Tamil Nadu as 18%, growing with advancement in age, irrespective of gender. Among the affected persons, 23% were illiterates , while the figure was 18% among school going persons. 24% was the figure for men, 15% for women.

1.2. NEED FOR THE STUDY

Health problem forms an integral part of study for any health care team. It is therefore imperative for nurses to have knowledge of effective intervention for rendering patient care. Proper diagnosis enhances the quality of care and provides uniqueness to the role of nurses at every stage in health care. There is need today for creating awareness of the problem more than what is seen in the available care modules, On the one hand there is growth in life expectancy but there is also the growing risk from hypertension.

A government report of India on (COPD) Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease indicates that CVD tops the list of five causes of death in India ²⁹ in rural and urban population.

Iyer U³⁰ in his study of the industrial population of the industrial town of Vadodara reportes prevalence of 24% in Vadodara and a further 35% in Godhra, which certainly indicate a continuous increase in hypertension figures in India.

Imparting awareness of hypertension among persons and developing a positive attitude may help nurses, in applying related intervention to promote developing a healthy lifestyle.

Gupta and Guptha³¹ point out that non pharmacological therapy using altering patterns of day to day activities as the requirement to bring down the incidence of hypertension. Changes in dietary and physical activity patterns grow along with major demographic changes and changes in health status, as seen from growing incidence of non communicable diseases.

ProCor³² points out to the common man's inability to meet the cost involved in the management of hypertension in developing countries like Ghana. It costs about 7.5 to 12 % of the monthly earning. There is, therefore, need to find viable alternatives. This point forms the core of this research study.

The treatment taken up, once hypertension is diagnosed is an amalgam of two factors; medication known for hypertensive and, more than even that, suitable changes in lifestyle, which goes a long way for management of hypertension.

The individual's attitude alone can help modification of his lifestyle. This calls for adequate, appropriate knowledge. This subject has been dealt by Doris, Samuel and Stephen³³ who observed 591 hypertensive patients who had non pharmacological treatment. The tested samples indicated the factors that could bring down hypertension namely physical activity (49%), reduced salt intake (54%) and relaxation techniques (17%).

Ike et.al³⁴ conducted a study for evaluation of awareness, understanding and application of activities going by instructions on a daily basis at a University Teaching Hospital in Enugu, Nigeria. A sample of 260 patients attending a clinic taken up for study was selected and response to a prepared questionnaire was obtained. 50% participants indicated stress as the cause for hypertension .They had been following life style strategies after understanding its significance. Despite their readiness to adopt promotional techniques, the suggestions regarding this were not being enforced on them through mass media.

A study conducted by Edgar, Thomas, Donna et al³⁵ revealed a reduction in mean systolic blood pressure as 9.5 mmHg in the lifestyle group. The mean diastolic BP was 5.3mmHg. The conclusion was that, among obese adults, who had already hypertensive medications, a comprehensive lifestyle intervention brought down BP and got it under control. Mohammad Irfan MH et.al³⁶ conducted a study to comprehend the effect of practice on risk factors of known lifestyle on hypertension among bank employees in Surat, India. The samples consisted of participants numbering 1493 working in a bank. Clinical observations revealed 122 (28.7%) of them were leading sedentary life and had increased presence of hypertension. This brings up the importance of the use of right therapy.

An explorative study was conducted by Sweden Drivenhorn³⁷ on the outcome, of behavior change among clients with hypertension living in Goteborg, An awareness program on high blood pressure was provided for 175 participants. The end result showed a substantial decline in systolic BP with behavior change is significant at the level of P<0.01.

Jane et al³⁸ conducted a study to assess the reflection of lifestyle modification on hypertensive patients in America. 36 patients attended a 12 week project. Talks regarding therapies and walking were included in the intervention. Exposure to the techniques saw changes in BP after the intervention.

Svetkey et al³⁹ and Hedayati ⁴⁰ have done evaluation of a group of interventions in normalizing BP. Clients figuring 810 patients were divided into 3 batches, namely, instruction only group, conventional group and conventional plus DASH Diet. Systolic Blood pressure was observed for 6 months. It was 3.7mmHg and 4.3 mmHg for established and established plus group respectively. This reduction was significant compared to the control group.

A similar study was conducted by Srinath Reddy K^{41,} Omni Heart ⁴² and Maher J⁴³ in New Delhi on hypertension friendly diet close to DASH diet. It brought about a noticeable improvement in health status more particularly towards stabilizing blood pressure Health care providers have touch with community on an, on-going basis creating awareness of the causal factors as also preventive and rehabilitative measures for hypertension. Adequate knowledge is necessary for persons to enable getting motivated on their own and take up modification of life style as defensive action⁴⁴.

Creating awareness regarding hypertension is important measure for bringing down the prevalence of hypertension. A study made by Maliuye, Hazarika and et al⁴⁵ reports only 13.6% of hypertensive patients had knowledge of high blood pressure in them. Only 8.7% were taking regular treatment. Increased level of knowledge regarding changes in lifestyle would be of great help in getting desired goal of intervention in motivated persons.

A cross sectional study made by Syed.et.al⁴⁶ on 440 persons (220 normotensives and 220 hypertensive) in karachi Pakistan on the subject of the knowledge regarding hypertension showed increased mean score of knowledge compared to the other groups, while those who were age < 30 years had a good information on hypertension.

Tanu.Midha et.al²⁵ did a project on the awareness of happenings in hypertension. The samples chosen were of Seychelles Islanders figuring 1067 persons from 25 to 64 years of age. The group with hypertension had no knowledge of the symptoms of hypertension. They had gone through regular checkups and carefully followed a salt intake reduction compared to other groups.

Paul Munter et.al⁴⁷ explored the knowledge and practice of hypertension among 15,540 adults native to China. 44.7% were aware of having high blood pressure, 71.8% were on medication and 91.9% patients had not achieved control (P< 0.001) over hypertension. The report disclosed total absence of association between hypertension and variables such as education, smoking and family history and occupation.

A study was conducted by Ike⁴⁸ to evaluate the facts, understanding and practice of alternative measures dealing with control of high blood pressure among elderly persons at a public hospital. There were 50 participants bearing 66.7 as the mean age of both genders. 76% of the subjects were of walking as an intervention; while only 67% samples put it into practice. Fifteen had knowledge of customary BP values, attentiveness on body weight, fruit consumption.

Melinda Sue darling⁴⁹, in her study, made analysis of the extent of physical activity assisting reduction in blood pressure. The venue was Ishitawaka, Takata . The work was done in 2003 among subjects of stage I and II hypertension patients, 203 patients taken up for study were divided in to 5 groups on the basis of time spent on exercises / week (ranging from half an hour to more than two hours). The study established marked bringing down in blood pressure among the experimental group than in the control group.

Kanchana G A^{50} carried out a teaching program on the subject of life style modification among 50 patients attached to a cardiology day care clinic. It was found that 84% of hypertensive patients had poor knowledge while 16% had a moderate knowledge, mean score bearing 13.02. 42% had moderate knowledge, mean score bearing 25.32 in pre and post test respectively. This is significant at P<0.01.

The food guidelines 2010⁵¹ of American specifies food items for use, modus operandi of uses and quantity for vegetables, fruits, milk and milk products, grains, nuts, etc. considered minimal in fat and sodium. This produced a beneficial effect of lowering blood pressure.

Eskridge⁵² has done work on hypertension giving rise to kidney diseases and the relationship between life style modification and medication application. One in three adults were found having hypertension. One among three had expected blood pressure. The reasons behind non-adherence were inadequate information, deficiency in comprehension, non-compliance, inadequacy in health care facility and negligence on the part of attending professionals. Relationship between hypertension and knowledge was clearly seen despite the pathology behind. Action was required in areas of drug compliance, Changes in day routine as also individual differences.

A study by Udupa⁵³, Patel⁵⁴ and Van Moutfranset⁵⁵ has shown the Yoga having beneficial effect in lowering hypertension.

Kearney, Whelton et al⁵⁶ did a survey on the subject of the effectiveness of life style intervention in reducing blood pressure among 105 subjects. Dietary changes, practice of outdoor physical activity, hot drinks and reduction in salt consumption, consumption of fish oil were seen lowering blood pressure by 5mmHg and 6mm Hg in systolic and diastolic pressure respectively.

A study was made by Ghosh Arnab⁵⁷ on the subject of the role of brisk walking in blood pressure reduction, also in blood sugar and weight reduction. The subjects were 45 Asian Indian men, in age group 55 to 64 who did brisk walking for 20 weeks. They were divided into 5 groups on the basis of the duration of the exercise. All those who had a 5 week practice had a better outcome in terms of reduction in the parameters, compared to the group who had practice of less than 5 weeks. The direct relationship between blood pressure and obesity was also observed.

Chanudet et al ⁵⁸ had taken up a study to ascertain the benefits of a daily brisk walking for 30 minutes. The result was more than just a reduction in blood pressure,

included others to bring down obesity and metabolic disorder apart from to promoting endothelial function, platelet activation etc.

Mendes, Sousa and Barat⁵⁹ collected secondary data belonging to from their studies on brisk walking conducted from 1960 to 2000s. Open air walking for a duration of 150 minutes/week, either cumulative or interrupted into small installments with intermittent intensity was noted to afford advantage in getting anticipated blood pressure.

Byron⁶⁰ gave his comments on studies related to brisk walking for commending the role of brisk walking in bringing down BP at the event of yearly conference at Indianapolis.

Rugh McCaffer⁶¹ investigated the role of yoga in arterial pressure in Thailand among high BP clients. Measurements taken at 8 weeks showed trimming down in the BP to the level of P<0.05 level with values normalized at 8 weeks.

Falguni Desai's ⁶² study was on the effectiveness of yoga biofeedback and music therapy in the management of hypertension. The study was undertaken at Mumbai in 2003. Asanas like shavasana were taught to participants. 20 clients, 75% men and 25% women had a relaxation therapy program for 28 days. The't' test was used for understanding changes in cardiovascular response to initial and follow up measures. Mean reduction was of 10 mm Hg in diastolic BP and 15mm Hg in systolic blood pressure in post test.

In a study by Murthy⁶³, alternative therapies like naturopathy including yoga in the management of hypertension was examined. The research was conducted at Jindal Nature Institute located at Bangalore. Subjects were 104 cases known to have hypertension under meditation. They did Yoga and were in naturopathy. Blood pressure following the test showed a significant reduction from 139.66 to 129.6 and 91.2 to 86.1 respectively. Duration of the study was a year. Only 57 patients came for the follow-up. 14 patients had need for drugs and their BP was within the acceptable limits.

Grace⁶⁴ has strengthen the concept of yoga that yoga is the most excellent measure to assure maintenance of normal weight and mitigate problems of obesity.

An article by Miles⁶⁵affirms yoga is superior in tissue contraction, breathing techniques, relaxation and stretching exercises. The yoga position which involves systemic isometric contraction could lower the mean BP.

Chandrababu⁶⁶ administered a SIM about the knowledge of lifestyle modification in hypertensive patients in Mediscope Hospital, Bangaluru. The sample consisted of 30 patients (both men and women) known to have hypertension. A structured questionnaire organized on the basis of lifestyle modification aspects that included general health, stress reduction and psychosocial well being was used for data collection. 25 patients (83.3%) were observed with in adequate knowledge, 5 (16.7%) were seen having knowledge of the pretest. A majority 21 (70%) whose posttest knowledge score was checked had only a moderate knowledge. The study concluded the posttest knowledge score exceeding the pretest score indicating statistical significance. Hence SIM was found to be effective in imparting knowledge on life style modification in hypertension patients.

The above mentioned studies showed hypertension and its prevalence have imposing its foot prints into the Indian population. These consequences increase the mortality and morbidity rate in the country. But many studies proved that appropriate teaching and lifestyle modification on hypertension can prevent further burden of hypertension and its complications. Hypertension, being a silent killer, the victims does not seek preventive services due to cost and problems with transportation.
Emphasis is made on lifestyle modification for all patients with hypertension, irrespective of any pharmacological prescription. It may reduce or even eliminate antihypertensive drugs. Keeping such facts in mind and based on the review of literature and the researcher's experience, the investigator is interested to conduct a study to determine the efficacy of life style modification approaches in lessening Blood Pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients at selected urban areas of Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu, India.

1.3. STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM

A study to assess the effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering Blood Pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients at sample areas of Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu, India.

1.4. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

- To assess pre and post test Blood Pressure (BP) among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in control and experimental groups.
- To evaluate the effectiveness of Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) in lowering BP by comparing the pre test and post test BP among the control and experimental groups of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.
- To find out the association between the blood pressure level and selected socio demographic and clinical variables among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

1.5. HYPOTHESES

 H_1 A significant difference exists between the pre and post test blood pressure among the control and the experimental groups.

- H₂ A significant difference exists in blood pressure after the Life Style
 Modification Strategies (LSMS) between the control and the experimental groups.
- H₃ There is a significant association between the blood pressure and selected socio demographic clinical variables among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in the control and experimental groups.

1.6. OPERATIONAL DEFINITIONS

Effectiveness

This refers to differences between the values of pre and post test I & II findings on blood pressure measured at first, 12 and 24 weeks of intervention respectively among the experimental and control group.

Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) in lowering Blood pressure

It refers to those interventions intended to reduce blood pressure, namely, LSMS. It has three aspects, viz., brisk walking, yoga and Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension (DASH) diet. This approach is anticipated to give the outcome of lowered BP at the post test weighed against pre test among the experimental group. It was introduced individually, face to face through lecture, 1demonstration and return demonstration and the patients were monitored for a period of 24 weeks among the experimental group for the daily practice followed by pre test. The lecture part took 15 minutes and demonstration and return demonstration took about another 45 minutes to teach this LSMS.

These interventions are indented to reduce the blood pressure. It has three aspects, viz., brisk walking, yoga and dietary approaches to stop hypertension (DASH) diet.

This test holds out chances of bringing down reduction in BP at the post test in comparison with the pre test in the experimental group.

It was introduced on individual study basis, on one-to-one lecture, demonstration and return demonstration. Monitoring of patients among experimental groups was done for 24 weeks among the experimental groups for a daily practice for a period 24 weeks followed by a pretest. The lecture was of 15 minute duration, while it was 45 minutes for demonstration and return demonstration.

The three components of LSMS are explained herewith;

> Brisk Walking

This study refers to smart walking on the basis of criteria and carried out in the dawn of each day for six months for a period of half an hour and demonstrated by the investigator. Duration: 10 minutes.

> Yoga

This study includes two components of yoga, namely, an asana and a breathing exercise. A breathing technique called NadiSudhi Pranayama and an asana called Savasan, (a body and mind relaxation technique) were taught in the present study. Demonstration by investigator was part of LSMS for the patients to be practiced on a daily basis, on the basis of criteria for 24 weeks. Duration: 10 minutes.

> DASH diet (Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension)

It refers to food items used by patients including grains (210 to 240gm of / day),vegetables and fruits each (400-500 g/ day), fat free milk (250ml), skinless poultry, fish or meat (2 or less servings / day), legumes, nuts and seeds (4-5 servings / week), vegetable oil (2-3 teaspoons / day), sugar (5g / day), salt (5g/day) as per instructions given by the investigator on DASH diet. They were also advised to

restrict all oil fried items including ghee, vanaspathi, coconut oil, dry fish, pickles and sweets. The time duration to teach the DASH diet was 25 minutes.

Newly diagnosed hypertensive patients

This study refers to patients aged between 31 and 60 years of both genders, who were newly diagnosed to have primary hypertension within the last six months (1 to 180 days) by a qualified physician .Samples were collected by the investigator by reference to a register relating to non communicable diseases maintained at PHC. Patients residing at Vazhureddy from urban PHC Villupuram and Vikkiravandi from Vikkiravandi PHC for control and experimental group respectively were chosen for the study. The patients' houses were identified and their addresses together with eligibility to be considered as samples were assessed using a checklist to screen for hypertensive patients.

Sample areas

The study undertaken here relates to residents in two areas in Villupuram District, namely, Vikravandi, a town panchayat and Vazhuthareddy, a municipal area situated 20 km distance from each other.

1.7 ASSUMPTIONS

- The study is based on the assumption that persons need information on health matters to take necessary action.
- The effort put forth to practice the techniques taught varies between individuals.
- Residential ambiance has a positive impact to impart and implement appropriate strategies.

LSMS administered for newly diagnosed hypertensive patients is likely to have a positive effect on lowering BP.

1.8. DELIMITATIONS OF THE STUDY

Delimitations of this study are:

- Only the residents of Vikravandi and Vazhudareddy have been taken up for the study.
- Newly diagnosed hypertensive patients alone were chosen as sample aged between 31-60 years.

1.9. PROJECTED OUTCOME

- The findings are expected throw light on the effect of lifestyle modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among the newly hypertensive patients.
- The proposed intervention may lower blood pressure among hypertensive patients and also can obviate complications like stroke, kidney disease, and peripheral vascular and cardiac disorders.
- It can create awareness among patients to sustain healthy lifestyle practices throughout their future life.
- The quality and quantity of reinforcement given to patients may alert the health care team to take up scrutiny of the measures to overcome the difficulties experienced in compliance.
- It can also offer guidance to the investigator to plan a mass health education program with accent emphasizing the importance of lifestyle modifications on the wellbeing of patients/client.

CHAPTER II

REVIEW OF LITERATURE

This chapter deals with supportive evidence flowing from objectives of the study. The researcher has done extensive study of the relevant literature including books, articles and electronic data base. The chapter has two main sections:

Section A 2.1 Review of relevant literature on hypertension.

Section B 2.2 Conceptual frame work.

Section A is presented as follows

- 2.1.1 Literature on hypertension- An overview
- 2.1.2 Literature and Studies related to brisk walking vis-a-vis hypertension
- 2.1.3 Literature and studies related to Yoga vis-a-vis hypertension
- 2.1.4 Literature and studies related to DASH diet vis-à-vis hypertension
- 2.1.5 Literature and Studies related to Comprehensive intervention package And hypertension
- 2.1.6 Literature on BMI, WHR and Blood pressure
- 2.1.7 Literature on knowledge and practice relates to hypertension.

2.1.1 LITERATURE ON HYPERTENSION- AN OVERVIEW

Zemedkun⁶⁷ in his study indicates a high burden of pre hypertension and hypertension stages in Sub-Saharan African countries, Ghana and South Africa. The incidence of hypertension (including both stages 1 and 2) was found to be higher in South Africa (46%) compared to Ghana (42.4%), mostly due to higher age distribution of participants. More than 85% of respondents in Ghana and around 90% South Africans were in the age group more than 50, as part of the WHO SAGE study. With advancement in age, chances of getting into hypertension are 90%. Comparison between two countries shows a higher prevalence in South Africa. This could be attributed to the higher proportion of urban residents (69.7% in South Africa and 44.4% in Ghana) and increased number of obese persons (30.5% in South Africa and 12.1% Ghana). A lower degree of physical activity and fruit intake per day was also reported in South Africa.

Yadav et al⁶⁸ made a study of 1746 adults at Lucknow (India) aged above 30 years on the distribution of arterial pressure based on severity. 32.2% of patients were seen with hypertension and 32.3% had pre hypertension. Persons 60-69 years were en-route to have hypertension. Persons in the age group of 30-39 years had pre hypertension already. Central obesity, elevated LDL cholesterol and abnormal glucose tolerance were seen as risk factors. Hypertensive patients and pre hypertensive's were known to have additional risk factors compared to normotensive patients. The elevated the BMI and WHR, a higher the level of blood pressure were seen among normal, pre and hypertensive patients. The independent risk factors were age, BMI, WHR for both hypertensive and pre hypertensive individuals.

Some studies ⁶⁹ certify women having high pulse rate and minimal vascular opposition apart from protective effect of estrogen. Lower complication risks are seen in them than in men. But the risk factors were the same in both cases. A Meta-analysis of Observational Studies by professionals⁷⁰ showed positive association between the nature of the job and the development of hypertension.

Wang⁷¹ conducted a study for assessment of the relationship between marital status and hypertension. The setting was area comprising nine states in China. The author reported establishment of an active role in getting blood pressure to normal level. Compared to married women, the unmarried were exposed to a high risk of

development of hypertension. Persons with broken marriage were likely develop higher arterial pressure.

Data seen from a WHO study from six countries, namely ,China, Ghana, India, Mexico, the Russian Federation and South Africa was taken up for analysis of the role of income as cause of hypertension by Peter Lloyd S et al⁷². Linkage of arterial pressure with abnormal BMI, advance in age and non compliance to treatment was observed.

Alexander Logan ⁷³ in his article on hypertension in aging patients refers to the immediate, direct relationship between age and hypertension. Advancing age has the consequence of a gradual loss of elastic nature of blood vessels, enhanced formation of plaque inside the walls of vessels, enlargement and stiffening of all sizes of arteries resulting in quicker come back of reflected waves from peripheral circulation. This increase in systolic pressure seen with each contraction, in turn leading to increase in systolic pressure and decrease in diastolic pressure.

2.1.2 LITERATURE AND STUDIES RELATED TO BRISK WALKING VIS- A -VIS HYPERTENSION

Robert⁷⁴ refers to the steps in brisk walking as: stand straight with arms by sides without crossing centre line and pull your navel towards spine to ensure core working of muscles. Let eyes be focused five to six meters ahead and keep shoulders in a relaxed position. Elbows to be bent at a 90 degrees and hands to be cupped lightly, no clenching of fists. With the heel leading, take a step forward with foot and move arms in opposite directions. Body weight to be transferred through heels.

Current European and American hypertension guidelines for hypertension strongly recommend regular physical exercises. Dimeo F⁷⁵ has done investigation on exercise and hypertension. Fifty persons with persistent hypertension were placed in in control and experimental groups on a random basis and observed for 8- to 12 weeks. Regular exercises were seen to reducing blood pressure with enhanced physical performance on the basis of assessment done through maximal oxygen uptake and lactate curves. No change in arterial compliance and cardiac index. Decreased blood pressure was seen resulting from physical exercises even for clients whose response to therapy was rather low.

Tommy Boone⁷⁶ refers to the importance of brisk walking as beneficial for BP return to normal within a week as much as regular exercise. Continued and protracted practice of a mild physical activity is better than a long, vigorous walk but intermittent.

Leosco et al ⁷⁷ refers to brisk walking producing hypertension reduction. He attributes hypertension to a sympathetic system over activity and a distortion between sympathetic and para sympathetic modulation among patients with hypertension. Findings on the basis of evidence report normalizing SNS activity as the main reason for non drug life style measures especially aerobic exercise, bringing down BP to be within normal limits.

Petriz, Franco⁷⁸ place emphasis on the role played by non drug therapies. He does this in his article on exercise training and cardiac function. He says that the cardiac hypertrophy caused by exercise training is seen in the enhancement in the function of the heart and tolerance against ischemic attack.

Gliemann, Nyberg , Hellsten⁷⁹ avers the occurrence of cardiovascular disorder has been foretold with occurrence with scarce bioavailability of Nitrous Oxide (NO) and an increased level of ROS. The higher amount of ROS bring down the bioavailability of NO together with cellular damage in the heart and the arterial system. Proof of high enhancement of cardiovascular function through physical activity has been established by steps that include checking for greater pressure of NO, improved endogenous antioxidant protection and reduction of the manifestation of ROS producing enzymes. This leads to the conclusion that regular physical activity is a significant component in the management of cardiac disorders.

Tschentscher, Niederseer, Niebauer⁸⁰ have collected data from 16 RCTs and 11 observational studies from 1062 and 831 patients respectively at the Medical University of Salzburg, Australia, done between April 2011 and May 2012. Nordic walking was found effective judged by heart rate, oxygen consumption, quality of life, and other measures.

A walking assessment was utilized at the work spot for 24 weeks for validating walking as an intervention on modification in latent blood pressure and cardiac and pulmonary fitness. This was a study by Soroush et al.⁸¹. Evaluation was made at the end of 6 months, through a working intervention based on pedometer. The finding revealed the performance of participants at 12,256(SD 3,180) steps/day as average result during the initial months. It tapered slowly down till 6 months at a later stage. Age had a positive correlation to systole and diastole to start with, and later on changes in cardiac contraction alone were seen to have relationship with efflux of time. Systolic BP was based on the number of steps taken per d

ay expressing a linear relationship.

Lee et al ⁸² conducted a study with the objective of finding the effect of walking on BP control. Among the 27 RCTs, walking appeared effective with a larger sample and moderate to high intensity performance and longer intervention period.

Improvements in the heart and vascular diseases issues in sound inactive adults by regular brisk walking were seen by Maddison⁸³. The participants were 1128 in number. The mean age was 52 years. 83% among them were women. The

participants went through a performance for a month. Parameters measured after four weeks showed systolic pressure, BMI, body fat composition were saw a significant reduction. But the reduction was not noticeable.

A comparative study was conducted by Miyashita et al⁸⁴, to find the effects of accumulated ten 3 minute bouts of brisk walking Vs one 30 minute bout of brisk walking on post prandial plasma triacyglicerol concentration followed by rest of BP. Participants were 15 young healthy individuals. Repeated measures on a design have proposed both interrupted and continuous 30 minutes walk as equal in bringing down the post prandial lipemia and systolic BP in a significant manner at of P<0.05 level. Physical exercise for 45 minutes was recommended. They include brisk walking at 3.5 miles (5.6 Km) / hour meant for reducing the risk of chronic disease such as high BP, DM type 2 and heart diseases.

Lenz et al ⁸⁵ also suggest 45 minutes of physical activity that include brisk walking, at least 3.5 miles per/hour to lower the risk of chronic disease such as high BP, DM type 2 and heart disease.

Wu RZ, Zheng⁸⁶ have conducted a study for determining the role of brisk walking on hypertension. The sample size handled by them was 175 who were patients in the intervention and the control groups.

2.1.3 LITERATURE AND STUDIES RELATED TO YOGA VIS- A -VIS

HYPERTENSION

Yoga consists of three components, namely, meditation, breathing technique and asana. This researcher adopted a breathing technique called NadiSuddhi pranayama and an asana called Shavasana. Nadi means an artery or vein for the inflow of wind or vigor. Suddhi means cleaning⁸⁷. The origin of pranayama consists of two Sanskrit words 'Prana' and 'ayama'. 'Prana' means energy 'ayama' means elongation. So, pranayama is elongation of energy or life. The Sanskrit word 'shava' means 'corpse'. This pose gives the appearance of sleeping. It is very simple and can be easily done. But it needs concentration of a high order. The concentration should be on each part of the body.

Awdish et al ⁸⁸ in their study have recommended a modified yoga for evaluation of benefits and safety. This was done with 3 hypertension patients of varying functional abilities. The three yoga programs, were: yoga performed sitting in a chair, halfway yoga in a chair, and one with the assistance and instruction from an expert. A DVD was given to participants with 'you tube'. It carried details about yoga and a retrievable proforma. Participants were asked to write their performance details and a self note on their wellbeing. The modified yoga program was seen as feasible, secure and efficient. Feedback from patients showed reduction in fear and pain.

Sharma, Sharma, Sood⁸⁹ took up the examination of role of shavasan in lowering the parameters related to heart and lungs. 60 normotensive students were the subject for the examination. There was creation of artificial stress by Cold Pressor Test (CPT). Treatment of all parameters including blood pressure, pulse rate, respiratory rate and rate pressure product was done before and after doing the shavasana. Reduction was seen in all physiological values after 10 minutes of shavasan. There was a further slow down after 4 weeks of continuous practice. This led to the inference that shavasan is an efficient technique in lowering BP.

A critical evaluation of studies was done on yoga conducted by Paul⁹⁰. There were 17 trials including studies conducted from January 2014. Eleven among them declared that yoga resulted in decreased systolic BP compared to other alternative therapies such as dietary modification, enhanced UC, passive relaxation (PR), or

physical exercises etc. About eight studies stated that yoga reduces DBP. Yoga was seen as useful for reducing DBP through 8 RCTs and hence an effective treatment.

A country based study was conducted by Baby and Chavan⁹¹on the effectiveness of yoga among 60 hypertensive clients at Mangalore between the age of 30 and 60 years using a quasi experimental design. The post test mean BP level was lowered in the experimental group than in the control group as depicted in 'F' ratio of repeated measure ANOVA.

Moa et al⁹² have made a careful study of the extent of influence of yoga on BP and quality of life in individuals with elevated BP. The sample consisted of 83 mature patients, in age group ranging from 20 to 80 years. They were divided into three groups on the basis of the method of teaching, namely, yoga by a teacher, home based yoga practice, and a non experimental group. Among the three, home based yoga practice demonstrated use in bringing the desired effect in BP (-4.4 mmHg DBP) matching with other two batches.

Cohen et al⁹³ have made a study on the usefulness of yoga in a high blood pressure situation. The sample size of their study was 102 patients getting treatment at University of Pennsylvania. The study was done in 24 weeks. The end result demonstrated the positive effect of the multi component life style changes in the reduction of BP. Medication was minimal and enhanced lipid, glucose levels were seen.

Okonta⁹⁴ has made an in depth study of the resources and websites in order for a clear understanding of the facts about hypertension and yoga. The study was an aggregation of ten studies including pilot versions, RCTs and quasi experimental were included. There was consensus of the decisive role of yoga providing infinite benefits. The benefits seen included reduction in BP, glucose and cholesterol and body weight which are the major problems seen in American society. This analysis has provided norms for implementation of a nursing program as a supplementary therapy for high BP.

Chung et al⁹⁵have done a project on the effect of Sahaja yoga on the quality of living, nervousness and blood pressure. Two groups were chosen for the study. The first group, called meditation group, was given treatment from the International Sahaja Yoga Research and Health Centre. Members of the second group called, controls from Mahatma Gandhi Mission Hospital. The former, viz., the meditation group showed significant improvement between pre and post test values of blood pressure along with better quality of life and decline in anxiety. But no improvement was seen in the control group in the said parameters.

Ramesh et al ⁹⁶ have done investigation on the immediate effect of a brief life style therapy comprising yoga, asanas and pranayama. A significant reduction in the level of fasting sugar, and fat level was seen. This was followed by BP reduction.

Bhavanani⁹⁷observed the action of 27 rounds of Chandra Nadi Pranayama (CNP), which is a yoga technique on pranayama relating to parameters connected with heart and blood vessels. This was for those who had arterial hypertension. The sample size was 22 patients. The findings showed immediate lowering of pulse rate, SBP, pulse pressure etc which were significant at P<0.05 level.

The study made by Jie^{98} was on the benefit of yoga as a testimony for the arterial hypertension. He collected data from reliable resources including MEDLINE, EMBASE etc available until 2013. Analysis of the effect of yoga was done through comparison with conventional therapies in combination with breath awareness and other techniques. Yoga, among all, was found to be effective in a significant reduction of BP at the level of P<0.05.

A systematic renew was made by Marshall⁹⁹ for assessment of the factors that steer selection of yoga with factors including category of yoga, duration and length of yoga and the nature of comparison group included in obtaining the desired result over hypertension. A total of 17 studies formed the sheet anchor. Lowering of systolic blood pressure (SBP) and diastolic blood pressure (DBP) of about -4.17 and-3.62 mmHg respectively were seen. The study made a strong recommendation of yoga as a therapeutic measure for ensuring normal BP on a continuous basis. No supportive evidence is needed for proving the result.

Yet another systematic review of the entire gamut of published studies on yoga and hypertension has come from Tyagi et al¹⁰⁰ in an attempt to identify the effect of yoga on hypertension. There were 39 cohorts, 30 NRCTs, 48 RCTs and 3 case reports in the meta analysis . Duration of the study varied from 1 week to 4 years. The sample size comprised 6693 clients. Most of the studies revealed effective reduction in BP in both normotensive and hypertensive individuals at 0.05 level of significance. The difficulty in devising a standard and uniform yoga technique was responsible for hesitation in prescribing yoga as a therapy.

Cade et al ¹⁰¹ have made an investigation on the role of yoga vis-a-vis blood pressure as a life style therapy. They adopted an experimental design. Reduction in relaxed systolic blood pressure 5 mm Hg (SD=2) and diastolic blood pressure 3mm Hg (SD=1) in yoga group were found compared to the standard care group. But, changes in BMI, QOL and blood parameters like glucose tolerance did not necessarily follow yoga.

A study undertaken by Dhameja et al ¹⁰² to examine the relation between genetic changes with oxidative stress in hypertension clients and the consequence of yoga among them, with hypertensive individuals above 30 and below 60 were administered yoga practices for 30-60 minutes, daily for 42 days. There was decrease in the level of oxidative stress in clients with high BP as the effect of yoga in addition to BP reduction.

A booklet on pranayama¹⁰³ details the steps in nadisuthi pranayama. These include holding head and spine straight, with eyes closed. Left hand to be in gnanamudhra, right nostril to be closed using the right thumb, inhalation through left nostril, followed by closure of the left nostril using ring finger of the right hand, exhaling through right nostril, then through left nostril by closing the right nostril. All these were the steps contributing one complete cycle of nadishudi pranayama.

Yogam^{104,} in his textbook has detailed the steps of shavasana, these are: lie down on the back in ground with the legs distance of one foot between the hands should be a little further from the thighs and should be open upwards. Eyes should be closed, the neck should be straight and the entire body must be relaxed. Four or five deep breath and slow exhaling. All these make shavasana.

2.1.4 LITERATURE AND STUDIES RELATED TO DASH DIET VIS- A -VIS HYPERTENSION

John. Maher ¹⁰⁵ in his study on fruit and vegetable mix in lieu of DASH diet maintains salt intake, obesity, race, physical activity level, heredity, diet and stress are not the only causes of hypertension. There are others like Endothelial Dysfunction (ED), oxidative stress from reactive oxygen species (ROS) and vascular smooth muscle dysfunction (VSM) with its hypertrophy, hyperplasia and remodeling.

Mridul Chaturvedi., Sourabh Jindal., Rajeev Kumar¹⁰⁶, discuss lifestyle modification in hypertension in the Indian context. They point out that the Indian equivalent of the DASH diet includes grains and grain products with 7-8 daily servings each including 1 slice bread preferably whole-wheat, 1 cup dry cereal, ¹/₂ cup

cooked rice; for vegetables, the serving size was 1 cup raw leafy vegetables, ¹/₂ cup cooked vegetables or ¹/₂ cup vegetable juice in about 4-5 daily servings.

Patience TekourTetteh¹⁰⁷ declare DASH as a diet rich in fruits, vegetables, whole grains, low fat dairy products, tea, garlic and nuts as low in sodium and providing potassium, magnesium, calcium, dietary fiber, antioxidants and significant quantity of mono polyunsaturated fatty acid. Such essential elements provide improvement in endothelial function through nitric oxide-induced endothelial vasodilatation. Omega-3 fatty acids such as Eicosa Pentaenoic Acid (EPA) and Docosa Hexaenoic Acid (DHA) present in fish oil brings down blood pressure through enrichment of cellular membrane phospholipids. Inflammation and blood cholesterol are also brought under control.

An experimental study conducted by Satterfield¹⁰⁸, Anderson Moore on elderly persons on self management of the prevention of stroke, involved administration of DASH teaching program using a planned video teleconference technique. The conclusion drawn from the study was that the DASH diet was of great help to people in warding off stroke. Obese hypertensive persons experienced loss of weight of about 3-9% and reduction in BP was about 3 millimeter of mercury. With loss of weight, the required strength of medication also got lowered.

A study made by Kim et al ¹⁰⁹ was meant for evaluation of the result of DASH diet on blood pressure. The Participants were Korean adults; the sample size was 28 nos. The intervention which was carried out for 10 weeks, included dietary education in groups and also one-to-one participants were provided counseling. BP was assessed using an ambulating monitor. BP got reduced by 4.5 and 2.6 in systolic and diastolic pressure respectively. There was also enhancement in the level of Serum potassium and ascorbic acid level. Additional intake of fruits and vegetables confirmed presence

of elevated urine potassium value (138-139). This type of diet can down the level of BP and also minimize the risk of cardiovascular presence.

The DASH dietary pattern not only demonstrated effectiveness in lowering blood pressure but also indicated the beneficial effect on other cardio metabolic risk factors^{110, 111} and cancer risk factors^{112, 113}. This brought recognition for it as a benchmark for a dietary pattern for an overall healthy lifestyle.

Harnden et al ¹¹⁴support the view of DASH diet providing the desired results in hypertensive and in normotensive persons. The utility of DASH was the subject matter of study in a few centers in UK. Imparting of benefits of DASH was done, following monitoring of the food daily for two weeks, at the end of which the beneficial effect of significant lowering of BP with the systolic and diastolic BP among persons with normal BP was seen. They were very receptive to DASH diet.

Blumenthal et al ¹¹⁵ are known for the comparative study meant for determination the influence of DASH diet versus DASH diet plus a weight reduction program with routine controls. The respondents were patients with pre, stage I hypertension at a medical college hospital. Post test was done at the end of 16 weeks. The sample comprised 144 patients beyond BMI 25. They had no prescription of any drug for elevated BP. Reduction in BP 16.1/9.9, 11.2/7.5, and 3.4/3.8 mm Hg was seen among the DASH plus weight reduction, with DASH and usual diet control respectively. This was also demonstrated by an ambulatory BP. Among the three, DASH plus weight management program was more effective than others, as supported by P<0.05.

Mulrow¹¹⁶ undertook a study to ascertain the impact of a weight reduction programme on BP. Participants were divided into two groups, namely weight reduction group and control group. The 361 participants went through six trails . The findings showed 4 to 8 percentage of weight reduction with a reduction of 3 mm Hg in both systolic and diastolic BP. Stepped care technique with drugs for BP reduction produced good result than a weight loss diet. Patients who were given diet therapy require smaller doses of medication.

Couch ¹¹⁷ has made an incisive of study of the role of behavioral diet therapy as against a standard outpatient food care vis-to-vis blood pressure. The sample comprised adolescents with high BP. The therapy comprised a diet rich in fruits, vegetables and low fat dairy products. The experimental group had a significant (P<0.05) reduction in systolic, diastolic BP and total fat as well as higher intake of fruits, potassium and magnesium and low fat dairy significantly (P<0.05).

Sacks et al ¹¹⁸ made a thorough study of the impact of sodium among hypertensive and normo tensive blacks and other races of both genders. BP was seen getting lower when sodium was stepped down from high to intermediate level followed by intermediate to lower level.

Feig¹¹⁹ has done a study using data already collected from a premier trial by Chen et al. Participants were three groups namely, advice only, comprehensive life style modification aimed at weight loss, and consumption of sugar-sweetened beverages, total being 810 adults. A 24 hour recall was conducted through any time telephone for collecting data on intake of sweetened soft drinks. Calls were made at the start and then at the end of 6 and 18 months. Reduction in intake of soft drinks to 360 ml per day was seen producing an average BP reduction of 1.8mm Hg and 1.1mm Hg of systolic and diastolic pressure respectively.

Michael A. B ¹²⁰ has conducted a study on the effect of DASH diet in African American and white adults experiencing hypertension. He proved that DASH diet reduced SBP 11.2 mmHg and DBP 7.5 mm Hg reflecting the effectiveness of DASH diet in lowering blood pressure.

A study by Rankins et al ¹²¹ among 82 African American adults with poorly controlled BP, were exposed to DASH dinner for a period of 8 weeks, showed a definite reduction in BP among respondents who were active in at least six sessions out of eight at the level of P<0.05.

Scisney et al¹²², made a study of the efficiency of dietary compliance in lowering BP among hypertensive patients. The sample size was 53 hypertensive women from different background. Tailored messages were given to patients to enhance compliance with DASH diet. The result revealed lower BP for the experimental group with greater compliance to DASH diet, a marked change (p<0.05).

Lopes Oliveira et al¹²³ verified the impact of imparting knowledge of compliance to complementary therapies in the management of essential hypertension. The sample comprised 216 persons with high BP. Persons who started taking large quantities of legumes, engaged in physical activity, had reduced body mass index, abdominal circumference experienced reduction in BP as a result of health education.

Dede Lima Lopes ¹²⁴ is known for a qualitative study meant for comprehending the experience among seniors and their families who had the arterial hypertension. The findings of the study demonstrated importance attributed to the adoption of healthy practices together with medicinal treatment helped in the control of hypertension. The author has studied the presence of habits, attitudes and beliefs that have positive or negative interplay in the care of hypertension.

Annelita et al ¹²⁵ in their study on compliance to non-pharmacologic and pharmacologic treatment of hypertensive patients in a unit of Family Health Strategy program in the city of Cuiaba at Brazil between 35 and 65 years of age showed that none among the 54 users surveyed, demonstrated implicit obedience to antihypertensive treatment, while it was partial with 50% and 50% with no adherence.

Shimbo et al ¹²⁶ have comprehended the importance of bringing about behavioral changes in term of daily living activities. They considered the concepts and practices of obesity, sedentary life, history of smoking, intake of alcohol more than advised, non DASH diet and elevated sodium to potassium intake as life style factors among 2602 patients. The said items were found to have a unique association in causing hike in blood pressure as well as persistent hypertension.

Obarzanek et al ¹²⁷ have carried out investigation on the effectiveness of lifestyle behavior changes among 782 respondents in a premier trial. Assessment was made for 6 and 18 months for changes in behavior and SBP. The results showed reduction in SBP ranging from 0.5 to 1.5 mmHg for reduced urinary sodium, improved fitness and adherence to DASH diet.

Lin et al ¹²⁸ undertook a study of the link between adherence to DASH foods and BP among Taiwanese adults. The samples numbered 1420 and 2061 conducted from 1989 and 2002 respectively. Dairy products and calcium intake were significantly and inversely associated with systolic BP. The more they adhered to DASH, the higher was the consistency in reduction in SBP. The univariate analysis established universe relation between DASH adoption and SBP but no other factors had any relationship with DBP.

2.1.5 LITERATURE AND STUDIES RELATED TO COMPREHENSIVE INTERVENTION PACKAGE VIZ- A- VIZ HYPERTENSION

Aram. Chobanian¹²⁹, in his article, explains the effectiveness of certain lifestyle modification in lowering blood pressure. He confirms reduction in systolic pressure, averaging 5 to 10 mm Hg achieved along with a weight reduction of 10 kg. Certain LSMS have seen a weight decrease of 10 kg, 8 to 14 mm Hg for the DASH eating plan, 2 to 8 mm Hg for dietary sodium reduction, 4 to 9 mm Hg for increased physical activity and 2 to 4 mm Hg for moderation of alcohol consumption.

Baena¹³⁰ has identified 621 references among whom, 52 data bases were meta analyzed in a systematic review. An attempt was made to demonstrate the impact of Lifestyle modification on BP. There were four therapies, namely, behavioral counseling, dietary changes, physical exercises and mixed intervention with sample size ranging between 1014-2013. All four therapies demonstrated reduction in systolic blood pressure measuring-5.4,-3.5, -11.4 and-6.0 mm Hg respectively among counseling, diet, exercise and mixed therapy group.

Ziv **et al** ¹³¹have made a comparative study for evaluation of a new holistic approach called Comprehensive Approach to Lowering Measured Blood Pressure (CALM-BP), on the basis of principles of medicine combined with DASH diet. The sample consisted of 113 hypertensive patients on drugs. BP was measured for 16 weeks followed by a free period of 6 months with no changes in dose of medication. Taking CALM BP group showed lower BMI/cholesterol and enhanced quality of life significantly (P<0.0001).

An experimental study was conducted by Huang et al ¹³²at Hubli district in Karnataka state, India in rural areas. Samples of sizes of 826 and 806 were selected from each area respectively and assigned as experimental and control groups. Facts on

blood pressure, Diet and life style guidance were the interventions for the study which lasted three years. Improvement in knowledge and practice (diet, behavior, fat/salt intake, alcohol consumption) was seen among the respondents in experimental group significantly (P < 0.05) along with reduction of prevalence of hypertension.

Subramanian et al ¹³³ took up a project with the objective of finding the impact of a non drug measure for lowering high BP at Puducherry. A cross over randomized design was used. Four groups namely, control, physical activity, salt intake reduction and yoga groups formed the sample. Among the groups, those who were given intervention, saw reduction in, to the extent of systolic BP 5.3, 2.5, 2.3 mm Hg and Diastolic BP reduction of 6.5,2.00 and 2.4 mm Hg among the experimental groups respectively which was significant. But the control group did not show such significance. It was found that physical exercises were more effective than salt reduction or yoga.

Mdel et al ¹³⁴ assessed the efficacy of a culture oriented behavioral intervention. A six week session was done among adults of Hispanic/Latin as sessions that included encouragement to interview techniques. They were asked to self monitoring of behavior for 42 days. The systolic blood pressure was reduced to 10.4 mm Hg. The weight and BMI reduction were 1.5 lbs and 0.3 respectively .There was also improvement in physical activity of 40 minutes per day.

<u>Fujii</u>, et al¹³⁵ have done investigation on the cardiac disorder and its prevention through community based behavior techniques in Japan. It was conducted for a period of 27 months. 549 participants with hypertension were enrolled. The assessment was conducted at 15 months and 27 months. Individual counseling was administered to the experimental group with group session as a unique therapy whereas 7 newsletters were provided to the control group on facts relating to health and findings of health results. The result showed the effectiveness of intervention in lowering dyslipidemia and weight which in turn could lower BP.

Fan et al¹³⁶ were involved in a study for finding the type of life adopted and extent of preventive health care service utilized by persons in America. Participants were 45 years and above with hypertension. Details of their drug history were collected .The number enrolled was 218228. The findings revealed that the behavior such as not performed physical exercise and possessing BMI beyond normal ,consume <5 serving of fruits and vegetable/ day. Current smokers and binge drinkers were noted as hypertensive. Attending review ops and get routine health and fat check up was done by hypertensive, who were on drugs

Lopez, et al¹³⁷ have done scrutiny of 3,497 adult hypertensive participants with data available from, the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) conducted from 1999-2004. The samples were 3,497 adult hypertensive patients, drawn from 42 million Americans. The demographic and clinical factors of participants who reported received counselling on lifestyle to be adopted and their adherence was analyzed. Non-Hispanic blacks received counselling more (P < 0.001) than whites. Men were received counselling more often than women apart from those with Medicare insurance (P = 0.02) compared to the privately insured. Participants who were hyper cholesterolemic (OR, 1.7; P < 0.001), diabetic (P < 0.001), overweight (P < 0.001), or obese (; P < 0.001) reported receiving lifestyle counselling more often than those without these conditions. Of those receiving adjustments for demographic and clinical characteristics, only non-Hispanic blacks (P < 0.001) and those aged >60 (P = 0.04) were more likely to report adhering when advised. Fernandez et al ¹³⁸ have undertaken a research that involved testing of efficiency of life style intervention over systolic blood pressure. The setting was 6 old age homes function at the community level. The participants were between 60 to 80 years. 65 members were participants. The intervention comprised weekly group counseling sessions on diet ,exercises and drug compliance six in number and monthly session 2 in number as booster. The result of the study showed a change in SBP of 13 mm hg in intervention group , as well as there was enhanced drug compliance (26%) and vegetable intake (23%) which were statistically significant and such a kind of study was feasible to carry on in a senior center where as the control group the finding were not satisfactory.

A study was undertaken by Neutel, Campbell¹³⁹ for evaluation of the behavior modification among the currently known persons with high BP residing at Canada. Transformation was seen in their behavior, such as quit smoking with 8.6% relative risk reduction and improved physical activity with 6.2% RRR and persons on drug were tend to modify their behavior towards positive way.

Scala D et al ¹⁴⁰ conducted tests for the impact of a holistic life style therapy with the objective of achieving lowered BP. The participants were Italians with hypertensive indications. The sample size was 92 newly diagnosed patients without any co morbidity. The behavior therapy consisted of focus group discussion and role play at two and four months and followed up for twelve months. Significant improvement in lifestyle was seen in both groups in selected aspects. A significant reduction of SBP was noticed in the experimental group only at the level of P<0.05.

Viera¹⁴¹ has done investigation of life style modification for lowering BP and associated actions. He correlated suggestions and daily practice. The response for changing eating habits was 70.1%, reduced salt intake was 78.7%, reported exercise

was 67.1% and decreased alcohol intake was 57.9%. The patients who recalled the advice were changing their food pattern and taking less salt, exercising more and decreased alcohol intake.

Lien, et al ¹⁴² have carried out a study to understand the influence of life style therapy comprising of standard advices as well as DASH food. This study compared the outcome of intervention in terms of cardio metabolic variables among patients with and without metabolic syndrome. The major result was lowered systolic blood pressure after six months. Participants were 796 patients of whom 399 patients had metabolic syndrome. The patients were allotted to an advice only control group, a 24 weeks consistent behavior therapy group of standard advices or a standard advice plus DASH group. The output was reduction in the standard advice group and standard advice plus DASH diet causing reduction in the primary outcome parameter of systolic pressure.

Miura et al ¹⁴³ have conducted a study for demonstrating the effectiveness of life style modification program for lowering BP. The sample size was 518 of both genders aged between 20 and 69 years with stage I hypertension. The samples were assigned into four groups namely 1) personal counseling (n=134), team counseling (n=79) 3) letter correspondence (n=127) and 4) non experimental group (n =178). The reduction of SBP was significant in all 3 interventional groups significant at the level of p<0.05.

<u>Ohta</u> et al ¹⁴⁴have conducted investigation to ascertain the benefits from the lifestyle modification programmes. It was a 12-week program and the components are mild exercise and food in causing altering blood pressure. After 12 weeks it was found that BP was lowered along with elevated serum nitrous oxide (NO).

Pajak&Kawalec¹⁴⁵ have conducted a study with the objective of assessing the behavior of patients vis-a-vis hypertension at the residents of Krakow. The number of participants was 1157, 1153 of both genders aged above 45 and below 64 years. The method of data collection was home intervention, followed by a clinical visit. The history of alcoholism was found as the chief factor for hypertension. Limited smoking had lower chances of hypertension in women. The study revealed weight as an important factor for maintaining BP at the normal level. However physical exercise and keeping away alcoholism have got stronger role in checking hypertension.

Dickinson et al ¹⁴⁶ did meta-analysis of the effect of changes in daily routine to lessen high blood pressure among one hundred and five studies randomizing 6805 participants at university of Newcastle at least 8 weeks. The samples were exposed to intervention with improvement in their food habits including fish oil consumption, physical activity, alcohol and salt reduction. The findings were reduction in systolic 5.0 mmHg, 4.6 mmHg, 3.8 mmHg and 2.3 mmHg respectively with corresponding decrease in diastolic blood pressure.

A comparative study conducted by Dusek et al ¹⁴⁷, had 122 patients on the effect of relaxation response training (n=61) versus life style modification (control n=61). Both SBP (9.4 mmHg and 8.8 mmHg) DBP (1.5 and 2.4 mmHg) decreased significantly without any distinction between intervention and non experimental groups. Among them forty four in intervention and 36 in the casual care group had done away with anti hypertensive drugs under supervision. But a number of participants in the relaxation group had eliminated an anti hypertension medication while maintaining BP control which is significant at p<0.05.

The effect of lifestyle intervention on controlling hypertension among older adults was determined by Adel et al¹⁴⁸using quasi intervention research design. The

study was carried out on 84 hypertensive elderly patients attending outpatient clinics of the specialized medical hospital, Mansoura University Hospital, and New Mansoura General Hospital. The patients got assigned as equal batches of control and experimental alternatively. The first study batch of 42 samples, received lifestyle intervention regarding control over blood pressure. The second was the control group, comprising 42 patients exposed to routine outpatient care only. Data was collected using 3 tools, viz., socio-demographic and bio physiological data structured interview sheet, hypertension knowledge, and health promoting lifestyle profile II. The findings revealed that modifying the behavior of day to day activities was fruitful in the maintenance of blood pressure within normal limits.

Svetkey et al ¹⁴⁹ subjected 722 patients with stage I hypertension to multi component life style intervention for control of BP. The samples were randomly assigned to 3 groups namely first group performing behavioral life style, second group perform the former said along with DASH diet group, the third group was non experimental group. Both the groups I & II of interventional group were given individual and group counseling session for 18 months. The outcome was measured at 24 weeks and 72 weeks. The BP was lessened remarkably at the level of P <0.05 in the post test.

Nowson et al ¹⁵⁰ have conducted a study to examine the role of two weight reduction diets in blood pressure reduction among 63 men with the mean age of 47.9 years. They were assigned to either low fat (LF) diet or a WELL diet (moderate sodium, high potassium, high calcium, low fat DASH diet). Both groups did half an hour of reasonable physical exercise during almost all days of the week. Only 54 men completed study up to 12 weeks. They found greater weight reduction (4.9 kg) and SBP (5.5 mmHg) and DBP (4.4 mmHg) in the WELL group than the LF diet group.

Leon ¹⁵¹ investigated compliance of DASH among the patients of Spanish origin with hypertension. The investigation was carried out during the year 2008-2010 among 12, 948 individuals aged above 18 years. The results revealed , 17.3% was DASH compliant, and 17.2% as of Mediterranean compliance. DASH accordance was witnessed higher with advancing age, among women and patients with high cholesterol. The present smokers were non adherent to DASH.

Elmeret al¹⁵² have conducted a study to examine the extent to which two compound therapies lower blood pressure compared to non experimental group. The sample size was 810 adult volunteers with pre hypertension or stage I hypertension. Both the groups significantly augmented the intake of fruit, vegetable, dairy, fiber, and mineral intakes. The difference in BP reduction at 18 months for both the experimental groups was not significant but then the advice only group.

Hyerang¹⁵³ has made a study with the motto of finding out the impact of a dietary intervention among adults. The sample consisted of 28 patients of Korea with high BP. The intervention comprised multiple group education and face to face counseling for a period of ten weeks. Compared to pre test, both systolic blood pressure and diastolic blood pressure, were significantly decreased in post observation with reduction of 4.5 mm Hg of systolic blood pressure and 2.6 mm Hg diastolic blood pressure, at the level of P <0 .05.

2.1.6 LITERATURE ON BMI, WHR AND BLOOD PRESSURE

Premalatha¹⁵⁴ has carried out a study in Chennai to understand the occurrence of hypertension and the associated variables among 200 school children of either gender aged between 10 and 12 years. Among them, 23 children had systolic hypertension and 15 had diastolic hypertension, 14 % had systolic free hypertension and 15 % had diastolic free hypertension. There was association between younger age and BMI >23 with diastolic hypertension. The girls measuring BMI >23 had association with systolic hypertension. Both SBP and DBP positively correlated with BMI.

Teena Ann John¹⁵⁵ discovered the value of WHR among patients with managed and unmanaged high blood pressure at Kerala. She found that the mean waist circumference 93(SD=10.57), hip circumference 98.6(SD=9.69) and waist- hip ratio 0.94(SD=.094) were higher among uncontrolled hypertensive patients compared to controlled hypertensive patients.

The relationship between hypertension, BMI, age and gender was the subject matter of investigation for Anjum Humayun¹⁵⁶, Arbab Sher Shah and Riffat Sultana ¹⁶² in Pakistan. The sample size was 351 655 1006 with the range of age from 20 to 60 years and above. The study established that the lower the BMI the lesser the distribution of hypertension. As the BMI raises, the risk of getting high BP also multifold. Hence BMI and hypertension is directly associated.

Damirchi, Mehrabani¹⁵⁷ instituted a study to usher in the subject relating to prevalence of obesity, high blood pressure (high BP) along with other factors at Tehran. The sample size was 1218 Public Transport Taxi drivers. The mean weight was 78.9 kg. The result revealed that the obesity and high blood pressure was associated (P<0.0001) irrespective of age.

Breen in his article ¹⁵⁸ on hypertension, confirms the presence of a direct relationship between BMI and hypertension. The central obesity measured by WHR is an indication of undesirable cardiovascular insult.

A team led by Tesfaye et al ¹⁵⁹ conducted a study in Ethiopia, Vietnam and Indonesia. The sample size was 8014 persons aged above 25 and less than 64. The overall finding showed positive relationship between the BMI and hypertension among persons of Africa and Asia.

Moore¹⁶⁰has conducted a study at Oklahoma irrespective of race and ethnicity. The study was performed among students of Anadarko public schools. The sample size was 2053 of primary to higher secondary students. It was established that as the BMI raises, the BP also tend to hike.

Gupta et al ¹⁶¹ had undertaken a epidemiological study, made a random selection of 1800 samples comprising 960 male and 840 female adults aged 20 years and above in an urban Indian population and measured BMI and waist hip ratio. The study provided proof of association between BMI, WHR and BP.

Sanya and Ogwumike¹⁶² had the objective of finding out the association between BMI, WHR with BP in Nigeria. The sample consisted of 404 men and women between 15 and 85 years. BMI, WHR & BP were measured along with a study of lifestyle, occupation and family hypertension. The author determined that waist hip ratio was the stronger risk factor for hypertension than BMI.

Mausumie¹⁶³, in his study on clinico social profile of women, hypertensive in a tertiary care hospital, found the mean systolic blood pressure of the samples as 144.1 ± 24.6 mmHg and mean diastolic pressure was 79.9 ± 12.4 mm Hg. This study helped the researcher in identifying 39.1% of his samples as in stage I hypertensive, 60.9% in stage II hypertension and 21.4% newly detected as hypertensive. His conclusion was that though hypertension was common among men, a significant number of women had hypertension too. Possibility of prevention of hypertension was seen through modification of lifestyles, dietary pattern, and regular periodical exercises and use of appropriate drugs. Wilkins et al 164 have conducted a study to assess the prevalence of hypertension among 3,514 clients in Canada. The findings show the average values of SBP and DBP differed by age and sex. In the age group 20 to 39, and 40 to 59, the mean SBP were 101.4 and 111.1 mm Hg respectively in women, with 109.9 and 116.5mm Hg among men. The prevalence rate of hypertension in Canadian adults aged 20 – 79 yrs was identified as 19% which is almost the same in both genders. The prevalence has witnessed increase with age and is 2% in the age group of 20 - 39years, 18% in 40 -59 yrs and 53 % in 60 -79 yrs. The likelihood of pre hypertension was seen as higher in men (25%) than in women (15%).

Tripathi¹⁶⁵et al found that non vegetarian subjects from plains showed significantly high SBP, DBP and MBP (129 and 133 and 81 and 85 mmHg in systolic and diastolic BP respectively.) as compared to vegetarian subjects, whereas no distinction was seen in subjects from plain between vegetarian and non vegetarian. The high BP in non vegetarian vis–a-vis vegetarian subjects may be attributed to increased intake of salt seen in sea food and the consumption of spices and salt.

Wexler¹⁶⁶ has attempted identification of the barriers to treatment of hypertension among African Americans. Focus group discussion was used as a method for data collection. There were three groups and the sample size was 26. Most of them were women. The mean age was 49 years. The person, the family, community and the health care system were identified as factors for enhancing adherence to therapeutic regimen.

Lipowicz.Lopuszanska¹⁶⁷ have done identification of the difference in BP visa-vis marital status. Unmarried men were found to have a high risk of hypertension compared to married men. The unmarried men had lower BMI than married men. They suggested that difference is influenced by some of the factors, dietary intake and economic aspects of living.

Pajak and Kawalce¹⁴⁵ have completed a study to identify the relationship between alcohol consumption, smoking and hypertension. A random sample consisting 1157 women and 1153 men in the age group of 45 - 64 years was chosen. The participants were permanent citizens of Krakow. 66% among them were men and 56% women with hypertension. Men who were binge drinkers had higher chances of hypertension and in women who were moderate alcoholic (P=0.057) had lower chance of hypertension (OR = 0.72). Women who were smokers had a lower chance of hypertension (OR = 0.67). There was no relationship seen among smoking and hypertension. The researcher has suggested that weight reduction, increased physical activity and refraining from binge drinking can reduce the incidence of Hypertension.

A Longitudinal Study by Haijiang¹⁶⁸among Chinese women brought to light the relationship between the marital status and hypertension. Married women were prone to smaller risk for hypertension. The women of disrupted marital relation have greater risk for hypertension.

Holland et. al¹⁶⁹, (2006) did an explorative study to identify the role of clinical inertia in the treatment of patients with hypertension at Forsyth Medical Group in North Carolina among Physicians & support staff. A questionnaire with 29 items for physicians and 15 items for support staff was administered by trained interviewers. During the interview, they found that no physician documented patient's hypertension management as a matter of routine. One in three physicians referred to inability to find enough time for discussion on hypertension management with patients. Most of the physicians informed that patient and support staff related factors were the most important variable in reducing BP. The study concluded that patient's life style modification (89%), education (67%) and medication compliance (56%) was most important reason for uncontrolled BP.

2.1.7 LITERATURES ON KNOWLEDGE AND PRACTICE RELATED TO

HYPERTENSION

Prathiba¹⁷⁰ conducted a study to ascertain knowledge of lifestyle modifications regarding hypertension among patients with high BP at Mangalore. The samples comprised 60 patients with hypertension. Most of them were men between 51-60 years had primary to secondary education and were on daily wages, did not have history of hypertension and or smoking, were non-vegetarians and on regular treatment. The post test knowledge score had significantly improved as indicated by the't' value of 31, 29 which is more than the table value infers that the instruction on knowledge about hypertension greatly enhanced the awareness and attitude about hypertension in the patients.

Siva kiran¹⁷¹ made a study with the objective of analyzing the health behavior of hypertensive patients among controlled and uncontrolled blood pressure. A greater part of them were aged 51-60 years 27(54%), women's 30(60%), married 43(86%), Hindus 45(90%), had no job 20(40%), had low income less than 10,000 per month 26(52%). There was a significant association between Waist Hip Ratio (WHR) and health behavior among controlled and uncontrolled hypertensive patients. It is interpreted as waist hip ratio has got direct association with the behavior and development of hypertension.

Jemi Jeba Malar¹⁷² has conducted a study on the expenditure involved in the treatment among patients with hypertension in private and government hospitals at Erode of Tamil Nadu. She found the cost of hypertensive treatment in private hospital

was Rs. 4364.19(SD=1936.45) while it was Rs. 2163.79(SD=648.64) in government hospitals. The mean difference was Rs. 2200.40 and it was significant at P<0.001.

Girija and Kokilavani¹⁷³ advocate a study on the usefulness of structured teaching program among patients with hypertension in Tamil Nadu and found the structured teaching program very effective in improving the knowledge, attitude and practice on hypertension with mean scores of 88, 85, 85.5 respectively in the post test among the participants, significant at p<0.005 level. Demographic variables revealed a majority of them 30 (30%) among 100 hypertensive patients, with even distribution between 41-50 years and 51-60 years, 54 (54%) were women patients. 76(76%) were Hindus, 34(34%) were illiterate, 32(32%) 36(36%) were unemployed.

Sathya Shenbegapriya¹⁷⁴ conducted a study to explore the knowledge, perception and awareness of yoga among hypertensive patients in K.S. Hedge Medical Academy, Deralakatte, and Mangalore. Thirty four individuals were chosen as samples and randomly assigned to yoga and control groups. Yoga was administered to therapy group for six weeks. The reduction of BP in experimental group is 17/16 mmHg whereas in the control group it was 9/7 mm Hg in systole and diastole respectively. The difference was statically remarkable.

A study was conducted by Ramesh¹⁷⁵ for assessment of the knowledge on prevention of high blood pressure among urban adults at Manipal. He found that predominantly 35(70%) had inadequate knowledge which declares the need of the hour to introduce the right behavior techniques.

A study was undertaken by Ponchitra¹⁷⁶ with the aim to assess the success of awareness program regarding life style modifications in post myocardial infarction patients among a sample size of 60 patients in a multi specialty hospital at Chennai. She conducted the post test after a period of 7 days. The pre test knowledge of all 60 (100%) patients was found inadequate. In post test, 96.7% has gained adequate knowledge. There was no statistical significant relationship between post observation awareness and baseline data.

Damayanthi¹⁷⁷conducted a descriptive study in selected hospitals of Bangaluru for assessment of the acquaintance and practice on the prevalence of coronary artery disease (CAD) among the clients with hypertension. The participants were 50 patients. The findings revealed a 40.4% score in the overall mean knowledge of practice (KOP) and a 42.2% mean knowledge score.

In a study made by Ramesh chandrababu¹⁷⁸, the assessment of the level of awareness on lifestyle modifications of patients with hypertension was done in Mediscope hospital located at Bangaluru. The sample comprised 30 patients above forty and below sixty years. He found, majority 25(83.3%) had inadequate knowledge, 5(16.7%) of them had moderately adequate knowledge and none of them had adequate knowledge in the pre- test. Post test knowledge scores revealed that most of them acquired adequate knowledge.

Sanne, Muntner, Kawasaki, Hyre, DeSalvo¹⁷⁹ have carried out a study with the intention of assessing the knowledge of hypertension in an urban clinic. The sample size was 296 patients with hypertension. Out of 10 items, 39% of participants provided correct answers for nine items. Those aged >60 years with primary education, known as hypertensive for the past nine years were seen to possess knowledge that was not adequate.

Lee and Jeon¹⁸⁰ have carried out a study to get views of illiterates and their experience relating to hypertension. The samples were twenty six hypertensive patients. They were asked open ended questions on compliance and non compliance. A majority of them documented faulty behaviour as the reason for hypertension than
hereditary features. The individuals thought weight reduction, dietary modification and doing exercise could help elimination of hypertension instead of taking drugs. They believed drugs were artificial; and not the choice for treatment, even likely to produce side effects.

A team of professionals ¹⁸¹ in Alexandria made an assessment of the family physicians' knowledge, attitude, practice and performance concerning holistic management of hypertensive patients with the use of a KAP questionnaire. The sample size was 27 physicians working in 5 family medical centers in Alexandria Governorate. The design of KAP questionnaire was such as to enable assessment of their knowledge, practice and performance. Their performance with hypertensive patients was observed using a checklist. Men physicians scored more than women in terms of knowledge and practice of 81.8%, 62.5% respectively. Each one had positive attitude about holistic care of hypertensive patient.

Bell, Kravitz¹⁸² have scrutinized audiotapes verbatim held between patients and physicians from thirty primary care clinicians, eleven specialists in cardiology, and 120 individuals with high BP to estimate to what extent physicians render counseling and their satisfaction. They asked for drug compliance, despite not providing of counseling on hypertension and lifestyle to a greater extent. They satisfied over lifetime counseling given for a number of visits.

2.8. CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK

This research study is aimed at assessing the effectiveness of life style modification strategies on reducing blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients/clients. The researcher has explored various theoretical concepts and adopted the prescriptive theory (1964), developed by Ernestine Wiedenbach¹⁸³, as

the basis of conceptual framework for this study. Wiedenbach's vision of nursing practice closely follows the assessment, implementation, and evaluation steps of the nursing process is a helping art model. This theory involves a target directed, intentional building of thoughts, awareness, procedures to understand the patient and his condition, circumstances and need to enhance his potential, advance his care, avoid reoccurrence of the problem and to deal with apprehension, disability and suffering . The major factors covered in the model are, namely, central purpose, prescription and realities.

Factor1. Central Purpose

Chinn, P., & Jacobs, M.¹⁸⁴ refer to the basic assumption of the health care member as vital to a unique branch of nursing. This central purpose provides directions to the functions of the nurse for achievement of the patients' welfare.

It is based on the nurse's personal philosophy on the attitude towards the existence and actuality that has originated from specific faith and doctrine. A caring philosophy is unique and personal; it motivates action, guides thinking and influences decisions.

There are three vital aspects of a nurse's conviction, namely, worship of life, esteem of a person and functioning continuously based upon one's beliefs affects the healthcare goal laid down by the nurse or self.

The central purpose of this study is to lower blood pressure among the newly diagnosed patients with primary hypertension through administering LSMS.

Factor 2. Prescription

Prescription¹⁸⁵ refers to the schedule of intervention prepared for a patient/client. It highlights the pattern of doing which may cater to the nurses' aim

and reason for that deed. It may indicate broad general actions as well as specific actions congruent with the central purpose.

The actions specified in the prescription can be voluntary (mutually understood and agreed on by the nurse and patient and either patient-or practitionerdirected for an intended response) or involuntary (actions that cause an unintended response). The nurse can implement the identified prescription through the nursing plan.

This research refers to implementation of life style modification strategies such as brisk walking, yoga, DASH Diet to the patients in the experimental group. Understood and agreed to by the patient.

Factor 3 Realities

Marriner-Tomey¹⁸⁶, This refers to the practicality in the instant situation which has impact on the central purpose. They are physiological, mood, bodily and religious factors which have the potential for interplay in the practicing atmosphere of a nurse. There are five realities described by the author, namely, the agent, thepatient, the aim, the means and the framework.

The agent is the bedside nurse or attendant who has qualification, the personal quality, ability, dedication and fitness to render service. As the mediator, a nurse directs all actions toward the goal. Her 4 basic responsibilities are to resolve assumptions about the actuality indicate the objectives, carry out nursing according to the objectives and to take on the related activities that leads to self-realization and the improvement of nursing.

In this study, the agent or the mediator is the investigator, who provides LSMS to the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients

The client is the patient having personal power, troubles, competence, ambition, and facility to deal with. The recipient is the one who come into the healthcare system and takes delivery or on whose behalf actions are taken such as care, instruction, or guidance. The recipient is vulnerable and dependent and need not be ill since someone in receipt of health-related education would also meet the criteria as a patient. In this study, the recipients are newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

The aim is one which the nurse plans to achieve; it specifies nursing roles and enlightens the rationale of adopting those roles in reduction of blood pressure among the hypertensive patients.

The means refers to the activities that the nurse is empowered to achieve the goals. On the other hand, it refers to the behavior and instruments adopted by the health care member to accomplish the aim. They include specific skills, procedures and techniques the manner in which a nurse uses these means related to the central purpose and prescription. In this study activities like brisk walking, DASH Diet, yoga, isspecific activities that will be carried out for getting BP among the hypertensive patients to normal.

The framework consists of the human, environmental, professional, and organizational facilities. It refers to the setting in which nurse practices; it comprises human, environmental, professional, and organizational aspects of care. In this study frame work refers to the community areas of Villupuram district namely Vazhudareddy for control group and Vikravandi for experimental group.

Based on this theory the practical nursing holds 3 steps. They are,

Step I	:	Identifying the need for help
Step II	:	Ministering the need for help.
Step III	:	validating the need for help being met.

Step I: Identifying the need for help ¹⁸⁷

Wiedenbach assumed every human being experiences wants as a common part of living. A need is something the person may need to preserve or sustain himself contentedly or capably in his circumstances. The nurse recognizes the a patient's need for help through examination of presenting behaviors and symptoms, investigation of the significance of those symptoms with the patient , determining the cause of uneasiness, and determining the patient's capacity to resolve the distress or if the patient has a need for help from the nurse or other healthcare professionals.

It comprises visualizing the care recipient as an individual having, a unique representation, and a competence and empathize the patient's understanding of the problem. Getting to know the patients necessity for help is based on its presence, realization, the preventing factors, and the patient's ability to meet his needs on his own. The nurse recognizes feeling of inconvenience or incapability and the strength of patients to solve his problem. She believes each one perceives the need as a normal part of existence. A trait is said to be a need which the person may demand for taking care of himself without pain or proficiently in his condition. In nutshell, the person should attain his goal through improvement or strengthening of his capacity. The nurse explores the patients' experience of discomfort or incapability and his ability to solve the problem.

In this study the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients are indentified through a survey using a checklist to screen for hypertension based on the inclusion and exclusion criteria. Baseline information of hypertensive patients was collected including socio demographic clinical data as well as pre assessment of level of blood pressure, using sphygmomanometer and stethoscope.

Step II: Ministering the need for help.

George, J. (Ed.).¹⁸⁸It means implementing the required help based on the identified need as the patient demands for help or any measure or action essential and preferred by the human being and which has potential for re-establishing or extending his ability to deal with the demands inherent in his situation .The nurse prepares a plan for solving the patients' necessity for help. It depends on the thinking and comprehending ability and also the capability to do by the patient and the nurse. The nurse presents the plan to the patient, and the patient responds to it.

This involves rendering of the required service. Followed by the pre assessment level of blood pressure, the interventional protocol LSMS is administered and importance of life style modifications is emphasized to them to be practiced regularly in order to lower their blood pressure levels among the experimental groups. The interventional protocol includes the brisk walking, DASH diet, yoga, enforced to the newly diagnosed patients in experimental group. The control group **members were not disturbed and they** were allowed to continue to take the prescribed therapy as prescribed by their physicians without any restrictions.

Step III: validating that the need for help was met.

This describes gathering of data dealing with resolution of a recipient's demands and the consequent restoration of functions as an immediate effect of the nurse's intervention. The data regarding confirmation is collected from the patient that the purpose of the nursing actions has been fulfilled. The senior nurse authenticates that the proceedings were indeed helpful and that the patient's functional ability was restored as a result of the help given.

This is accomplished in this study through post assessment on the level of blood pressure after the administration of interventional protocol. The post test I was assessed on the 12th week and the post test II was assessed on 24th week.

The findings were compared with the pre test observation within and between the control and experimental group. The effectiveness of LSMS was also measured using rating scale on satisfaction of intervention as well as open ended questionnaire on feedback of LSMS. It was found that the intervention was effective in lowering BP, established through statistical analysis of the observations. The evaluation of the study reveals the importance of enhancing routine life behavior for lowering hypertension among hypertensive patients.



Figure 1: Modified conceptual frame work based on Widenbach's helping art of clinical nursing theory (1964)

- X Intervention the LSMS was introduced to the experimental group along with routine care whereas the control group was allowed to continue the routine care and not exposed to the intervention.
- O₂ Post test I assessment of BP was done at 12 weeks for both the control and experimental group.
- O₃ Post test II assessment of BP was done at 24 weeks for both the control and experimental group. A description of the research design is produced herewith.



Fig-3.1 Schematic diagram of the research methodology

Continued



3.3. VARIABLES

Three variables have been included in this study.

Independent and Dependent variables

In the present study, the independent variable refers to Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) as a comprehensive intervention package, while dependent variable refers to b blood pressure.

Extraneous variables

The extraneous variables considered are: socio demographic and clinical variables comprising age, gender, education, occupation, income, dietary pattern, marital status, religion, type of family, history of smoking (past and present), history of alcoholism (past and present), family history of hypertension, the mode of diagnosis, treatment prescribed, body mass index (BMI) and waist hip ratio(WHR).

3.4. SETTINGS

The current study was carried out in two areas of villupuram district catered by Primary Health Centre. Villupuram is the largest (7011 sqkms.) district in Tamil Nadu State in India situated **not for from** the State capital **(160 Km)**, Chennai. India has a population of 1.252 billion¹⁸⁹. The total population of the district as per 2011 census ¹⁹⁰ was 3458873 out of which 1740819 (50.3%) were men and 1718054 (49.7%) were women. The sex ratio is 987 women for every 1000 men.

The areas chosen for this study were two community areas, namely, Vazuthareddy and Vikkaravandi. These areas were chosen by the investigator, on the basis of the feasibility, accessibility, and cooperation of the participants and the concerned authorities. Selected settings were randomly assigned for control (Vazuthareddy) and experimental (Vikkaravandi) groups through lottery method to prevent contamination. The distance between the two chosen urban areas was 20 km.

Vazhudareddy is one among the 42 wards catered **to** by urban primary health center Villupuram covering the population of 96253 dwelling in 8.36SqKM. Vazuthareddycomprises 2650 population in about 800 families. The investigator had chosen 14 streets for purpose of the study and found 165 cases for investigation.

A block primary health center is located at Vikkiravandi, covering the population of 30250 catering 79 villages serving a radius of 6.8 Sq KM. Vikkiravandi itself has a population of 5000 in about 2000 families. The investigator had chosen14 streets and found 210 eligible samples. V.Salai and Panayapuram of Villupuram for the intervention and the control groups respectively were venues for the pilot study.

3.5. POPULATION

Target population

The newly diagnosed hypertensive patients were the target population for this study.

Accessible population

In this study, accessible population refers to those patients newly diagnosed **as having** hypertension within a period of the past 6 months and residing at Vikkiravandi and Vazhuthareddy of Villupuram district.

3.6. SAMPLE

Samples for the study were patients who were newly diagnosed **as having** hypertension within the past six months by a registered medical practitioner with or

without prescription of drugs and **falling** between the age group of 31 and 60 years of both genders, and fulfilling the inclusion criteria.

3.7. SAMPLE SIZE AND SAMPLE SIZE CALCULATION

Based on the effectiveness of intervention established in an earlier study conducted by Mausumi¹⁹¹, the mean post test systolic BP was 144.1 ± 24.6 andthediastolic BP was 79.9 ± 12.4 in the experimental group. The sample size of the current study was estimated on the basis of these findings. Sample size was calculated using the following formula.

$$= \left(\frac{Z\alpha X \text{ s.d}}{error}\right)^2 = \left(\frac{1.96 X 12}{2}\right)^2 = 138$$

In the above formula, Z is the critical standard score = 1.96

SD	= 12
Margin of error	= 2

In $\alpha = 0.05$ the sample size is 138 for 1 group.

If there are 2 groups, the required sample size is 138+138=276

The sample size **of the present study** was 275. Considering the attrition, 10% of added sample were taken in the pretest. But finally in the post test 275 only arrived as depicted below.



3.8. SAMPLING TECHNIQUE

The eligible patients who fulfilled the inclusion criteria were identified by the investigator and purposive sampling technique was adopted for it representing the population characteristics.

3.9. CRITERIA FOR SAMPLE SELECTION

Inclusion criteria:

Patient'scharacteristics;

- All new hypertensive patients diagnosed by a registered Medical officer within a period of the last 6 months.
- > 31-60 years for both men and women.
- > Ability to read and write in Tamil or English.
- Willing to participate.

Exclusion criteria

Patient'scharacteristics;

- Having secondary hypertension, or blood pressure <140/90 mm Hg at the time of screening
- Diagnosed with co morbidities like coronary artery disease, cerebro vascular accident, diabetes mellitus etc.
- Having altered sensory perception and major health problems such as having hard of hearing, breathing difficulty, pain while walking
- Knownto practice yoga, any form of exercise and on Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension (DASH) diet.

3.10. DEVELOPMENT OF TOOL

Four tools were used for this study.All of them had been developed by the investigator with the help of expert opinion and review of relevant literature.

The following steps were adopted prior to the development of the tools.

- ✓ With the help of an extensive review from various sources that include reference books, journals, website, Medline search etc.
- ✓ The most suitable and appropriate tools for this present study were identified for use.
- ✓ Incorporation of personal experience of the investigator with the patients with hypertension.
- ✓ Establishment of validity through consultation and discussion with experts from medicine, nursing, research, biostatistics, yoga, nutrition and physiotherapy were done and modification and corrections were made accordingly.
- ✓ Preparation of the final draft and **presentation thereof.**

Development of the teaching module

The teaching module on LSMS had been developed by the **investigator on the basis of a review of the relevant literature** and guidance **from expert opinion**. This was oriented to suit to the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients and instructed to adopt it for 24 weeks.

The Steps involved in the construction of teaching module were as follows:

- ➢ Literature review.
- ➢ Formulation of objectives.
- The investigator has undergone training in brisk walking at Aathiparasakthi College of Physiotherapy Melmaruvathur, Kanchipuram district, Tamil

NaduandYogaatAthisivan Yoga & Nature Cure KenthraVillupuram district, Tamil Nadu. The certificate of training for DASH diet was obtained from KrishiVingyan Kendra (KVK) Viruthachalam, Tamil Nadu.

- > Preparation of the first draft of the teaching module.
- Development of criteria checklist for validation.
- Content validity of the teaching module
- Refining the draft of the teaching module.
- Finalizing the draft of the teaching module.

The first draft of the teaching module had been developed after **a thorough study** of the **relevant** literature from different sources and consulting experts. The content of the subject was made easy, simple, clear and comprehensive, keeping in view, the patient's capacity to comprehend information. The checklist **of criteria** consists of headings, such as objectives, content, and its organization, language, practicability, feasibility and any other suggestion. There were three response columns against each item in the plan namely relevant, needs modification and irrelevant. The evaluators were asked to judge the significance of each item and place a mark (\checkmark) in the suitable column.

3.11. DESCRIPTION OF THE INSTRUMENTS

In this study, the tools comprised the following.

- ✓ Proforma on socio demographic and clinical variables
- ✓ Sphygmomanometer & stethoscope
- ✓ Teaching Module for LSMS
- ✓ Observational Checklist for assessment of practice of LSMS.

3.12. INTERPRETATION AND SCORING OF TOOLS

3.12.1 Tool I – Proforma on Socio demographic and clinical variables

There were 16 items in socio demographic and clinical data. These included age, gender, education, marital status, occupation, income, dietary pattern, religion, type of family, history of smoking past and present, history of alcoholism past and present, family history of hypertension, mode of diagnosis, treatment prescribed, BMI and WHR.

Administration

The data was collected using an interview schedule by the investigator. No score was allotted for this.

3.12.2 BP apparatus and stethoscope

BP was measured with the help of a standardized recently calibrated Diamond mercury BP apparatus and also Microtone stethoscope.

Administration

The investigator measured BP duringpre test, post test I & II as per standard procedure. (Refer annexure x and y).

Scoring and interpretation

The measured BP was interpreted using a standard reference scale based on JNC7is as follows.

BP CLASSIFICATION	SBP (mmHg)	DBP(mmHg)
Normal	<120	and <80
Pre hypertension	120-139	Or 80-89
Stage 1 Hypertension	140-159	Or 90-99
Stage2Hypertension	≥160	Or >100

3.12.3 Tool III: Teaching Module on Lifestyle Modification Strategies

Orientation on teaching module on Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) was **provided** to the members of the experimental group face to face **at** their residence for an hour through lecture, demonstration and return demonstration. The A.V. aids used were power point, flex, real objects, standard nutritional cups and booklet.

The lecture components consisted of the following

- Definition of BP, normal BP and hypertension,
- Stages of hypertension
- Risk factors of hypertension
- Prevention and control
- Complications arising from uncontrolled and undiagnosed hypertension.

Thedemonstration components consisted of

- Brisk walking
- Yoga : a) Nadisuthi pranayama b) Shavasana
- DASH diet

An informational booklet on LSMS containing the above details and LSMS practice calendar (in Tamil) were distributed to the patients on the same day of intervention.

3.12.4.1 Brisk walking

This was demonstrated **on the basis of** pre structured steps **while** return demonstration was done by the patients in the presence of **the** investigator. Instructions were provided to participants on the criteria for their observation to be made by the investigator during biweekly visit for their adherence to LSMS. The patients were given guidelines to practice as below.

- 1. Stand erect and hold your head high.
- 2. Look forward; focus your eyes 5- 6 meters ahead, back straight, shoulders relaxed.
- 3. Bend elbow 90° with hands loosely clenched.
- 4. Lead with, and transfer your weight through heel.
- 5. Swing arms backwards and forwards without crossing **the** centre line.Move hands and legs in opposite direction.
- 6. Lean forward to balance better. Take smaller steps.

Practice for 30 minutes.

3.12.4.2 Yoga

There are components in yoga. They are: 1. Meditation, 2. Breathing exercise and 3.Asana. The second and third components of yoga were used for this study, namely, a breathing exercise called Nadisuthi pranayama and an asana called Savasana in which the researcher has theoretical and practical knowledge, having undergone training in yoga.

a) Nadisuthi pranayama

- Sit in sugasana over a mat or sheet. Let the muscles be relaxed.Let the spine be kept erect, head and theneck straight and eyes remain closed. You should be aware of your breathing.
- Hold nasikamuthra in the right hand throughout.
- ➢ Keep the left hand in gnanamuthra throughout.
- Keep the right thumb on the right nostril and the tip of the ring finger on the left nostril. Use the thumb and the ring finger of the right hand to close the right and left nostril respectively as you breathe in through the opposite nostril.
- Start the exercise by blocking your left nostril and breathing out through your right nostril.Continue to block your left nostril and breathe in through your right nostril.
- Open your left nostril with simultaneous cover and blocking your right nostril. Breathe out slowly using the open, left nostril. Once this is done go ahead and breathe in with your left nostril that is open.
- Close the left nostril and allow the air move out through your right nostril which you now leave open. This is considered as one cycle. Let the breathing be slow and rhythmic.
- Continue breathing the same way by opening and closing left and right nostrils and complete 20cycles.

(b) Savasana

Participants were given instructions by the researcher to practice shavasanain the following manner:

- Lie on your back without any pillow.Have your legs straight and comfortably apart. Your feet should be dropped open and be relaxed. Rest your arms at your sides and your palms facing up. Close your eyes.
- ➤ Have a deep and slowbreath through the nostrils.
- Allow your body to feel heavy on the ground. The entire body to be relaxed.
- Work starting from soles of your feet going up the crown of your head; deliberately contract and release every body part, organ, and cell. Consciously imagine that the organ or the body part which you consciously look into is healthy and relaxed.
- On each inhaling, keep your mind peaceful. Let your tension, stress, depression and worry exit from the body.
- Calm down your face and allow eyes drop deep into their sockets.
- Stay in Savasana for 10 minutes. Exit the pose.Start with beginning with a deep breath bringing a gentle movement and awareness back to your body. Wriggle your fingers and toes. Turn to your right side and rest there for a moment. With an inhalation, gently press yourself.

3.12.4. 3 DASH diet

Details of the DASH diet based on a 2000 calorie plan were conveyed to patients through lecture, demonstration and return demonstration. These are:

Food groups	Daily servings	Quantity(g/day) /ml/day	One serving size
Grains and grain products	7-8	210- 240	whole-wheat bread1 slice, dry cereal1 cup, cooked rice ¹ / ₂ cup.
Vegetables	4-5	400-500	1cuprawleafyvegetables,½cupcooked vegetables,

Table 3.1 DASH diet

Fruits	4-5	400-500	1 medium fruit
Fat-free or low-			250 ml milk or 1 cup
fat milk and milk	2-3	500-750	yogurt
products			
			cooked lean meat ¹ / ₂ cup,
Lean meat,	2 or less	<100g	poultry(skin pealed off),
poultry, and fish	2 01 1055	<100g	or fish; pulses 1 small
			bowl
Nuts seeds and		30-35g/day	1 small cup of legumes,
legumes	4-5/week	200.250 g/uay	2 - 3 times a day
		200-230g/week	
Fat and oils	2-3	10-15 ml	1 teaspoon vegetable oil
Sugar	5 or less per	11 gram	1 table spoon sugar
Sugar	week	i i grani	
			1 teaspoon/day is
Salt	5grams/day	5grams/day	adjusted throughout the
			day

3.12.5 Tool IV: Observational Checklist to assess the practice of life style modification strategies

The checklist for observation consisted of three components with 30 itemson lifestyle modification strategies as below. The 30 items were scaled against 12 columns based on biweekly observations.

S. No	Components	Item No	No of items	Score
1	Brisk walking	1-7	7	7
2	Yoga	8-22	15	15
3	DASH diet	24-30	8	8
Total	3	30	30	30

Administration

The patients were provided instructions to practice LSMS lasting 24 weeks. For the practice of each item (criteria), a score of one was given, **while it was zero** for non practice. The minimum score was 1 and the maximum score was 30 for **a** **single**observation. There were 12 observations so the minimum score was 12 and the maximum score was 360 for the 12 observations made during the period of 24 weeks by the investigator during the study. It was assessed during biweekly visit paid to the participants' houses to observe practice of brisk walking and yoga and to verify their cooking method, quantity and quality of food intake and to record their BP. Based on the overall score obtained , the level of practice was determined asfollows.

The level of practice is graded as follows:

	Level of practice	Score range	Percentage (%)
1.	Inadequate practice	<180	<50
2.	Moderate practice	\geq 180 to 269	≥50-74
3	Adequate practice	270 to 360	≥75-100

3.13. RELIABILITY OF THE TOOLS /INSTRUMENTS

Reliability of BP apparatus was determined by measuring BP of 30 patients by two judges separately and inter rater reliability was determined using Cronbach's Alpha method with r value of 0.88 and seen reliable. The reliability of observational checklist was established by test retest method and the r value was 0.90 which is reliable.

3.14. VALIDITY OF THE TOOL/ INSTRUMENT

The tools were developed by the investigator by self. The proposal including operational definition, blue print and criteria check list were provided to experts who were requested to give their expert opinion on the precision, relevance and **appropriateness** of the content. There were three response columns against each item in the questionnaire, namely, relevant, needs modification and irrelevant. The evaluators were asked to put $\sqrt{\text{mark against each above mentioned column as found}}$ relevant. Validated tools were received from 17 experts in the field of nursing, medicine, education, research, bio statistics, nutrition, physiotherapy and yoga with their valuable opinion. Modification was done on the basis of their recommendations, while the suggested tool was approved by experts prior to data collection.

For content validity of the teaching module on LSMS, opinions and suggestions were obtained from 17 experts based on the blue print, objectives of the study and evaluation criteria checklist. Suggestions from them were incorporated and modifications were done in the wording of a few items,after which the final draft of the teaching module was prepared. Based on the expert's agreements over each item, the LSMS was evaluated for its appropriateness and relevance of the content. The content validity index score which was 0.76 showed good content validity of the tool. The content validity was obtained for the translated Tamil tools by translating the tool from English to Tamil and reverse translation done in English for preventing any semantic error. The certificates were obtained for the same.

The investigator had completed a diploma program in Yoga, had training in brisk walking as well as in DASH diet and obtained certificates for the same before applying it to the patients.

3.15. THE PILOT STUDY

A Pilot study was conducted among 28 (14 each from control and experimental groups) newly diagnosed hypertensive patients at Panayapuram and V.Salai of Villupuram district respectively.

The paired't' and unpaired't' value revealed the effectiveness of the intervention at the level of P < 0.05. The mean difference was 17.405 and 9.714 mmHg in Systolic BP and Diastolic BP respectively in the experimental groupbetween pre and post test II. The tool was found to be feasible for conducting the core study. The samples of the pilot study were excluded from the main study.

Modification

- Milk and milk products were excluded from the DASH diet since none of them was found to exceed the recommended intake.
- A few variables were reduced. i.e. detailed information (quantity, frequency) on habit of smoking and alcohol.

3.16. DATA COLLECTION PROCEDURE

TADIE J.J ACTIVITI CHANT	Table	3.3	ACTIV	/ITY	CHART
--------------------------	-------	-----	-------	------	-------

Period	ACTIVITIES PERFORMED			
I CI IOU	CONTROL GROUP	EXPERIMENTAL GROUP		
Iweek	Pretest was conducted	Pretest was conducted		
IWEEK		Introduced LSMS		
II WEEK		Reinforced LSMS		
WEEK TO	No follow up	• Blood pressure was quantified		
XI WEEK	i vo ionow up	and recorded on biweekly		
(Follow up)		basis by the investigator.		
XII WEEK	The Blood Pressure,	Blood Pressure was assessed by the		
(Post test I)	was assessed by the	investigator.		
(1 000 000 1)	investigator.	investigator.		
XIII WEEK				
TO XXIII		Reinforced LSMS		
WEEK	No Follow up	• Blood pressure was assessed and		
		recorded on biweekly basis by the		
		investigator		
VVIII				
	Blood Pressure	Blood Pressure		
WEEK	was assessed by the	was assessed by the investigator		
(Post test II)	investigator.			
	• At the end of post			
	test II, LSMS was			
	administered by the			
	investigator.			

The ethical committee clearance was obtained at CSI JACON Madurai for conducting the study. The duration of data collection was one year (January 2014 to December 2014). It was conducted on all days of the week from 9.00AM to 6.00 PM

for the conduct of pretest and introduction of intervention. The biweekly observation for the practice of LSMS was conducted between 6 AM and6 PM on all days of the week followed by a pretest.

Data collection was done in five phases.

- Phase I screening and case identification of patients
- ➢ Phase II pretest
- Phase III Introduce LSMS,
- Phase IV Post test I at 12 weeks,
- Phase V Post test II at 24 weeks

The data was collected in five phases.

Phase I: Identification of the patients

- The NCD registers were verified. A list of patients and their addresses enrolled within 6 months were selected with the permission of the medical officers of the respective PHCs.
- Permission was obtained from the councilor of Vazhudareddy and chairman of Vikkiravandi municipality for the screening and examination of the control and the experimental groups respectively.
- After reaching the residences of chosen patients, their eligibility for being the study samples was assessed using the checklist for screening the hypertensive patients. Those who scored 17 based on the checklist as samples. The procedure was same for both vazhudured dy&vikkiravandi for control & experimental group respectively.
- The patients in the control group were divided into 8 groups according to proximity of their locality to ensure feasibility in the conduct ofpost test.

• In the same manner, the experimental group patients were divided into 16 groups in accordance with their physical closeness of their houses to enable monitoring of their practice the conduct of post test.

Phase II: Pre test

- Explanation was provided toeligible participants, as also the significance of LSMS. The purpose was winning the confidence of the patients. Voluntary written consent was obtained from them.
- .,Socio demographic and clinical variables were collected through the use of interview schedule and BP was measured. The process was same for both the groups.
- There were 165 patients in the experimental group and 150 patients in the control group during pretest.

Phase III: Introduction of LSMS

- Followingpre test, face to face explanation was given for each patient on hypertension, brisk walking, yoga and DASH diet using the teaching module relating to LSMS through lecture, demonstration and return demonstration, power point, booklet, flex, and real objects like nutritional cups and spoons.
- In the case of patients who were not used to cooking by themselves, a cooking member of the family was included while teaching DASH diet for the preparation and serving of DASH diet. The equivalent measure of standard nutritional cups available in their house was used for helping them to maintain a consistent measure for them. The patient's doubts were clarified. The investigator ensured that, the patient had good knowledge of the right technique at the end of the

session. Each patient was given a booklet on LSMS. 15 minutes were required for teaching and 45 minutes for demonstration and return demonstration. In other words, administration of LSMS was gone through in one hour.

- LSMS was imparted on day one and, from day two onwards for next consecutive 6 days, patients were closely monitored and made to practice brisk walking, yoga and had a meal under the guidance of the investigator. During this period, the investigator used the observational checklist consisting of three components with 30 items on brisk walking, yoga and DASH diet to ensure the meticulous following of the steps of procedure. The patients were made aware of the same. They were reinforced to learn the right technique and no scoring was allotted during first week.
- There were biweekly visits to the participants'houses for monitoring thepractice of LSMS and record their BP .Use of observational checklist by the investigator, score was allotted to the practice of brisk walking, yoga and DASH diet.During each visit, they were reinforced to practice the LSMS and their doubts regarding their cooking method, quantity and quality of food intake etc., were clarified.
- The experimental group alone was exposed to intervention while the control group was not. The experimental group followed the intervention for 24 weeks irrespective of the time they started to follow.

Phase IV: Post test I

- The BP wasmeasured during 12 weeks by the investigator for both the groups.
- There were 141 samples of experimental group & 142 samples of control group available to get post test I conducted.

- 14 and 8 patients from the experimental and control group were excluded respectively during post test I.
- Phase V: Post test II
- The BP was measured by the investigator at 24th week both for both groups. Non compliant participants were removed from the study. There were 138 samples in the experimental group and 137 samples in the control group available for post test II. Analysis was done of the data pertaining to persons in the experimental group available for post test II.BP was measured on a fortnightly basis for the experimental group. But the measure of 12th and 24th weeks was taken for analysis. There were 13 attritions in the control group and LSMS was administered to all the patients of control group following the post test II at 24 weeks.

S. No	Pre test date	Date of introducing LSMS	Type of group	No of samples	Post test -1	Post test -2
1	01-01-2014 to 28-02-2014	-	Control	137	01-06-2014 to 31-07-2014	1-09-2014 to 31-10-2014
2	01-03-2014 to 30-06-2014	01-03-2014 to 30-06-2014	Experimental	138	1.08-2014 to 31-10-2014	01-11-2014 to 31-12-2014

 Table 3.4 Data Collection Schedule

3.17. PLAN FOR DATA ANALYSIS

The plan of analysis is given below.

Method	Type of statistics	Purpose
Descriptive Statistics	Frequency, percentage, mean, standard deviation	Assess the socio demographic clinical data and bio physiological parameters
	Paired 't' test	Compare the level of BP before and after the intervention within the groups.
		Compare the BP before and after the LSMS between the control and
	Independent 't' test	experimental group.
Inferential Statistics	RMANOVA	Identify the differences in BP within the experimental group among pretest, post test I and II.
	Chi square	Find out the association between socio demographic variables and BP.

3.18. ETHICAL CONSIDERATION

The right to self determination:

- The Research proposal was approved by the screening committee of The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R. Medical University, Chennai, Tamil Nadu.
- Institutional Ethical Committee clearance was obtained from CSI JeyarajAnnapakkiyam College of Nursing Madurai.

- Prior permission was obtained from the concerned authorities of the respective study areas before commencing the study namely, Chairman and Councilor of Vikkiravandi and Vazhudareddy of Villupuram district respectively.
- Written consent was obtained from the participants and **assurance** of confidentiality of their responses was **provided**.

The right to freedom from harm

- Though this study is an intervention design, the interventions used were non-invasive.
- A teaching program with demonstration was administered to patients. They have return demonstrated the LSMS in the **presence of** the investigator, before letting them to practice the LSMS.
- **Participants in the control group were administered LSMS after the post** test II and the effectiveness was not measured.

The right to full disclosure

Patients were advised about the voluntary nature of the study and were given the freedom to withdraw from the study at any stage without being subjected to any penalty.

The right to privacy

- Participants were informed that, the collected information was stored in the computer disc for final analysis and would be shredded after completion of the study.
- Privacy was maintained throughout the study.

CHAPTER – IV

RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

This chapter deals with the analysis and interpretation of data collected from 275 patients residing at Vikkiravandi and Vazhudareddy of Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu. Assessment of the effectiveness of the strategies of life style modification in**bringing down** blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients was the subject matter of this research work.

The data were analyzed using **the** IBM SPSS version 20 as per schedule given below.

Objective I was analyzed as follows.

- Socio demographic and clinical variables and BP were analyzed in terms of frequency and percentage.
- Analysis of pretest and posttest I and II blood pressure level, was done using mean and standard deviation.

The objective II was measured as follows.

- Paired't' test was used **for finding** the difference in mean BP before and after LSMS between experimental and control groups.
- Independent't' test was used to find the difference in mean value of BP before and after LSMS within the experimental and control groups.
- Repeated measures ANOVA was used to find out intra and inter group pre and post test I and II blood pressure, in both the experimental and control groups.

Assessment of the third objective was done as under.

• Analysis of the association between blood pressure **levels** with socio demographic clinical variables done using chi square.

The findings were organized and presented under the following sections.

Section-I:

- Distribution of samples based on their BP in their pre test.
- Distribution of samples based on their systolic and diastolic BP in pre test, post test I & II.
- Distribution of samples based on their BP observed in pre test, post test I & II.

Section II

- Mean and standard deviation of observations in pre and post test systolic BP among the experimental and the control groups
- Mean and standard deviation of pre and post test diastolic BP among experimental and control groups
- Comparison of mean difference of post test II systolic and diastolic BP between the experimental and control groups.
- Difference between the mean BP in the pre test and post test II among the experimental and control group of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.
- Comparison of pre test and post test II systolic and diastolic BP among the experimental group.
- Comparison of post test II systolic and diastolic BP between the control and experimental groups.
- Independent't' test for mean systolic BP in posttest I and II based on level of overall compliance to LSMS among experimental group.
- Independent't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I and II on level of compliance to LSMS among experimental group.
- Independent't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I and II on level of compliance to brisk walking among experimental group.
- Independent't' test for mean posttest diastolic BP in post test I and II on level of compliance of brisk walking among experimental group.
- Independent't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I and II on level of compliance to yoga among experimental group.
- Independent't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I and II on level of compliance to yoga among experimental group.
- Independent't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I and II on level of compliance to DASH diet among experimental group.
- Independent't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I and II on level of compliance to DASH diet among experimental group.

Section III

- Association between the pre test level of systolic BP in the experimental group and the selected socio demographic variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.
- Association between the pre test level of systolic BP in the control group and the selected socio demographic variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.
- Association between the pretest II level of diastolic BP in the experimental group and the selected socio demographic variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

- Association between the pretest level of diastolic BP in the control group and the selected socio demographic variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients
- Association between the post test II level of BP in the experimental group and the BMI of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.
- Association between the posttest II level of BP in the experimental group and WHR of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patient.

SECTION-I: DISTRIBUTION OF PATIENTS BASED ON THEIR SOCIO DEMOGRAPHIC AND CLINICAL VARIABLES.



Fig: 4.1.1 Percentage distribution of the experimental and control group based on age

Fig: 4.1.1 Shows the frequency and percentage distribution in the experimental and control groups on the basis of on age. It shows that, in experimental group, more than one third 52 (38 %) were in the 31-40 group, whereas 54(39%) in the control group were between 51 and 60. The mean ages of the participants in the control and the experimental groups were 49.54 and 46.20 years respectively.





Fig: 4.1.2 depicts the frequency and percentage distribution of the experimental and the control groups based on gender. In both the groups women99 (72%), 87(64%) outweighed men in the experimental and the control groups respectively.



Fig: 4.1.3 - Percentage distributions of the experimental and Control group based on education

4.1.3 Shows the percentage distribution of the experimental and control groups on the basis of education. 47 (34%) had education up to the primary school stage and 49 (36%) had education leading up to higher secondary school level. They were equal in number in the experimental group, where asin the control group the level of education was nearly equal in terms of primary 39 (28%), secondary 46 (34%) and Higher secondary 46 (34%).



Fig: 4.1.4 - Percentage distributions of the experimental and control group according to marital Status

4.1.4 displays percentage of distribution in the experimental and control group on the basis of marital status. Most of the members in both the groups were married 133(96%) and 134 (98%) for the experimental and the control groups.



Fig: 4.1.5 Percentage distributions of Experimental group and control group according to occupation.

4.1.5 depicts percentage of distribution in the experimental and control group on the basis of occupation. Homemakers 61 (44%) and laborers 52(38%), formed the majority in the experimental groups. Figure for the control group were 65 (47%) and 44 (32%) as laborers and home makers respectively.



Fig: 4.1.6 Percentage distributions of experimental group and control group according to income

4.1.6 Shows percentage of distribution in the experimental and control groups on the basis of income. About 50% of the income toss had monthly income less than Rs.10,000 (70-51%). It was 79(58%) for the control groups.



Fig: 4.1.7 Percentage distributions of experimental group and control group according to dietary pattern.

4.1.7depicts percentage distribution in the experimental and control group based on dietary Pattern. Non vegetarians were more than vegetarians in both the groups 127(92%) and 135(99%) patients in the experimental and the control groups respectively.



Fig: 4.1.8 Distribution (Percentage wise) in experimental group and control group on the basis of religion

Fig4.1.8depicts the percentage distribution in respect of the experimental and the control groups on basis of religion. Hindus were predominant in both groups.Figures were 128 (93%) or 132 (97%) in the experimental and control groups respectively.





4.1.9demonstrates the percentage distribution of the experimental and control group based on type of family. 112(81%) of patients in the experimental group and 105(77%) of control group lived in nuclear families.



Fig: 4.1.10 Distribution of persons in the groups on the basis of history of smoking, use of alcohol and family history of hypertension among experimental group.

Figure 4.1.10 explains the percentage distribution of the experimental group on the basis of history of smoking, use of alcohol and family history of hypertension. Majority of them had no history of smoking in the past (93%) and present (96%). Similarly most of them had no history of alcoholism in the past (92%) and present (91%). With respect to family history of hypertension, 92% and 90% had no history of paternal and maternal hypertension respectively.





Fig4.1.11 illustrates the distribution by way of percentage for the control group on the basis of history of smoking, alcohol use and family history of hypertension. With respect to history of smoking, 92% and 94% respectively had given the answer "no" for past and present. Likewise, the figures were 94% and 92% respectively for no history of alcoholism in the past and present. Among them 60% and 79% had no history of paternal and maternal hypertension.



Fig: 4.1.12 Comparison of mode of diagnosis for experimental group and control groups.

4.1.12 shows the distribution by way of percentage among the participants in the experimental and the control groups on the basis of mode of diagnosis. In the case of mode of diagnosis, 46(33%) patients in experimental group and 52(37%) patients in the control group had a diagnosis of hypertension through signs and symptoms while 82(60%) and 55(40%) in the experimental and the control groups respectively got diagnosed through a master health check up.



Fig: 4.1.13 Comparison of treatment prescribed for the experimental group and the control group.

4.1.13 provides details of percentage distribution in the experimental and control groups on the basis of thetreatment prescribed for the experimental group and the control groups. A majority 94(68%) in the experimental group had prescription of life style modification against 78 (57%) in the control group. The number of patients who were provided prescription of drugs were 44(32%) and 59(43) patients in experimental and control group respectively. Regarding regularity of taking drugs 33 (75%) in the experimental group and 42(71%) in the control group showed compliance to drug to the utmost extent.

TABLE 4.1.1

Distribution of samples based on their BP in the pre test

N=275

Bio physiological	Classification/	Experimental group n=138		Control group n=137	
parameters in pre test	Range	F	%	f	%
Systolic Bp	<140	2	2	45	33
	140 - 159	119	86	66	48
	160 and above	17	12	26	19
Diastolic Bp	<90	24	17	35	26
	90 – 99	80	58	88	64
	100 and above	34	25	14	10

Table 4.1.1 reveals the distribution of samples on the basis of their BP seen in the pre test, .A majority viz 119(86%) patients in the experimental, 66 (48%) patients in the control group had BP between140 and 159mmHg. The diastolic BP was between 90-99 mmHg for most 80(58%) of the patients in experimental group and 88(64%) patients in the control group.

In the pretest, none had diastolic BP <90 in both the groups. Predominantly, the diastolic BP was 90-99 mmHg holding 121 (88%) and 132 (96%) patients respectively in the experimental and the control groups.

TABLE 4.1.2

Distribution of samples based on the systolic and diastolic BP in pre test, post test I & II.

		Group				
Duration of DD	Danga	Experim	nental group	Control group		
Duration of Br	Kange	n	=138	n=137		
		f	%	f	%	
	<140	2	2	45	33	
Pre test systolic	140 - 159	119	86	66	48	
	160 and above	17	12	26	19	
	<140	72	52	60	44	
Post test I systolic	140 - 159	57	41	56	41	
	160 and above	9	7	21	15	
	<140	135	98	75	55	
Post test II systolic	140 - 159	3	2	43	31	
	160 and above	0	0	19	14	
	<90	24	17	35	26	
Pre test diastolic	90 - 99	80	58	88	64	
	100 and above	34	25	14	10	
	<90	90	65	55	40	
Post test I diastolic	90 - 99	45	33	65	48	
	100 and above	3	2	17	12	
	<90	125	91	67	49	
Post test II diastolic	90 - 99	13	9	55	40	
	100 and above	0	0.00	15	11	

N=275

Table-4.1..2 shows the level of hypertension among samples based on their systolic and diastolic BP in pre test, post test I & II in the experimental and the control groups.

With regard to the systolic BP in the pre test, a majority viz 119(86%) patients in the experimental groups,66 (48%) patients in the control group had BP between140 and 159mmHg. The diastolic BP was between 90-99 mmHg for most 80(58%) of the patients in experimental group and 88(64%) patients in the control group.

Regarding systolic BP in the post test I, a majority 72(52%) patients in the experimental group had achieved the targeted BP, but in the control group, the figure was only 60 (44%). While discussing the diastolic BP in the post test I, most of them 90 (65%) in the experimental group had target BP<90 mmHg. But, in the control group, most of them 65 (48%) had diastolic Bp above 90 mm Hg

In the post test IIs, 135(98%) patients in the experimental group and 75 (55%) patients in the control group had systolic BP<140mmHg. In the post test II, 125(91%) patients in the experimental group had achieved the targetdiastolic BP,whereas in the control group only 67(49%) patients had targeted diastolic BP.

The inference is that during pre test, none was found to have normal BP in both the groups. But, in the post test, the experimental group showed a marked reduction in BP especially in post test II compared to in post test I. But in control group there is no such reduction found between the posttest I and II.

TABLE 4.1.3

	Experimental group n=138				Cont	Control group n=137			
BP (mm/Hg)	<140/	90	≥140/	90	<140	/90	≥140/	90	
	f	%	f	%	f	%	f	%	
Pre test	0	0	138	100	0	0	137	100	
Post test I	85	62	53	38	31	22	108	78	
Post test II	124	90	14	10	45	32	94	68	

Distribution of samples based on their BP in pre test, post test I & II

N=275

Table 4.1.3 shows the distribution of samples based on BP in pre test, post test I & II in the experimental and the control groups. A majority 85(62%) of patients in the experimental group had achieved the target BP, while the figure was just one fourth in the control group 31(22%).

The Inference is that the number of patients found to have hypertension above 140/90 mmHg in the control group is higher in post test I conducted at the end of 12 weeks after the intervention compared to the experimental group. In the post test II the number of patients having normal BP is significant in the experimental group while compared to control group. This reflects the effectiveness of intervention.



Fig: 4.1.14 Distribution of patients based on their post test I & II level of BP in the experimental and the control groups.

As per Table 4.1.14 In pretest, none of them had BP <140/90mmHg in both groups. The experimental group showed 62% and 90% of patients achieved targeted BP <140/90mmHg in post test I&II respectively.

There were only 22% and 32% of patients in the control group attained BP <140/90mmHg respectively in post test I&II.

SECTION II

TABLE 4.2.1

Mean and Standard Deviation of pre and posttest Systolic BP among the experimental and the control groups

N=275

period of systolic BP	experimental n=138		Control n=137		
	Mean	SD	Mean	SD	
Pre test	145.80	15.38	143.67	11.00	
Post testI	127.90	16.88	140.07	7.09	
Post test II	122.61	16.29	137.99	4.88	
* P<0.05					

Table 4.2.1 depicts the mean and standard deviation of pre and posttest systolic BP among the experimental and the control groups pre and post test I and II mean systolic BP in the experimental and control group. The mean pretest systolic BP in experimental and control group were145.80 (SD15.38) and 143.67 (SD 11) respectively. The mean systolic BP in post test I was 127.90(SD16.88), and 140.07(SD 7.09), in the experimental and the control groups respectively. The mean post test II systolic BP was 122.61(SD16.29), and 137.99(SD 4.88), in the experimental and the control groups respectively.

The inference that there is gradual reduction in systolic BP in the experimental group from pre test to post test I and II whereas, in the control group, there is no such significant reduction in BP. So the result was attributed to LSMS.



Fig: 4.1.15 Comparison of Systolic BP in three periods

Figure 4.1.15 depicts the mean systolic BP among the experimental and control groups in pre test and post test I&II. The reduction in BP was significant from pretest to posttest I&II in the experimental group as revealed by the mean systolic BP of 146,128 and 123mmHg respectively. But this significance was not found in the control group as evidenced by the mean systolic BP of 144,140 and 138mmHg respectively in pre,post test I&II.

Mean and Standard Deviation of pre and post test diastolic BP among experimental and control group

N=275

Table 4.2.2 portrays the mean and standard deviation of pre and post test diastolic BP among experimental and control groups.Mean diastolic BP in pre test, post test I and II in the experimental group is 90.65, 83.55 and 80.65 with SD being 8.30, 5.51 and 3.24 respectively whereas, the mean diastolic BP in pre test, post test I and II was 93.88, 88.20 and 86.23 with SD being 13.11, 12.98 and 14.19 respectively in the control group.

We can infer that experimental group showed, the gradual reduction of diastolic BP from pre to post test II which is not so evident in the control group.



Fig: 4.1.16 Comparison of diastolic BP in pre, posttest I& post II among experimental and the control groups.

Figure 4.1.16 portrays the comparison of diastolic BP in pre, post I& post II among experimental and the control groups. The diastolic BP in the experimental group was 91,84 &81mmHg in pre, post I&II respectively which was statistically significant. The diastolic BP in the control group was 94,88,86mmHg respectively in the pre, post I&II which is not significant.

Comparison of mean difference of post test II based on systolic BP and diastolic BP between experimental and control group

N=275

Cumulative MeanPOST
TEST II
BPexperimental
(n=138)control
(n=137)Mean
differencet valueP valueSystolic132.10140.66
$$8.56^*$$
 5.48 p<0.001Diastolic84.9589.33 4.38^* 3.52 p<0.001

Table 4.2.3 shows the cumulative mean difference of systolic and diastolic BP between the experimental and control group.

The posttest II mean systolic BP in the experimental group was seen as132.10, but in the control group it was 140.66, the mean difference was seen as 8.56and the tvalue is 5.48 which is statistically significant at 0.001 level. The results draw disagreement of the null hypothesis and acceptance of the research hypothesis.

Similarly, the posttest II mean diastolic BP in the experimental group was 84.95 while it was 89.33 in the control group, the mean difference was 4.38 and the t-value is 3.52 which is statistically significant at 0.001 level. The proven difference helps the researcher to agree the research hypothesis H₂.That there is no significant difference in posttest II mean Systolic BP between the experimental and control group.

112

Difference between the mean BP in Pretest and Posttest II among the control group of the newly diagnosed hypertensive Patients.

(N	=1.	37)
1 + 1		.,

Bio		Contr	ol Group	Mean	Paired	Р-	
physiological	Pre	e test	Post t	est II	Difference	't'-	value
parameters	Mean	SD	Mean	SD		value	vulue
SBP	143.67	15.38	137.99	16.29	5.68	1.46	NS
DBP	93.88	13.11	86.23	14.19	7.65	2.73	< 0.01

Table 4.2.4 presents the comparative mean of pre and post test II BP in Control group.

The above table reveals, the pretest and post test II mean systolic BP in control group as 143.67 [SD 15.28], and 137.99 [SD 16.29] respectively with the mean difference of 5.68 and t' value of 1.46 which is statistically not significant. The above findings make the investigator to adopt the research hypothesis.

With regard to diastolic BP in control group, the pretest and the posttest II mean figures are 93.88 [SD 13.11], and 86.23[SD 14.19] respectively. The mean difference of 7.65 and the 't'value is 2.73 is statistically significant at 0.05 level. The result of the study confirms, the significant difference between the pretest and the posttest II mean value of diastolic BP in the control group. Even though there is statistically significant difference in pre and post test of diastolicBP in control group, it is not clinically significant.

Comparison of pre test&post test II diastolic and systolic BP among experimental group.

Period of BP	experime	ental Group	Mean difference	Paired 't' value
	Mean	S D	_	
Pretest systolic	145.80	11.00	23.19	
Posttest II systolic	122.61	4.88		19.68**
Pretest diastolic	90.65	8.30	10.0	
Posttest II diastolic	80.65	3.24		9.46**
*p<0.001				

Table 4.2.5 shows the comparison of pre test&post test II systolic and diastolic BP among experimental group.

The above table reveals, the mean systolic BP of experimental group in the pretest was 145.80 [SD 11], the posttest II was 122.61 [SD 4.88], the mean difference was 23.19 and 't'-value was 19.68 which is statistically significant at 0.05 level. In the same way, the pretest mean diastolic BP, in the experimental group, it was 90.65 [SD 8.30], in the pretest and 80.65 [SD 3.24] in the posttest. The mean difference is 10mmHg and the t-value is 9.46 which are statistically significant. The result reveals a significant difference between the pretest and the posttest II mean SBP in the experimental group. No support for the null hypothesis is seen from the above findings. The researcher is drivento accept the research hypothesis.

Inference:

The obvious reduction in systolic and diastolic BP in post test II is brought out by the life style modification strategies adopted by the experimental group at the level of P <0.05.The reduction in the systolic and diastolic BP after treatment is believed is seen as the result of the influence as reported by Wilkins K et al in their study on hypertension among clients in Canada that differs by age and sex. Similarly Tripathi S K found there was high BP among the non vegetarian. He feels that high sodium intake may be attributed to be the cause.



Fig: 4.1.17 Difference in pre and post test II systolic BP in experimental group

Fig: 4.1.17 reveals the difference in pre and post test II systolic BP in experimental group. There was reduction of 24 mm Hg of systolic BP in the experimental group from pre test (146 mm Hg) to post test (122 mm Hg). The reduction in diastolic BP was 10 mm Hg from pre to post test II viz., 91 to 81 mm Hg in the experimental group.

				Γ	N=275
POST TEST II BP	experimental (n=138)		control	- 't'	
	Mean	SD	Mean	SD	value
Systolic BP	122.61	4.88	138.10	16.29	11.73*
Diastolic BP	80.65	3.34	88.23	14.19	8.08 **

Comparison of post test II systolic and diastolic BP between the control and the experimental groups.

* P<0.05* P<0.001

Table 4.2.6 provides acomparison of post test II systolic and diastolic BP between the control and experimental groups.

Significant difference in systolic BP in the posttest II between the two groups is shown by the above table, as evidenced by the values of 122.61 and 138.10 and the t-value 11.73 which is significant at the level of 0.05 rejects the null hypothesis and confirms the research hypothesis.

In the same way, the posttest II mean diastolic BP in the experimental group was 80.65 [SD 3.34], the posttest mean diastolic BP in the control group was 88.23 [SD 14.19], and the 't'-value was 8.08 which is statistically significant. Therefore the researcher agrees with the research hypothesis that there is no significant difference is seen between the posttest II mean systolic and diastolic BP in the experimental and the control groups".



Fig: 4.1.18 Difference in posttest II systolic BP of experimental and control group

Fig: 4.1.18 exposes the difference in posttest II systolic BP of experimental and control groups. The posttest II BP in the experimental group was 123 mm Hg where as it was 138 mm Hg in the control group. The posttest II diastolic BP was 81 and 88 mm Hg in the experimental and control group respectively.

The inference is that there is a great difference between the systolic and diastolic BP of post test II between the experimental and the control groups. The above said null hypothesis is rejected and research hypothesis is accepted as revealed by Soroush that systolic BP was based on number of steps of brisk walking per day expressing linear relationship. The LSMS have brought changes in the life style of patients as it is assessed by annexure N. The significant difference between both the groups was established by Cohen that multi component life style changes reduced BP significantly in addition to administration of minimal medication.

Independent 't' test for mean systolic BP in posttest I Vs II based on level of overall compliance to LSMS among experimental group

				Ν	V=138
Duration	Level of	Ν	Mean	SD	ʻt'
Duration	compliance				test
	Moderate practice	28	130.71	6.04	2.52*
Pretest I	Adequate practice	110	127.46	7.095	
	Moderate practice	28	124.64	5.76	2.23*
Post test II	Adequate practice	110	122.09	5.76	

* P<0.001

Table 4.2.7 shows the comparison of posttest I and II mean systolic BP between the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group.

The above table reveals the posttest I and II mean systolic BP between the moderate practice (n= 28) and adequate practice (n=110)participants in experimental group. The mean posttest I systolic BP was 130.71, 127.46 [SD 6.04., 7.095] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice participants in the experimental group. Similarly, the mean systolic BP in posttest II are 124.64, 122.09 [SD 5.76., 5.76] respectively among the moderate practice practice and the adequate practice participants in the experimental group. The obtained t value drives the researcher to accept the research hypothesis than to reject the null hypothesis.

Independent 't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of overall compliance to LSMS among Experimental group

Duration	Level compliance	of	N	Mean	SD	't' test
Pretest I	Moderate practice		28	87.14	5.35	4.01*
Tietest T	Adequate practice		110	82.64	5.19	
Post test II	Moderate practice		28	82.86	4.60	2.69*
Post test II	Adequate practice		110	80.46	2.09	

N=138

* P<0.05

Table 4.2.8 shows the comparison of posttest I and II mean diastolic BP based on overall compliance to LSMS in the experimental group. "There is a significant difference between the moderate practice and the Adequate practice groups" to LSMS in the reduction in BP in the experimental group as H₀ ₂. The above table reveals, the posttest I and II mean DBP between the moderate practice (n= 28) and adequate practice (n=110) group in the experimental group. This means DBP II is 87.14 and 82.64 [SD 5.35., 5.19] and DBP III are 82.86, 80.46 respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice participants in the experimental group. The calculated t-value is 4.01 and 2.69. This is a statistically considerable result, So H₂ is accepted.

Independent 't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of compliance to brisk walking among Experimental group

Duration	Level of compliance	Ν	Mean	SD	ʻt' value
Dretest I	Moderate practice	24	130.83	5.84	2.12*
Pretest I	Adequate practice	114	127.54	7.11	
D	Moderate practice	24	124.58	5.88	2.41*
Post test II	Adequate practice	114	122.19	4.56	

N=138

* P<0.05

Table 4.2.9 shows the comparison of posttest I and II mean systolic BP between the participants of moderate practice and adequate practice to brisk walking in the experimental group. The H₀ is stated as "There is no significant difference between the moderate practice and adequate practice participants to LSMS in the reduction in BP in the experimental group". The above table reveals the posttest I and II mean systolic BP between the moderate practice (n= 24) and adequate practice (n=114) in the experimental group. The mean systolic BP I are 130.83 and 127.54 [SD 5.84., 7.11] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice participants in the experimental group. Equally, the means SBP II are 124.58 and 122.19 [SD 5.88., 4.56 respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice group in the experimental group. The value of independent t- is 2.12 and 2.41 in I and II of post test, which is statistically noteworthy and hence H₂ is accepted.

Independent 't' test for mean posttest diastolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of
compliance of brisk walking among experimental group

Duration	Level of compliance	N	Mean	SD	't' test
Pretest I	Moderate practice	24	82.92	4.64	3.81*
	Adequate practice	114	80.53	2.24	
Post test II	Moderate practice	24	87.08	5.50	3.49*
	Adequate practice	114	82.81	5.24	

N=138

* P<0.05

Table 4.2.10 shows the comparison of post test I and II mean diastolic BP between the participants of moderate practice and adequate practice among the experimental group.

The above table reveals, the post test I and II mean diastolic BP between the moderate practice (n= 28) and adequate practice (n=110) participants in the experimental group. The mean pretest I diastolic BP are 82.92, 80.53 [SD 4.64., 2.24] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice participants in the experimental group. Correspondingly, the mean post test II diastolic BP are 87.08, 82.81 [SD 5.50. 5.24] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group. Both the said measures are statically outstanding enabling acceptance of H₂.

Independent 't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of compliance to Yoga among experimental group

N=138

Duration	Level of compliance	Ν	Mean	SD	't' test
Pretest I	Moderate practice	29	130.34	6.26	1.95*
	Adequate practice	109	127.52	7.095	
Post test II	Moderate Adequate practice	29	124.48	5.72	2.37*
	Adequate practice	109	122.11	4.53	

* P<0.05

Table 4.2.11 shows the comparison of post test I and II means SBP between the moderate practice and Adequate practice participants in the experimental group.

The above table reveals, the post test I and II mean SBP between the moderate practice (n= 28) and Adequate practice (n=110) participants in the experimental group. The means SBP I are 130.34, 127.52 [SD 6.26., 7.095] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice group in the experimental group. In the same way, the means SBP II are 124.48, 122.11 [SD 5.72., 4.53] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group. The values of independent t are 2.519 and 2.232 respectively of the former and the latter group which is statistically considerable at 0.05 levels. Hence the H₂ is agreed that the level of BP is lower among those who are highly adequate practice to LSMS compared to those who do not.

Independent 't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of compliance to Yoga among experimental group

					N=13
Duration	Level of compliance	Ν	Mean	SD	't' test
Pretest I	Moderate practice	29	82.76	4.55	3.95*
	Adequate practice	109	80.46	2.10	
Post test II	Moderate practice	29	86.89	5.41	3.86*
	Adequate practice	109	82.66	5.21	

* P<0.05

Table 4.2.12 shows the comparison of post test I and II mean diastolic BP between the moderate practice and adequate practice participants in yoga among the experimental group.

This table reveals, the post test I and II mean diastolic BP between the moderate practice (n= 24) and adequate practice (n=114) in experimental group. The means DBP I are 82.76 and 80.46 [SD 4.55., 2.10] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group. Likewise, the mean diastolic BP II are 86.89 and 82.66 [SD 5.41, 5.21] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group. The values of independent's' are 3.95 and 3.86 for former and later said group respectively at 95% confidence interval suggesting the desirability of accepting the H₂ that the level of BP will be lower among those who Adequate practice to LSMS than those who do not.
TABLE 4.2.13

Independent 't' test for mean systolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of compliance to DASH diet among experimental group

					N=138
Duration	Level of compliance	Ν	Mean	SD	't' test
Duotost I	Moderate practice	25	130.80	5.72	2.15*
Pretest I	Adequate practice	113	127.52	7.14	
Post test II	Moderate practice	25	124.80	5.86	2.52*
	Adequate practice	113	122.12	4.52	2.53*

* P<0.001

Table 4.2.13 shows the comparative mean post test I and II of systolic BP between the moderate practice and adequate practice participants in the experimental group.

The above table reveals, the post test I and II mean systolic BP between the moderate practice (n= 25) and adequate practice (n=113) group in experimental group. The mean systolic BP in post test I are 130.80, 127.52 [SD 5.72., 7.14] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group. Similarly, the means systolic BP II are 124.80, 122.12 [SD 5.86., 4.52] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group. The values of independent t are 2.519 and 2.232 respectively for moderate practice and adequate practice groups which is statistically (P < 0.05) a remarkable result. It supports the hypothesis H₂ that the level of BP is lower among those who are highly done adequate practice to LSMS compared those who do not.

TABLE 4.2.14

Null hypothesis

"There is no significant difference between the moderate practice and adequate practice group" to LSMS in the reduction in diastolic BP in the experimental group

Independent 't' test for mean diastolic BP in post test I Vs II on level of compliance to DASH diet among experimental group

				N	=138
Duration	Level of compliance	Ν	Mean	SD	't' test
Pretest I	Moderate practice	25	82.80	4.58	3.66*
	Adequate practice	113	80.53	2.25	
Post test II	Moderate practice	25	87.20	5.42	3.84*
	Adequate practice	113	82.74	5.23	

* P<0.001

Table 4.2.14 show the comparison of post test I and II mean diastolic BP between the moderate practice and adequate practice participants among the experimental group.

The above table reveals that, the post test I and II mean diastolic BP between the moderate practice (n= 25) and adequate practice (n=113) in the experimental group. The mean diastolic BP I are 82.80, 80.53 [SD 4.58., 2.25] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice groups in the experimental group. The values of independent t are 3.66, indicate that, intervention as effective to lower the BP at 95 % of the confidence interval. Similarly, diastolic BP II mean figures are 87.20, 82.74 [SD 5.42., 5.23] respectively among the moderate practice and adequate practice in the experimental group. The calculated t-value is 3.84which is statistically significant at 0.05 level.

TABLE 4.3.1

Association between pre test level of systolic BP in the experimental group and the selected socio demographic variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients

		Exper		p value				
Socio demographic		Pre tes	chi square					
variables	<	140	140-159		160 & Above		- square	value
	f %		f %		f %		-	
I. Age in years							6.51	.164
1.31-40	2	1.4	44	31.9	6	4.3		
2.41-50	0	0.0	38	27.5	3	2.2		
3.51-60	0	0.0	36	26.1	9	6.5		
II. Gender								
1. Men	0	0.0	30	21.7	9	6.5	5.452	.065
2. Women	2	1.4	88	63.8	9	6.5		
III. Education								
1.Primary	0	0.0	41	29.7	6	0	8.866	.181
2.Secondary	2	1.4	25	18.1	6	2		
3.Higher Secondary	0	0.0	43	31.2	6	0		
4.Graduate Level	0	0.0	9	6.5	0	0		
IV. Marital status								
1.Married	2	1.4	114	82.6	17	12.3	.728	.948
2.Widow	0	0.0	3	2.2	1	.7		
3.Divorced/Separated	0	0	1	0.7	0	0		

Socio	Expe	rimenta		chi	р			
demographic	Pre t	est syste	square	value				
variables	<140		14	0-159	160 &	Above		
	f	%	f	%	f	%		
5. occupation								
1.Labour	1	.7	47	34.1	4	2.9	4.606	.799
2.Business	0	0.0	16	11.6	5	3.6		
3.Health	0	0.0	3	2.2	0	0.0		
Professional								
4.Non Health	0	0.0	1	.7	0	0.0		
professional								
5.Home maker	1	.7	51	37.0	9	6.5		
6.Income								
1.Up to Rs	1	.7%	65	47.1	4	2.9	10.692	.098
10000/-								
2.Rs 10001- Rs	1	.7	35	25.4	9	6.5		
20000/-								
3.Rs 20001- Rs	0	0.0	12	8.7	5	3.6		
30000/-								
4.Above Rs	0	0.0	6	4.3	0	0.0		
30000/-								
7.Religion	-							
1.Hindu	2	1.4	109	79.0	17	12.3	.847	.991
2.Christian	0	0.0	3	2.2	0	0.0		
3.Muslim	0	0.0	5	3.6	1	.7		
4.Others	0	0.0	1	.7	0	0.0		
8.Type of family								
1.Nuclear	2	1.4	93	67.4	17	12.3	2.967	.227
2.Joint	0	0.0	25	18.1	1	.7		
9. History of Smo	oking							
1.past							1.10	0.29
1.Yes	0	0.0	7	5.1	3	2.2	2.026	242
2.No	2	1.4	111	80.4	15	10.9	2.836	272
2.present								
1.Yes	0	0.0	2	1.4	3	2.2	10.102	.006
2.No	2	1.4	116	84.1	15	10.9		

Socio			Expe	rimental	group 1	n = 138			
demographic			Pre test	systolic l	3P in m	mHg	chi	p value	
variables	1	30-139	14)-159	160 a	nd above	- square		
	f	%	f	%	f	%	-		
10.History of a	lcoho	ol							
1.Past									
1.Yes	0	0.0	6	4.3	5	3.6			
2.No	2	1.4	112	81.2	13	9.4	11.140	.004 *	
2.present									
1.Yes	0	0.0	8	5.8	5	3.6			
2.No	2	1.4	110	79.7	13	9.4	8.281	.016 *	
11. Family hist	tory o	of hyperte	nsion						
1.Paternal									
1.Not	C	1 /	100	79.2	17	122			
applicable	Z	1.4	108	/0.5	1 /	12.5			
2. degree of	0	0.0	10	7.2	1	.7			
relationship	Ũ	0.0	10	,	-	.,	.357	.836	
3. degree of	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0			
A degree of									
relationshin	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0			
2 Maternal									
1.Not			106	76.8					
applicable	2	1.4			16	11.6			
2. degree of			10	7.2					
relationship	0	0.0			2	1.4	665	995	
3. degree of	_		1	.7	_		.005	.)))	
relationship	0	0.0	1	7	0	0.0			
4. degree of	0	0.0	1	.7	0	0.0			
12 Mode of di	U agno	0.0 sis			0	0.0			
	agnu	313							
1.sign and									
symptom of	0	0.0	40	29.0	6	4.3		0.12	
hypertension								0.12	
2.Master	2	1.4	69	50.0	11	8.0			
checkup	-	1.1	1	-		0.0			
3.others	0	0.0	l	.7	0	0.0			

13.Treatment

prescribed								
1.life style	r	1 /	82	59.4	10	7.2		200
modification	Ζ	1.4			10	1.2	2 2 4 7	.309
2.Drugs	0	0.0	36	26.1	8	5.8	2.347	
If on drugs, lev	el of	complianc	e					
Compliant	0	0.0	34	24.6	7	5.1		
Partially			84	60.9			1.617	.446
compliant	2	1.4			11	8.0		

Table 4.3.1 shows the association between pretest level of systolic BP in experimental group and the socio demographic variables of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients. It is inferred that there is an association between pretest level of SBP in experimental group and the selected socio demographic variables such as present history of smoking (chi square =10.102, p<0.06),and history of alcoholism past(chi square =11.140, p<.004) and present (chi square =8.281, p<0.016). On account of that H₃ is accepted that there is association between history of smoking, alcoholism and BP.

TABLE 4.3.2

The null hypothesis is stated as follows. There is no significant association between pretest level of SBP in experimental group and the selected socio demographic variables.

Association Between the Pre test level of SBP in the control group and the selected socio demographic variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients

Sasia		(Control	group (n	=137)			
Socio		Pre	test sys	tolic Bp i	n mmH	g	chi	
demographic	130-139		14	140-159		and above	square	p value
variables	f	%	f	%	f	%	-	
1.Age in years								
1.3-40	9	6.6	22	16.1	3	2.2		
2.41-50	16	11.7	19	13.9	14	10.2	8.35	0.08
3.51-60	20	14.6	26	19.0	8	5.8		
2. Gender								
1. Men	18	13.1	27	19.7	5	3.6	2 502	0.16
2. Women	27	19.7	40	29.2	20	14.6	5.392	599
3.Education								
1.Primary	11	8.0	19	13.9	9	6.6	2 665	850
2.Secondary	14	10.2	23	16.8	9	6.6	2.003	.830
3.Higher			23	16.8				
Secondary	17	12.4			6	4.4		
4.Graduate Level	3	2.2	2	1.5	1	.7		
4.Marital status								
1.Married	44	32.1	65	47.4	25	18.2		
2.Widow	1	.7	2	1.5	0	0.0	750	695
3.Divorced/Sepa	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	./38	.083
rated	U	0.0	U	0.0	U	0.0		

n=137

continued

Socio demographic variables	Contr Pre to	rol grouj est systoli	p (n=13' ic value	7)	chi squa re	p value		
	13	0-139	140)-159	160 a	nd above	_	
	f	%	f	%	f	%	-	
5.Occupation								
1.Labourer	21	15.3	32	23.4	12	8.8		
2.Business	10	7.3	10	7.3	4	2.9		
3.Health Professional	0	0.0	1	.7	0	0.0	7 1 4 9	0.521
4.Non Health			1	.7			/.148	0.321
Professional	0	0.0			2	1.5		
5.Home maker	14	10.2	23	16.8	7	5.1		
6.Income								
1.Up to Rs 10000/-	26	19.0	38	27.7	15	10.9		
2.Rs 10001- Rs 20000/-	10	7.3	21	15.3	10	7.3	7 726	250
3.Rs 20001- Rs 30000/-	5	3.6	3	2.2	0	0.0	1.120	.239
4.Above Rs 30000	4	2.9	5	3.6	0	0.0		
7.Religion								
1.Hindu	43	31.4	64	46.7	25	18.2		
2.Christian	1	.7	1	.7	0	0.0	1.328	.857
3.Muslim	1	.7	2	1.5	0	0.0		
8.Type of family								
1.Nuclear	36	26.3	51	37.2	18	13.1	0 505	742
2.Joint	9	6.6	16	11.7	7	5.1	0.393	./43
9. History of Smoking								
1.past								
1.Yes	5	3.6	5	3.6	1	.7	1 1 5 9	561
2.No	40	29.2	62	45.3	24	17.5	1.136	.301
2.present								
1. Yes	2	1.5	6	4.4	0	0.0		
2. No	43	31.4	61	44.5	25	18.2	2.893	.235

continued

Socio demographic	Cont Pre t	rol grou est systo	ıp (n=1 lic BP	[37) in mm]	Hg 160 or	dahaya	chi square	p value
variables	<u>130-</u> f	<u>0/</u>	140-1 f 0	<u>159</u>	<u>100 an</u> f	<u>u above</u>	-	
	1	70	1 /	/0		/0		
10. History of al	coholi	sm						
1.past								
1.Yes	2	1.5	5	3.6	1	.7	0 (24	720
2.No	43	31.4	62	45.3	24	17.5	0.634	./28
2.present	_	-						
1.Yes	3	2.2	6	4.4	2	1.5	0 101	000
2.No	42	30.7	61	44.5	23	16.8	0.191	.909
11. Family histo	ry of h	yperten	sion					
1.paternal	·							
1.Not	24	175	40	20.7	16	11 7		
applicable	24	17.5	42	30.7	16	11./		
2.1 degree	7	5 1	12	0.5	4	2.0		
relative	/	3.1	13	9.5	4	2.9	2 201	770
3.2 degree	12	0.5	11	0.0	5	26	3.291	.//2
relative	13	9.5	11	8.0	3	3.0		
4.3 degree	1	7	1	7	0	0.0		
relative	1	/	1	./	0	0.0		
2.Maternal								
1.Not	25	25.5	55	40.1	10	12.0		
applicable	55	23.3	55	40.1	19	13.9		
2.1 degree	7	5 1	6	1 1	5	26		
relative	/	3.1	0	4.4	3	5.0	5 286	509
3.2 degree	r	15	6	1 1	1	7	5.280	.308
relative	2	1.3	0	4.4	1	./		
4.3 degree	1	7	0	0.0	0	0.0		
relative	1	/	0	0.0	0	0.0		
12.Mode of diag	gnosis							
1.sign and								
symptom	16	117	24	175	12	8.8	8.775	.187
of hypertension	10	11./	27	17.5				
2.master	22	16.1	21	153	10	73		
checkup		10.1	21	15.5	10	1.5		
3.others	3	2.2	8	5.8	2	1.5		
13.Treatment								
prescribed								
1.Life style	5	36	3	22	1	7	2 2 5 9	323
modification	5	5.0	5	2.2	1	• /	<i>L.L.J</i>	.545
2.Drugs	40	29.2	64	46.7	24	17.5		
If on drugs level	l of cor	npliance		_			_	_
Compliant	30	21.9	39	28.5	19	13.9	2.681	0.26
Partially	15	10.9	28	20.4	6	4.4		1709
compliant								

Table 4.3.2 shows the association between pretest level of systolic BP in control group and the socio demographic variables of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

It is shown that there is no association between pretest level of systolic BP in control group and the selected socio demographic variable.

TABLE 4.3.3

Association Between the Pre test level of SBP in the control group and the selected socio demographic Variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients

		Exper	imenta	l group	n=138			
Socio demographic		Pre te	st diast	st diastolic in mmHg				n valua
variables	130-139		140-159		160 and above		square	p value
	f	%	f	%	f	%		
1.Age in years								
1.3-40	47	34.1	5	3.6	0	0.0	0.77	.680
2.41-50	36	26.1	5	3.6	0	0.0		
3.51-60	42	30.4	3	2.2	0	0.0		
2. Gender								
1. Men	36	26.1	3	2.2	0	0.0	0.190	.663
2. Women	89	64.5	10	7.2	0	0.0		
3.Education								
1.Primary	44	31.9	3	2.2	0	0.0	0.856	.836
2.Secondary	29	21.0	4	2.9	0	0.0		
3. Higher Secondary	44	31.9	5	3.6	0	0.0		
4.Graduate Level	8	5.8	1	.7	0	0.0		
4.Marital status								
1.Married	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	.540	.764
2.Widow	120	87.0	13	9.4	0	0.0		
3.Divorced/Separated	4	2.9	0	0.0	0	0.0		

Socio demographic variables	Exj Pret	Experimental group n=138 <u>Pretest diastolic BP in mmHg</u> 130-140 140-160			chi square	p value	_	
	130-1	40	140-16	0	Above 1	60	_	
	f	%	f	%	f	%		
5.Occupation								
1.Labourer	43	31.2	9	6.5	0	0	6.190	.185
2.Business	20	14.5	1	.7	0	0		
3.Health Professional	3	2.2	0	0.0	0	0		
4.Non Health	1	.7	0	0.0	0	0		
Professional								
5.Home maker	58	42.0	3	2.2	0	0		
6.Income								
1.Up to Rs 10000/-	62	44.9	8	5.8	0	0.0	1.349	.717
2.Rs 10001- Rs	42	30.4	3	2.2	0	0.0		
20000/-								
3.Rs 20001- Rs	16	11.6	1	.7	0	0.0		
30000/-								
4.Above Rs 30000	5	3.6	1	.7	0	0.0		
8.Religion								
1.Hindu	117	84.8	11	8.0	0	0.0	2.586	.460
2.Christian	2	1.4	1	.7	0	0.0		
3.Muslim	5	3.6	1	.7	0	0.0		
9.Type of family								
1.Nuclear	99	71.7	13	9.4	0	0.0	3.332	.068
2.Joint	26	18.8	0	0.0	0	0.0		
10. History of								
Smoking								
1.past								
1.Yes	9	6.5	1	.7	0	0.0	0.004	.948
2.No	116	84.1	12	8.7	0	0.0		
2.present								
1. Yes	5	3.6	0	0.0	0	0.0	0.540	.463
2. No	120	87.0	13	9.4	0	0.0		

Socio		Experii Pretest d		chi	p value			
demographic variables	130-139		140-159			160 and above		
-	f	%	f	%	f	%	-	
11.History of a	lcoholisn	n						
1.past								
1.Yes	10	7.2	1	.7	0	0.0	0.002	.969
2.No	115	83.3	12	8.7	0	0.0		
2.present								
1.Yes	12	8.7	1	.7	0	0.0	0.050	.823
2.No	113	81.9	12	8.7	0	0.0		
12. Family histo	ory of hy	pertension	l					
1.paternal		-						
1.Not	115	83.3	12	8.7	0	0.0	.002	.969
applicable								
2.1 degree	10	7.2	1	.7	0	0.0		
relative								
3.2 degree	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0		
relative								
4.3 degree	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0		
relative								
2.Maternal								
1.Not	112	81.2	12	8.7%	0	0.0	.234	.972
applicable								
2.1 degree	11	8.0	1	.7	0	0.0		
relative								
3.2 degree	1	.7	0	0.0	0	0.0		
relative								
4.3 degree	1	.7	0	0.0	0	0.0		
relative								
13.Mode of dia	ignosis							
1.sign and	43	31.2	3	2.2	0	0.0	0.820	.845
symptom								
of								
hypertension								
2.master	73	52.9	9	6.5	0	0.0		
checkup								
3.others	9	6.5	1	0.7	0	0.0		

14.Trea	tment							
prescril	bed							
1.Life	style	86	62.3	8	5.8	0	0.0 0.286	.593
modifica	ation							
2.Drugs		39	28.3	5	3.6	0	0.0	
If on dr	ugs level	l of comp	liance					
Complia	int	35	25.4	6	4.3	0	0.0 1.858	.173
Partially	7	90	65.2	7	5.1	0	0.0	
complia	nt							

Table 4.3.3 shows the association between pretest level of systolic BP in control group and the socio demographic variables of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

There is no association between pretest level of diastolic BP in experimental group and the selected socio demographic variables.

TABLE 4.3.4 Association between pre test level of diastolic BP in the experimental group and the selected socio demographic variables of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients

n=137

Socio demographic		Co	chi	n				
variables		Pre te	square	p value				
-	<90		9()-99	100 &	Above	_	
	f	%	f	%	f	%		
1. Age in years							4.98	0.289
1.31-40	6	4.4	16	11.7	12	8.8		
2.41-50	9	6.6	21	15.	19	13.9		
3.51-60	3	2.2	25	18.2	26	19.0		
2. Gender								
1. Men	8	5.8	21	15.3	21	15.3	0.678	0.712
2. Women	10	7.3	41	29.9	36	26.3		
3. Education								
1.Primary	7	5.1	14	10.2	18	13.1	4.899	.557
2.Secondary	4	2.9	21	15.3	21	15.3		
3.Higher Secondary	7	5.1	23	16.8	16	11.7		
4.Graduate Level	0	0.0	4	2.9	2	1.5		
4. Marital status								
1.Married	18	13.1	60	43.8	56	40.9	.764	.682
2.Widow	0	.0	2	1.5	1	0.7		
3.Divorced/ Separated	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0		

		Co	ntrol g	group	(n=137))		chi	n volue
Socio demographic		squa re	p value						
variables	<90		90-99			100	& Above		
	f	%	f		%	f	%		
5. occupation									
1.Labour	8	5.8	2	25	18.2	32	23.4	9.598	.294a,c
2.Business	3	2.2	1	13	9.5	8	5.8		
3.Health Professional	0	0.0		1	.7	0	0.0		
4.Non Health	0	0.0		0	.0	3	2.2		
5.Home maker	7	5.1	<u>,</u>	23	16.8	14	10.2		
6.Income	,	J.1	4	-0	10.0	11	10.2		
Up to Rs 5000/-	48	35.0		23	16.8	8	5.8	####	.018*
Rs 5001- Rs	16	11.7	1	19	13.9	6	4.4		
Rs 10001- Rs 15000/-	2	1.5		2	1.5	4	2.9		
Above Rs 15000	6	4.4		2	1.5	1	.7		
7.Religion									
1.Hindu	17	12.4	6	1	44.5	54	39.4	3.097	.542
2.Christian	0	.0	1		.7	1	0.7		
3.Muslim	1	.7	0		0.0	2	1.5		
4.Others	0	0.0	0		0.0	0	0.0		
8.Type of family									
1.Nuclear	10	7.3	4	9	35.8	46	33.6	5.193	.075
2.Joint	8	5.8	1.	3	9.5	11	8.0		
9. History of Smol	king								
1.past	-							3.176	.204
1.Yes	0	0.0	4	2.9	7		5.1	2826	242
2.No	18	13.1	58	42.3	50		36.5	2.030	_ · _
2.present									<i></i>
1.Yes	1	0.7	2	1.5	5		3.6	1.664	.435
2.No	17	12.4	60	43.8	52		38.0		

c •								
Socio demographic		Pr	e test dias	tolic BP	in m	mHg	chi –	n value
variables	<90		90-99		100	& Above	– square –	F
	f	%	f	%	f	%		
10.History of alco	hol							
1.Past								
1.Yes	0	0.0	3	2.2	5	3.6	2.121	.346
2.No	18	13.1	59	43.1	52	38.0		
2.present								
1.Yes	1	0.7	6	4.4	4	2.9	0.456	.796
2.No	17	12.4	56	40.9	53	38.7		
11. Family history	y of hypert	ension						
1.Paternal								
1.Not applicable	2	1.4	108	78.3	17	12.3	6.366	.383
2. degree of relationship	0	0.0	10	7.2	1	.7		
3. degree of relationship	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0		
4. degree of relationship	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0		
2.Maternal								
1.Not applicable	14	10.2	53	38.7	42	30.7%	7.212	.302
2. degree of relationship	4	2.9	5	3.6	9	6.6%		
3. degree of relationship	0	0.0	3	2.2	6	4.4%		
4. degree of relationship	0	.0	1	0.7	0	0.0%		
12. Mode of diagr	nosis							
1.sign and							6.887	0.331
symptom of	4	2.9	28	20.4	20	14.6		
hypertension		0.0	10	10.0	• •	160		
2.Master checkup		8.0	19	13.9	23	16.8		
3.others	3	2.2	15	10.9	14	10.2		
13. Treatment pro	escribed						2 400	201
modification	0	0.0	6	4.4	3	2.2	2.400	.301
2.Drugs	18	13.1	56	40.9	54	39.4		
If on drugs, level	of complia	ance						
Compliant	14	10.2	34	24.8	40	29.2	4.695	0.096
Partially compliant	4	2.9	28	20.4	17	12.4		

Table 4.3.4 shows the association between pretest level of diastolic BP in experimental group and the socio demographic variables of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients. It is inferred that there is an association between pretest level of diastolic BP in control group and the income.

TABLE 4.3.5

Association between the Post test II level of BP in the experimental group and the BMI of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients

N=138

		BP								
POST TEST BMI	2	Abnormal ≥140/90		Abnormal Normal ≥140/90 Normal		Total		Chi square		
		f	%	f	%	F	%	-		
<18.5		1	3	5	5	6	4			
18.5-24.9		19	51	84	83	103	75			
25-29.9		11	30	11	11	22	16			
30-34.9		4	11	1	1	5	4	22.68***		
ABOVE 35		2	5	0	0	2	1			
Total		37	27	101	73	138	10 0			

***P< 0.001

Table 4.3.5 shows the association between posttest II level of BP in experimental group and the BMI of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients. This table exhibits the presence of association between posttest II level of BP in experimental group and the BMI (chi square =22.68, p<0.001). The unfurl findings of the study drives the researcher to accepts the research hypothesis and reject null hypothesis.

TABLE 4.3.6

Association between the Posttest II level of BP in the experimental group and WHR of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patient.

			BP					
Post test 2 WHR	≥140/90		<140/90	<140/90		Total		
	F	%	F	%	F	%	-	
Abnormal	32	87	67	66	99	72		
Normal	5	14	34	34	39	28	5.42*	
Total	37	100	101	100	138	100		

N=138

*P<0.05

Table 4.3.6 shows the association between posttest II level of BP and WHR in experimental group of the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients. The inference is that there is an association between posttest II level of BP in experimental group and the WHR (chi square =5.42, p<0.05). Hence the null is rejected and research hypothesis H₃ is accepted.

Inference:

It is caused by the interventional strategies advocated by the experimental group. These findings are consistent with the study findings of Gupta R et al that there was significant association found between WHR and BP.

CHAPTER – V

DISCUSSION

This present study attempts assessment of the effectiveness of Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) in lowering Blood Pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in sample areas of Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu, India. The sample size was 275 patients from two areas of Villupuram district, selected according to the need of the study. In order to achieve the objectives of this study, quasi experimental pretest and posttest control group design was adopted. The patients were chosen using the purposive sampling technique. Blood pressure was measured by using BP apparatus and stethoscope biweekly and adherence to life style modification strategies was monitored by adaily practice LSMS calendar by volunteers on a daily basis and by the investigator once in two weeks. The results, based on objectives, were compared and contrasted in different aspects of study variables. The analyzed data was discussed under the following headings.

- 5.1 Development of the instrument
- 5.2 Distribution of patients according to socio demographic clinical data and bio physiological parameters.
- 5.3 Description of the BP level
- 5.4 Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in bringing down BP.
- 5.5 Associations between blood pressure and socio demographic clinical variables.
- 5.6 Level of satisfaction for life style modification strategies
- 5.7 Open ended feedback questionnaire on life style modification strategies.

5.1 Development of the instrument

In this present study, the following instruments were developed by the researcher on the basis of an extensive review of relevant literature from various sources based on the objectives of the study. They are as follows

- 1. Proforma on socio demographic and clinical variables
- 2. The sphygmomanometer and stethoscope
- 3. Module for LSMS instruction
- 4. Observational checklist to assess the practice of LSMS.

The study findings are discussed in this chapter as below.

5.2 Socio demographic and clinical variables.

Age

The patients chosen for the study were both males and females. A majority of members in the experimental group 52 (37.7 %) were aged between 31-40 years. The mean figures of age of the patients in the control and the experimental group were 49.54 and 46.20 years respectively. The predominant age group for the prevalence of hypertension is above 40 years as shown in a majority of references in reviewed literature. But the age group in the present study is something striking which shows that the disorder has taken upper hand to affect the middle aged adult than before in the age group of 31-40 years.

A majority 54(39%) of participants in the control group were in the age group of 51-60 years. These findings are supported by a similar study made by Prathiba who assessed the life style modification of hypertensive patients among 60 patients in Karnataka state, India.

Gender:

In this study, women predominated both in experimental 99(72%) and control group 87(63%) among the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients. These findings were identical with the findings of Kokilavani and Girija who made a study in Tamil Nadu among 100 patients. The reasons attributable for women being a majority 1. Women tend to be the home makers and available during day time 2.the incidence of hypertension and gender difference is lost after menopause.

Wilkins et al ¹⁷⁰have made investigations on Canadian adults and found that hypertension was present in an estimated 19% (4.6 million) of adults aged 20 to 79 years. The overall prevalence of hypertension was nearly the same in men (19.7%) and women (19.0%). The prevalence of hypertension rose with age in both sexes combined. At ages 20 to 39 years, approximately 2% had hypertension, compared with 18% of those aged 40 to 59 years, and 53% of those aged 60 to 79 years.

Education:

A majority 49 (36 %) and 46 (34 %) of patients in the experimental and the control groups respectively had education at the higher secondary level.

These findings are supported by the study of Teena on waist hip ratio (WHR) among clients with uncontrolled and controlled hypertension among 104 patients. The result states that in clients with controlled and uncontrolled hypertension, a majority 64 (60 %) and 56 (60 %) of patients respectively had higher secondary education.

Marriage:

In this study, nearly all participants were married is both the groups as depicted by 133 (96 %) and 134 (98 %) patients in the experimental and control group respectively. A Longitudinal Study by Haijiang¹⁷⁴among Chinese Women reveals a

relationship between marital status and hypertension. Spinsters among women, widowed or separated showed a higher risk for hypertension (OR= 2.98, 95% CI: 1.16-7.62 and OR=2.27, 95% CI: 1.10-4.69, respectively) relative to married women.

Occupation:

A majority of participants were homemakers 61 (44 %) in the experimental group, whereas working adults 65 (47 %) predominated in the control group, with the nature of work being hard and strenuous in both.

Income:

A majority 70 (51 %) and 79 (58%) of participants in the experimental and the control group had income up to Rs.10, 000/month in the present study.

This is supported by Malar in her investigation of analysis of the cost of treatment among hypertensive patients in private and government hospitals at Erode, Tamil Nadu. A majority 54 (72 %) and 69 (92 %) of patients had income of Rs. < 10000/month in both attending private and government hospital respectively.

Diet:

Diet wise 117 (85 %) patients in the experimental group and 135 (99 %) patients in control group were non-vegetarian. The present study patients were beef eaters taking weekly thrice in the experimental group.

Religion:

A majority 128 (93 %) and 132 (97 %) in the experimental and the control group respectively were Hindus. Similar findings are provided by Kiran in his study on health behavior of hypertensive patients between controlled and uncontrolled

blood pressure in Tamil Nadu. He found that Hindus predominated 45 (90 %) in both groups of controlled and uncontrolled hypertension.

Type of family:

More than three fourths 112 (81 %) and 105 (77 %) patients in the experimental and the control groups live in nuclear families. This is a growing pattern seen in developing countries like India.

Smoking:

The patients in the both the groups were predominately (> 92 %) non smokers in the past as well as in the present. Vaishali Patel has different findings. He conducted a study at **Ahmadabad to find the profile of pulmonary hypertension patients coming to civil hospital**.Out of total 50 patients, 60% of patients were men. Among 30 men 26 (87%) patients were smokers.

Alcohol:

There is contradicting ideation of some evidences establishing the beneficial nature of alcohol whereas some suggest quitting alcohol in order to have control over it. Predominantly there was no history of smoking in the past 127 (97%) as well as in the present 125 (91%) among the experimental group. Similarly in the control group too there was no history of smoking among 131(94%) and 128(92%) in the past and present respectively.

Family history of hypertension:

The present study found no family history of hypertension among 127 (92 %) and 83 (60 %) of patients in the experimental and control group respectively. But Priya found the presence of family history of hypertension among 57 % of patients at Mangalore in her attempt to identify the factors influencing hypertension and obesity.

Mode of diagnosis

More than half, 52(37.4%) in the control group got diagnosed of hypertension through signs and symptoms while 82(59.4%) respondents in the experimental group got diagnosed through a master health check up. Getting diagnosed through master health check up is a healthy sign for the risk groups. It reveals a march ahead for the utilization of the health care systems.

Treatment prescribed

A majority were prescribed lifestyle modification, the figures in the experimental and the control group were 94 (68.1%) and 78 (56.9%) patients respectively. Regarding drug compliance, 33 (75%) respondents in the experimental group and 42(71%) in the control group were compliant to persecuted drugs. Remaining 25% of the patients are struggling to be compliant to drugs. The reasons to be mined out and it has to be rectified.

OBJECTIVE 1

The first objective involves measuring the pre and post test Blood Pressure (BP) of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in the experimental and control groups.

In the pre test a majority 119(86%) of patients in the experimental group and66 (48%) in the control group, had systolic BP 140-159mmHg.The diastolic Blood pressure was between 90-99 mmHg for most of the patients 80 (58%) and 88(64%) in the experimental and control group respectively.

With respect to the systolic blood pressure in the post test I, achievement of the target BP less than 140 mmHg was seen in a majority 72(58%) of patients in the experimental group. But in the control group, only 60 (44%) patients had thetarget

BP. While discussing the diastolic BP in the post test I, for most of them 90(65%) and 55(40%) patients in the experimental and the control groups had target diastolic BP <90 mmHg respectively.

In the post test two, 135(98%) participants in the experimental group and 75 (55%) in the control group had systolic blood pressure <140 mmHg. With respect to the post test II diastolic BP, while everyone 125(91%) in the experimental group had achieved the target BP, the figure for the control group was only 67(49%).

The findings of this study are compared and contrasted as follows.

Zemedkun⁷³in their study in the Sub-Saharan African countries, Ghana in South Africa found large prevalence of hypertension both stage 1 and 2 as higher in South Africa (46%) compared to Ghana (42.4%). This is mostly due to obesity, leading sedentary life, living in urban and consuming lesser fruit seen in persons above 50 years of age.

A Study of clinic social profile of young women with hypertension in a tertiary care hospital byMausumi¹⁶⁹shows the mean systolic blood pressure and mean diastolic blood pressure as 144.1 (SD 24.6 mmHg) and 79.9 (SD 12.4 mmHg) respectively. Newly detected hypertensive patients were 21.4%, which 39.1% were in stage 1 hypertension and 60.9% were in stage 2 which is contradictory to the current study.

Wilkins et al ¹⁷⁰have done investigation on the Canadian adults and found that hypertension was present in an estimated 19% (4.6 million) of Canadian adults aged 20 to 79 years. The overall prevalence of hypertension was nearly the same in men (19.7%) and women (19.0%). The prevalence of hypertension rose with age in both sexes combined. At ages 20 to 39 years, approximately 2% had hypertension, compared with 18% of those aged 40 to 59 years, and 53% of those aged 60 to 79 years. The mean systolic BP for women was (101.4 and 111.7 mm Hg,)respectively were lower than those of men (109.9 and 116.5 mm Hg)

Yadavet al^{74} report the prevalence of hypertension and pre-hypertension among 1746 adults (age \geq 30 yrs) residing in an urban area in north India as 32.2 percent and was 32.3 per cent respectively. Those 60-69 years of age were tending to have hypertension, whereas pre hypertension was seen in person in the age group 30-39.

5.3. OBJECTIVE 2

The Second objective is to ascertain the effectiveness of Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) in bringing down blood pressure by comparing the pre test BP with that of post test BP within and between the experimental and control group among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients which was established by table 4.2.1 to 4.2.14.

The pretest and the posttest II mean systolic BP in the experimental group was 145.80 [SD 10.99], and 122.61 [SD 4.88], the mean difference is 23.19 and the t-value is 19.68 which is statistically significant at 0.05 level as revealed by Table no. 4.2.5 The pretest mean diastolic BP in the experimental group is 90.65 [SD 8.30], the posttest II mean diastolic BP is 80.65 [SD 3.24], the mean difference is 10.00 and the t-value is 9.46 which is statistically significant at 0.05 level as expressed in Table4.2.5.Thus the LSMS has lowered SBP and DBP .This has occurred not by chance but as a result of manipulation.

The posttest II mean value of SBP in the experimental group is 122.61 [SD 4.88], the posttest mean value of SBP in the control group is 138.10 [SD 16.29], the mean difference is 15.49 and the t-value is 11.73 which is statistically significant at

0.05 level. The posttest II mean value of DBP in the experimental group is 80.65[SD 12.14], the posttest mean value of DBP in the control group 88.23 [SD 14.19], the mean difference 7.60 and the t-value 8.08 which is statistically significant at 0.05 level and it was manifested by table no4.2.6.

Hence the LSMS is found effective in lowering BP. The value of BP was also seen getting lower in the post test confirmed through RM ANOVA.

.The above findings do not support the null hypothesis. Hence, the null hypothesis is rejected while the research hypothesis is accepted. These findings are supported by the following study results.

Subramanian et al¹³⁹ have carried out a home based study using cross over experimental control design on complementary therapy among patients with hypertension in Pudhucherry in 2007. The sample size was 98 patients. There was significant reduction in the systolic BP in post test compared to pretest from 132,130, 127 mmHg to 127,127,126 respectively through physical exercise, reduction in salt consumption and yoga group respectively. This was significant at the level of 95% confidence interval.

Similarly Siad et al made an investigation of the extent of superiority of the lifestyle modification program compared to the usual care in hospital settings among hypertensive. The impact was that the intervention resulted in reduction of BP at the level of P<0.05 in six months.

Brisk walking, yoga and DASH diet each independently as well as in combination produced reduction in BP. Brisk walking and its role in bringing down hypertension were studied by Azeem k. His findings revealed significant reduction caused in systolic and diastolic BP, BMI and WHR. Both accumulated and intermittent walkingwere found to be effective in controlling BP. He recommended exercising for half an hour per day, at least with an average of 4 days per week.

In another study by Yadav, yoga was identified as an efficient technique to control BP. The practice of Pranayama and Savasana resulted in decreased BP.

The same was supported by the end result of a study made by Dusek. The systolic and diastolic blood pressure were reduced by 10.2 and 9.4 mm Hg respectively after yoga therapy.

The findings of the current study were further strengthened by the report of Mellen in his research on DASH diet proved that it was effective in producing lowered BP level.

The findings are further supported by the result of a study done by Saptharishi L et al, who have chosen four groups. A reduction was seen in BP among the three therapy groups was 5.3,2.6 and 2.0 mm Hg in systolic pressure and 6.0, 3.7 and 2.6 in diastolic blood pressure as a result of physical exercise, salt consumption and yoga respectively. There was no significant change in the control group between pre and post test BP.

Adherence to prescribed treatment is highly important for facilitating the action of the prescribed therapy. The investigator found a difference in the level of reduction in BP among compliant and partially compliant participants as shown in table 29. The mean values of posttest I systolic pressure were130.714, s127.455 [SD 6.042., 7.095] respectively among the partially compliant and compliant group in the experimental group. The calculated t-value is 2.519, which is statistically significant at 0.05 levels. Similarly, the mean value of posttest II systolic BP was 124.643, 122.091 [SD 5.762. 5.762] respectively among the partially compliant and compliant and compliant participants in the experimental group. The calculated t-value of posttest II systolic BP was 124.643,

significant at 0.05 level. The 'F' value is 202. 94, which is more than table value seen in the Table reflecting the significance of the LSMS in lowering the BP.The concept of adherence is mostly influenced by mutual understanding between the patient and healthcare providers as reported by Holland N and Nandi O.

The LSMS as an intervention not only helped lowering BP and with significant the BMI and Waist hip ratio in the post test of the experimental group. This is proved by the study findings of Nargis Akhter who found that after the lifestyle intervention the BMI had lessened from 38.49 to 36.18 significantly (t= 6.38) at the level of P<0.05.

These results are supported by the results of a study conducted by Frisolil et al to assess the life style modification and blood pressure in Germany. He reports that a positive association amid weight and BP. In case of gaining weight, the BP also tend to raise parallel with increasing weight.

These findings are identical with the study results of Lopes et al. who conducted a study with the objective of discovering the effect of teaching program on compliance towards non drug therapy in arterial high BP among 216 hypertensive clients. He found the occurrence of reduction in BMI after health education and adoption of these educational strategies.

The objective of Sanya and Ogwumike¹⁶⁸was to find the relationship between BMI, WHR with BP at Nigeria. The sample consisted of 404 men and women between 15 and 85 years. BMI, WHR & BP were measured along with a study of lifestyle, occupation and family history. The average Waist Hip Ratio of men was 0.88 which is within the normal range. But, for women, the ratio fell within the category of overweight and obese. For all of them, the average BMI was 22-23 kg/m² considered as healthy weight. The mean BMI falls within the normal range for greater values of WHR in the obese category. Hence WHR is a reliable indicator compared to BMI. It was also found that BMI>25 kg/m2, WHR>0.9 correlated with BP. Sanya and his colleagues found WHR as a valuable indicator than BMI in assessing intra abdominal fat and coronary artery disease and both BMI and WHR are seen to have a linear relationship with BP.

Wexler¹⁷² attempted to find barriers to hypertension treatment on the basis of African American patients' opinions and got response that the health care system, the individual, the family and the community as a whole were factors that had palpable influence on compliance and hurdles for adopting the treatment.

OBJECTIVE 3

To associate the blood pressure level with selected socio demographic clinical variable and BMI and WHR among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

This is discussed in two aspects as follows.

- Association between the level of blood pressure and selected socio demographic clinical variables.
- 2. Association between the level of blood pressure and BMI, WHR

1. Association between blood pressure and selected socio demographic variables. Table no 4.3.1 to 4.3.4 describes the association between blood pressure and selected socio demographic variables

- A significance association was found between the pretest systolic level of BP and present history of smoking , past and present history of alcoholism in pretest systolic blood pressure among the participants in the experimental group as shown in Table no .4.3.1.
- There was no association found between the pretest systolic BP with other socio demographic variables in the experimental group.

- There was no association found between pretest systolic BP and socio demographic variables in the control group.
- There were no association found between pretest diastolic BP and socio demographic variables in the experimental and control groups

The findings based on objective three are supported and contrasted as follows

There is no association between smoking and hypertension.

Pajak Aand Kawalec E^{149} conducted a cross-sectional study among a random sample of 1157 women and 1153 men, among permanent inhabitants of Krakow at the age of 45-64 years. Men of binge drinkers had borderline significance (p = 0.057) to develop hypertension and no significant relation between smoking and hypertension was found in them. In women, moderate alcohol consumption was related to a lower chance of hypertension (OR = 0.72) and women of current smokers had lower chance of hypertension (OR = 0.67). The findings confirmed weight control as an effective tool for preventing hypertension and increasing physical activity. Refraining from binge drinking may have a protective effect.

Tripathi¹⁷¹ et al found association between BP and alcoholism. The subjects taking non vegetarian and vegetarian diet from plain showed significantly high SBP, 129 (SD 19) ,133 (18) and DBP 81(13) and 85(13) mmHg respectively. But this difference is not noticed among non vegetarian and vegetarian from hill area. The high BP among non vegetarian subjects may be due to increased dietary sodium intake through fish, sea food and the consumption of spices and salt.

Lipowicz andLopuszanska¹⁷³have reported in their study that unmarried men had on average higher systolic BP and diastolic BP than married men. The unmarried had also a higher risk of hypertension when compared to married men, even with adjustment for different demographic, socio-economic, life-style variables, and even that never married men had lower BMI compared to married persons. The never married had psychological stress (prolonged stress and low social support), faulty dietary intake (mainly sodium and potassium intake) and economic aspects of living alone are suggested as factors, which might explain at least partly the marital diversity in blood pressure and the risk of hypertension in men.

2. The association between level of blood pressure, BMI and WHR

2. A. Association between levels of blood pressure BMI:

There was a significant association between BP and BMI as depicted in Table 4.3.5 . The chi square value was 22.68 which is significant at the level of P<0.001.In the post test II it was made known that there was significant association between BMI and level of blood pressure. As the value of BMI goes above, the value of blood pressure tend to be higher. Hence the hypothesis H₃ was accepted that there is significant association between level of blood pressure and BMI.

This relationship also is strengthened by the outcome of the study made by AnjumHumayunArbab and Riffat sultana¹⁶² **at Pakistan**. They found that the prevalence of hypertension was getting elevated with the BMI increase, established the existence of stronger link between BMI especially central obesity and BP. This had been proved by relation of normal BMI with hypertension is 34% and overweight is 58% while that of obese is 77% indicating a strong relationship of hypertension with BMI.

A study conducted by Premalatha¹⁶⁰ found the prevalence of hypertension and its correlation among 200 school children (both boys and girls) between 10-12 years at Chennai. Systolic BP and diastolic BP showed positive correlation with BMI, height and weight at p<0.05. Tesfaye et al ¹⁶⁵have reported the relation between BP and BMI in women in three countries namely Ethiopia, Vietnam, and Indonesia. Generally, both mean systolic BP and mean diastolic BP increased along with increasing BMI quintiles. The increase in mean systolic BP begins around the second BMI quintile for Indonesian men and women, corresponding to mean BMI increase among Vietnamese men.

2. B. The association between level of blood pressure and WHR.

Considerable association between level of blood pressure and WHR (Table 4.3.6) wasseen in post test II. The higher the value of WHR, the higher was the level of blood pressure. Hence the hypothesis H₃ was accepted that there was significant association between level of blood pressure and WHR.

Teenaann john¹⁶¹made investigation of waist-hip ratio among clients with uncontrolled and controlled hypertension at Trivandrum, Kerala. The mean waist circumference 93(SD=10.57), hip circumference 98.6(SD=9.69) and waist- hip ratio 0.94(SD=.094) were higher among hypertensive clients with no control compared to controlled hypertensive clients.

Damirchi. Mehrabani¹⁶³found the Prevalence of obesity, overweight and high blood pressure significantly increasing with aging, monthly income, number of family members, and low level of education and physical activity (p<0.05). Therefore, in all age groups, there was striking relation between obesity and high blood pressure (p<0.0001).Highest prevalence of obesity (50.3%) and high BP (71.1%) were in older group. Obese persons in all groups had high BP (p<0.05).

Breenin his article ¹⁶⁴ on hypertension confirms increase inbody weight the risk of hypertension (Stamler 1991) due to excessive body weight. A high proportion of abdominal fat (central obesity) detected bywaist circumference is also a sign of
adverse cardiovascular outcomes (Williams1994). A body mass index (BMI) of 20-25kg/m2 is recommended, combined with a waist circumference of \leq 102cm for European men, \leq 88cm for European women, \leq 90cm for South Asian men and \leq 80cm for South Asian women (British Cardiac Society *et al* 2005).

The results of a study conducted by Tesfayeet al¹⁶⁵ and his team in Ethiopia, Vietnam and Indonesia agree with these findings.This was carried out for measuring the extent to which BMI and BP were interconnected. It was known that mean systolic BP and diastolic BP along with hiking BMI quintiles. The systolic BP tends to rise getting close to second BMI quintile for the study population. The increase in mean systolic BP begins around the second BMI quintile for Indonesian men and women, corresponding to mean BMI increase among Vietnamese men.

Moore¹⁶⁶has conducted a survey among the students (N = 2053) in Anadarko public schools belonging to multiracial, multiethnic (American Indian, white, African American, and Hispanic) population in southwestern Oklahoma. There were high ratesof excess weight, with American Indians and African Americans at greatest risk. Elevated BMI was strongly associated with elevated blood pressure.

Gupta et al ¹⁶⁷for their epidemiological study, made a random selection of 1800 (men 960, women 840) adults aged above 20 years in an urban Indian city and measured bio physiological variables. This study established the prevalence of hypertension rise along with ascend of BMI and WHR.

The following discussion is based on the responses from an open ended feedback questionnaire administered at the end of intervention package for 24 weeks for the experimental group. Items no 1 was :why do you like this? A majority among patients 41 (30%) expressed the reason for liking it as that it is easy to do. The reason for feeling so, is that it is not tough to do and they could schedule their timings to do

it, as well as the effect is acknowledged with optimistic attitude and unmindful of the difficulties encountered which may drive them to be compatible for regular work. The second reason for its, having been liked is that it causes a reduction in BP as reported by 39(28%) of the experimental group. Of course, this is the core aim of this study for which the study was undertaken. The reduction was steady and gradual which was estimated through biweekly assessment of BP which is the response expected from each one of them. But for analysis the measurement of 12 and 24 weeks was taken. The third reason for the liking of this LSMS done by them is, that it provides a sense of happiness as reported by 31 (22%) of them. They recognize the effect (both physical and mental) which drives them to do it irrespective of the reasons advanced. There are other reasons too for the liking from the patients. They are: it causes stress free mind, good to do this rather than taking medicines, causes weight reduction, makes it headache free and others. Two of them reported that they have not liked it but they still continue to do it.

Item no: 2 of open ended feedback questionnaire was:Do you feel any discomfort by doing this LSMS'? Eighty nine (64%) of them in the experimental group told they did not perceive any discomfort in regular practice, revealing pacification of their felt need and their ability to spare time for daily practice. The determination to achieve the target provides a feeling of absence of discomfort to take effort to practice LSMS daily. Next to that, 36 (26%) patients responded that it is difficult to do it daily. It means their ability to do it, but continuously doing daily without break is their problem. The work schedule, functions, festivals, rituals may create such situations, forcing them out of a position to do it on a daily basis. This leads to a thought that it is difficult to do daily. Occasionally they could not do it as well, when combined with attending functions outside and with need to do take food

outside. In spite of all that, they practiced it continuously as they felt comfortable doing LSMS. The third response for this item was that about 13 (9%) patients said that they wereunable to follow this, when they had heavy work. The reason behind this may be, most of the patients are persons at work and homemakers. The household chores in Indian families are very tedious, especially during festivals and rituals on auspicious days. This takes considerable time, hence, the inability toschedule time to do the LSMS at times.

The feedback for open ended questionnaire for the item No. 3: "How much do you like to follow this" was as below. A majority 62(45%) of them reported that they would like to follow this LSMS until their health is totally improved. Once they recognize that this LSMS could do something to solve their health problem, it brings hope in their mindset that this LSMS could give a curing result which provokes them to feel that they will continue to practice it until their health is totally improved, since they witnessed it as a benefit. 'Prefer to follow daily' was the reply form 38(27%) of them. Since they scheduled themselves and realized the effects of LSMS, they wanted to follow it daily to be benefited by this. The answer from 19(14%) of them was that they do follow as long as they like it. Some of them view it as a leisure time activity or intentionally doing it joyfully, that they would like to follow this as long as they liked it. "As much as I can" was the notion put forth by 18 (13%) patients. They may convey this irrespective of any hurdles or challenges faced. They would pursue scheduling of their timings, and create a situation for doing it to the maximum. Only one among them reported that he used continue to do it when he had time to practice.

The 4th item was "How much is this useful to you"? Almost a half 65(47%) of them reported that improvement in their general health. Hypertension gives rise to generalized as well as specific signs and symptoms that leads to a sense of sickness.

Improvement in general health means is progress in physical and mental wellbeing achieved because of LSMS and as the result of BP kept under control. This reveals that LSMS not only causes reduction in BP but also improvement in general health among the doers of LSMS. Next to the general health, 38(28%) of them indicated reduction in BP. This reflection is the core aim of this study. There are plenty of therapies available for non communicable diseases. But this specific combination works out well to bring down BP to normal. Followed by 15(11%) of them revealed that they could do their regular activities comfortably. This is possible, due to the reason that once BP is under control, other signs and symptom automatically come under control or vanish. LSMS play a vital role in getting rid of the symptoms such as headache, dizziness, fainting, vomiting exertion etc and make them symptom free. They would ensure scheduling their meetings. This might result in helping the patients perform their routine schedule without any interruption. About 8(6%) of them indicated this LSMS as useful in reducing weight. One of the factors which causes development of hypertension is weight. The LSMS also caused weight reduction, especially due to DASH component. As the weight reduces, the BP tends to fall automatically. Similarly it was useful in getting rid of headache and fainting as pointed out by 8(6%) patients. It was interesting to note that 4(3%) of them declared their feeling at peace. BP causes stress and stress causes high BP. Yoga calms down the mind, also helping relaxation of blood vessels, nerves and thereby releasing the stress in body and mind.

A four point rating scale on the level of satisfaction was administered for 24 weeks for the experimental group. A majority126 (91.3%) of them were highly satisfied and 12(8.7%) of them in the experimental group. In Indian culture, it is the practice to rise before sun rise, especially in a rural based society where most of them

are workers. So, getting up early in the morning is not at all a difficult task for them. A routine, followed, is to go in for fresh cow's milk which demands some walking. So, adopting this LSMS is just a modification of routine life in terms of walking. On returning home, after a brisk walk, they could relax by sitting for nadisudhi pranayama which takes 10 minutes to practice with 20 cycles of it for completion. Practicing savasana takes 10 minutes. Thiscan be done after completion of morning chores. So incorporating this LSMS is not a difficult venture in daily routine. Following this, normal work can be taken up. Hence, following practice on a daily basis does not involve any difficulty at all. Moreover the effect of it is experienced by them positively. Hence, it gives a high sense of satisfaction with LSMS.

"EFFECTIVENESS OF LIFE STYLE MODIFICATION STRATEGIES IN LOWERING BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG NEWLY DIAGNOSED HYPERTENSIVE PATIENTS"

A Thesis

Submitted to The Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R Medical University, Chennai, for the award of degree of DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY IN NURSING



By

K.THAMARAISELVI

Professor

C.S.I. JeyarajAnnapackiam College of Nursing



Under the Guidance of Prof.Dr.R. RAJKUMAR, MD., Ph.D., Research Guide C.S.I JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING MADURAI

APRIL 2017

CHAPTER VI

SUMMARY, CONCLUSIONS, IMPLICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 SUMMARY

This chapter presents a summary of the study, its major findings, conclusions, implications and recommendations for future research. The study was to assess the effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients. It was conducted at two sample areas in Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu, India. WHO 2009⁸ states that high BP accounts for , 13% of deaths in the list of disorders among non communicable disorders seen as fatal.

The non communicable disease risk factor survey 28 of 2007 predicts the overall distribution of hypertension in Tamil Nadu as 18%. The risk of hypertension is known to grow parallel in combination with age, regardless of gender. Education status is reflected in the difference in the rate of distribution of this disorder, with increased rate among illiterates compared to literates as revealed by statistics of 23% and 18% among those with no schooling and those with higher level schooling respectively. It is seen higher (24%) among men than in women (15%).

Several studies lay stress on the importance of maintenance of healthy behavior and regular habits in daily life. Chintamani⁴ and Brunner⁵ report lifestyle modification bringing desirable changes in blood pressure. About 10kg reduction in weight can help reduction of five to twenty mm Hg in BP. The DASH food helps decrease of 8-14 mm Hg. Sodium restriction lowers BP of 2--8 mmHg. Physical activity brings down the BP to 2-8 mm Hg. Hence, physical activity, yoga and DASH diet form the right combination strategies to lower BP.

Considering the magnitude of the problem and the availability of feasible measures, the investigator had chosen LSMS as ideal for control, the delay of onset of BP and prevention of the development of complications.

Objectives of the study:

- ➤ To assess the pre and post test Blood Pressure (BP), of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in the control and the experimental groups.
- To evaluate the effectiveness of Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) in lowering BP by comparing the pre test and post test BP within and between the control and the experimental groups among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.
- To find out the association between blood pressure level and selected socio demographic and clinical variables among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

Hypotheses

- H_1 There is a significant difference between the value of pre and post test blood pressure BMI, WHR with the control and experimental groups.
- H₂ A significant difference exits between in the value of blood pressure and BMI,
 WHR after the Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) between the control and experimental groups.
- H₃ There is a significant association between the blood pressure BMI, WHR and selected socio demographic clinical variables among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients in the control and experimental groups .

The investigator has used the modified Wiedenbach's prescriptive theory (1964), a helping art model, as the basis of conceptual framework. A quantitative approach has been used for this study. Quasi experimental pretest/ posttest control group design has been adopted for this study.

The areas for study were assigned by in a random manner using the lottery method. This study was conducted in two settings, namely, Vazuthareddy and Vikkaravandi in the Villupuram district. The target population for the study consisted of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients. Reference in this study is to those patients diagnosed to have hypertension within the proceeding period of 6 months, and residing at Vikkiravandi and Vazhuthareddy. Samples were the patients, who were diagnosed with hypertension and in the age group of 31 to 60 years of both genders, within the period of 6 months and who fulfilled the inclusion criteria. Selection of the subjects during data collection was done on the basis of a non probability purposive sampling.

The investigator, for this study, developed tools which were seven in number and comprised the following.

Tool 1.Proforma on socio demographic and clinical variables

Tool 2. The sphygmomanometer and stethoscope

Tool 3. Teaching module on LSMS

Tool 4. Observational checklist to assess the practice of LSMS.

The data was collected in five phases.

Phase I - case identification

Phase II Pretest to both groups

Phase III -Introduce LSMS to experimental group

Phase IV - Post test I at 12th week to both groups

Phase V - Post test II at 24th week to both groups

The data were analyzed in terms of objectives of this study using descriptive and inferential statistics (Paired 't' test, Independent 't' test, repeated measures ANOVA, ANCOVA, and Chi square)

Major findings of the study

A. Findings related to socio demographic variables of the patients.

- A majority 99(707%) and 87(63%) of the patients were women in the intervention and the control groups respectively.
- Almost all participants in both groups 133(96%) and 134(98%) were married.
- Nearly half of the patients 61(44%) in the experimental group were homemakers but, in the control group, most 44(32%) of them were laborers.
- By religion, Hindus were a majority in both the groups, 128(93%) and 132(97%) patients in the experimental and the control groups respectively.
- More than three fourths in both groups were in nuclear families

B. Findings related to clinical parameters namely **BP BMI** and **WHR** of the patients.

 There is significant difference between the pretest and the posttest II mean systolic BP in the experimental group. There was reduction in the systolic blood pressure of 17.68 mmHg in post test II in the experimental group which is significant as P k<0.05. The pretest mean systolic BP in the experimental group is 145.80 [SD 11], the posttest II mean systolic BP in the experimental group is 122.61 [SD 4.88], the mean difference is 23.19 and the't'-value is 19.68 is statistically significant at 0.05 level

- 2. There is a significant difference among the pretest, posttest I and II mean systolic BP between the experimental and the control groups. The pre test, posttest I and II mean systolic BP in experimental group are 145.80, 127.90 and 122.61 [SD 11, 16.88, 4.88]. The pre test, posttest I and II mean values of SBP in the control group are respectively 143.67,140.07 and 137.99 [SD 11,7.09,4.88], The calculated f-value in RMANOVA is 47.05 which is higher than the table value. It signifies the effectiveness of the LSMS is in lowering BP across the periods.
- 3. A significant difference is seen between the pretest and the posttest II mean diastolic BP in the experimental group. The pretest mean diastolic BP in experimental group is 90.65 [SD 8.30] and the posttest II mean diastolic BP is80.65 [SD 3.24]. The mean difference is 10 and the t-value is 9.46 which are significant at0.05 level of significance.
- 4. There is a significant difference among pretest, posttest I and II mean diastolic BP between the experimental and the control groups. The pre test, post test I and II mean diastolic BP in the experimental group are 90.65, 83.55 and 80.65 [SD-8.30, 5.51 and 3.24] respectively. The pre test, posttest I and II mean value of DBP in the control group is 93.88,88.20,86.23 and [SD -13.11,12.98 and 14.19], The calculated f-value is 25.11 which is statistically significant at 0.001 level.
- The calculated 'f' value (27.931, 7.657) in ANCOVA with the co variant drug compliance is more than the table value with respect to systolic and diastolic BP respectively establishing the effectiveness of LSMS in lowering BP.

- 6. There is a significant difference between the pre test and the posttest II mean value of BMI in the experimental group. The pretest mean value of BMI is 25.02[SD 4.80], and the posttest II mean value of BMI was23.01[SD 3.39], the mean difference is 2.3223 and the t-value is 11.576 which is statistically significant at 0.05 level.
- 7. There is significant difference between the pre and the posttest II mean WHR in the experimental group .The pretest mean WHR is .97 [SD. 23], the posttest II mean WHR is 0.92 [SD .16], the mean difference is 0.219 and the t-value is 2.907*which is statistically significant at 0.05 level.

C. Findings related to association between BP and socio demographic clinical variables, of newly diagnosed hypertensive patients.

- A significant association was found between the level of blood pressure and occupation and religion in the Pretest systolic blood pressure among the experimental group. There was no significant association between level of blood pressure and age, gender, educational status, income, dietary pattern, marital status, type of family, habit of smoking past and present, habit of alcoholism past and present, family history of hypertension, mode of diagnosis and the treatment prescribed.
- 2. There was a significant association between the level of blood pressure and age in the Pretest systolic blood pressure among the control group. The association between the level of blood pressure and gender, educational status, occupation ,income, dietary pattern, marital status, , type of family, habits of smoking past and present, habit of alcoholism past and present, religion , family history of hypertension, and the mode of diagnosis and the treatment prescribed were not statistically significant among the control group in pretest.

- 3. A significant association between level of pretest diastolic blood pressure and type of family in the experimental group was seen. A significant association was also seen between level of pretest diastolic blood pressure and the type of family in the experimental group. But no association was found between the level of diastolic blood pressure and age, gender, educational status, occupation, income, dietary pattern, marital status, habits of smoking past and present, habits of alcohol past and present, religion, family history of hypertension, mode of diagnosis and the treatment prescribed in Pretest diastolic blood pressure among the experimental group.
- 4. Regarding the association between the level of blood pressure and socio demographic variable in the pretest diastolic blood pressure, in the control group, none of the variables including age, gender, educational status, occupation, income, dietary pattern, marital status, type of family, habit of smoking past and present, habit of alcoholism past and present, religion, family history of hypertension, mode of diagnosis and the treatment prescribed.
- There was a significant association found between BP and BMI in the post test II among the experimental group.
- 6. There was a significant association found between BP and WHR in the post test II among the experimental group.

6.2 IMPLICATIONS

The present study assessed the effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering Blood Pressure among the newly diagnosed hypertensive patients at sample areas of Villupuram district, Tamil Nadu. The study findings indicate a significant difference between the pretest and posttest blood pressure in the control and the experimental groups. It indicates the significant role played by Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) in lowering blood pressure. These findings of the study have implications for nursing education, nursing practice, nursing administration and nursing research.

Nursing Practice

- The study reveals the fundamental responsibility of the nurse to be supportive to hypertensive patients with various interventions such as brisk walking, yoga and Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension (DASH) diet and improve the well being of the client.
- The study findings could be disseminated to practicing nurses. This will motivate them to administer these interventions for the clients diagnosed with hypertension in the healthcare institutions as well as in the community in general.
- Nursing professionals working in nursing care settings should incorporate the recommended alternative therapies such as yoga and meditation in the routine nursing care.
- Nurses should equip themselves with adequate, appropriate knowledge regarding the needed lifestyle modifications to improve the quality of life of hypertensive patients.
- Simple alternative therapies like yoga do not require extensive training. Hence, this can be incorporated in the nursing care routine easily especially by those who are functioning, in the specialty area/department of non communicable disease.

- Nurses should counsel the clients in their regular follow up visits to practice LSMS.
- Nurses should insist the clients with hypertension or prone to develop hypertension to practice these lifestyle modifications regularly and not haphazardly.
- The study emphasize the core responsibility of the community health nurse is to be supportive enough to the patients with Hypertension and to lead a healthy life style.
- The study findings could be disseminated to the community health nurses with suitable motivation practices to administer the lifestyle modifications for the patients with hypertension or patients who are prone to hypertension to avoid complications.
- Nurses working in community areas as health care professionals should equip themselves and incorporate lifestyle modification strategies in their routine care.
- Complementary therapies could be included as part of the routine outpatient care of treatment for hypertension.

Nursing Education:

 Nursing curriculum should embrace conditions such as hypertension and its complications in detail and should provide exposure to students in various clinical settings where they come across patients with hypertension which enable their application of theory into practice and those who are working in specialized departments of hypertension.

- Nurse educators should encourage nursing students to practice various alternative therapies and educate them along with the routine, standard nursing care.
- Nursing curricula need periodical evaluation based on the patient and family centered approach.
- Certain alternative therapies which meet the needs of the patients can be added as nursing procedures for nurses working in health care settings.
- Nursing curriculum should emphasize not only on physical domain but more on the psychological wellbeing of the patient.

It is essential to create awareness among the nurse educators regarding importance of LSMS.

- Providing orientation to the students on the use of LSMS and allotment of time exclusively for teaching LSMS will be useful.
- Hypertension being a common problem in the present context, strategies like LSMS which are proven effective can be included in the daily practice.
- Greater emphasis can be given for hands- on- training of the students on various relaxation strategies yoga during their basic clinical postings.
- Students can be actively involved in patient education on LSMS. Providing orientation to the students on the LSMS and allotment of time for exclusive teaching LSMS will be useful.
- Hypertension being a common problem in the present context, strategies which are proven effective such as the LSMS can be enlightened. More emphasize can be given for hands- on- training of the students on various LSMS strategies including brisk walking, yoga. DASH diet during their basic clinical postings. Students can actively involved in patient education on LSMS

Nursing administration

- Nurses are the prominent work force in health care and no significant transformation can be achieved without them.
- Practicing nurses can be educated on various LSMS through in service education program.
- They can be motivated to incorporate LSMS during their daily practice.
- Short-term programs on LSMS may be organized for nurses to improve their proficiency in special therapies.
- The curriculum could be modified by the authorities to include emphasis on such therapies.
- Nurse administrators can organize continuing nursing education on lifestyle modification strategies on the basis of the needs of the patients.
- Nurse administrators can collaborate with nursing researchers to conduct further research in utilization of LSMS.
- Nurse administrators should make close observations on the clients with hypertension and tailor the lifestyle strategies for voluntary adoption.
- Community health nurses can organize mass screening and surveys to detect hypertensive problems at an early stage and to obviate long term consequences like renal diseases, cardiovascular disease, etc. as a team work.
- Community health nurses can organize mass awareness programs on hypertension and its dimensions through IEC program for early adults to adopt it at the earliest to promote health.
- Community health care nurses can impart health education to patients on preventive and curative aspects of hypertension related health problems to improve their quality of life.

- Community health nurses can participate in the conduct of hypertension Clinics periodically to diagnose and treat hypertensive problems and to counsel them.
- The concept of hypertension can be included as a component of health in the school curriculum. This can be considered as a primordial prevention in terms of preventing hypertension related health problems during midlife and old age
- Nurses are the prominent work force in the health care field and so great transformation can be achieved through them by arranging school health program or by school health nurses to students.
- Education to practicing nurses to various LSMS through in-service education programs. They can be motivated to incorporate LSMS during their daily practice.
- Short-term programs on LSMS may be organized for nurses to improve proficiency in special therapies. The syllabus could be modified by the authorities to include emphasis on such therapies.

Nursing Research

- Various researches have to be undertaken for ensuring compliance with the lifestyle of the patients with hypertension for suitability and practicality.
- Nurse researchers have to carry out various research studies in diverse aspects of LSMS to prevent complications in future.
- Play way methods of LSMS to be identified and offered to ensure adherence to treatment.

- Public health policy including the practice to reduce the exposure of the whole population to major risk factor such as unhealthy diet, physical inactivity, harmful use of alcohol and tobacco use should be strengthened and monitored.
- As LSMS is found to be useful, research initiative can be fostered among the nurses and nursing students on aspects of LSMS.
- Long term and on-going studies can be encouraged to understand the sustained effects of LSMS.
- Active and permanent research wing can be employed in the clinical area for following up long term LSMS trials.
- Collaborative research can be conducted among the departments of Nursing, physiotherapy, yoga and, dietetics and to identify and disseminate the effects of LSMS among various patient groups.
- As LSMS is found to be useful, research initiative can be fostered among the nurses and nursing students on aspects of LSMS.
- Long term studies can be encouraged to understand the sustained effects of LSMS. Active and permanent research wing can be employed in the clinical area for following up long term LSMS trials.
- Collaborative research can be conducted among the departments of Nursing, physiotherapy, yoga and, dietetics and to identify and disseminate the effects of LSMS among various patient groups.

6.3 RECOMMENDATIONS

- 1. A longitudinal study can be conducted to assess the effects of hypertension and the severity of hypertension among patients with complications.
- 2. A qualitative study can be conducted on LSMS among patients with hypertension.
- 3. A longitudinal or time series study can be conducted for identifying the effect of LSMS among patients with hypertension.
- 4. A cross cultural study can be conducted among Indian patients on hypertension related health problems.
- 5. An explorative study can be conducted to understand and appreciate the health related risk factors among hypertensive patients.
- 6. This study can be replicated in different clinical settings including morbid conditions
- An extensive survey can be conducted to assess the practice of LSMS across the country among hypertensive patients.
- 8. The same study can be conducted at community areas in Villupuram other than those taken up in this study.
- 9. A study can be conducted to find out the cost effectiveness of LSMS over medical treatment.
- 10. A comparative study can be conducted with alternative therapies to lessen the hypertension and prevent the complications.
- 11. A study on the knowledge and attitude of school teachers and students towards hypertension can be conducted.
- 12. The same study can be conducted using old cases of hypertensive patients.

- 13. The same study can be replicated by overcoming the limitations of the present studies.
- 14. A research initiative can be fostered among the nurses and nursing students on the various aspects of LSMS.
- 15. Long term studies can be encouraged for understanding the sustained effects of LSMS.
- 16. Active and on-going research wing can be employed in the clinical area for following up long term LSMS trials.
- 17. Collaborative research can be conducted among the departments of nursing, physiotherapy, yoga and, dietetics and to identify and disseminate the effects of LSMS among various patient groups.

6.4 LIMITATIONS OF THE STUDY

- The samples are those who got diagnosed within the proceeding period of 6 months but the exact onset of hypertension is not known, hypertension being asymptomatic.
- 2. Interview schedule with closed ended questions limited the views and expressions of the hypertensive patients.
- The data collected was cross sectional in nature, could not elicit the patients to come out with their long term problems.
- 4. The reliance on the memory of study subjects for eliciting the family history of hypertension was limited.
- 5. The study was limited to Vikravandi and Vazhudareddyareas of Villupuram.
- 6. Generalization is limited to the population as samples selected through purpose sampling technique and a small sample size.

6.5 CONCLUSION

Hypertension starts with young age, even in 20s. But, unlike others, once identified at an early stage, this condition is easy to control despite being a silent killer. The problem lies in screening and identifying its presence. Getting a master check up done regularly for the public especially for the high risk group could eliminate half of the treatment burden. Teaching the victims regarding the availability of complementary and alternative therapies help them adopt a suitable measure for them. It is the respectability of health care personnel to screen, identify and create awareness of the disorder in coordination with the public. This paves the way to, make use of their resources, change their life style with determination and regularity of treatment and monitor themselves thereby prevent and treat complications in time.

REFERENCES

- World Health Organization. Global Health Repository. April 24, 2013. Available from:http://www.who.int/gho/ncd/ris_factors/blood_pressure_prevalence_text/e n/index.html.
- Denise F. CheryP. Beck T. Biostatistics in nursing.6thed. New Delhi: Wolters Kluwer; 2006.
- 3. Global health risks: Mortality and burden of disease attributable to selected major risks. Geneva: WHO; 2009.
- 4. Chintamani. Lewis's text book of medical surgical nursing.7 th ed. New Delhi:Elsevier;2011.773-774.
- Brunner and Siddarth. Text book of medical surgical nursing 10thed, Lippincott: 858
- International day of yoga NCC directorate TN, P& AN Chennai Ministry of Ayurveda, yoga& naturopathy unani, siddha and homeopathy (AYUSH). 21 Jun 2015.
- Franco OH. Peeters A. BonneuxL.DeLaet C. Blood pressure in adulthood and life expectancy with cardiovascular disease in men and women. Hypertension 2005; 46:280-6.
- Diana Rodriguez . Managing Hypertension With Healthy Habits available from http://www.everydayhealth.com/hypertension/managing/adopting-healthierhabits.aspx.
- Maher D.Smeeth L. &Sekajugo J. Health transition in Africa: practical policy proposals for primary care. 2010. Available: http://www.who.int/bulletin/volumes/. Accessed 25 January 2011.
- Arthur s et al. Hypertension lifestyle modification for its prevention and management. Journal of American lifestyle medicine, 2009 May 17: 422-425. <u>http://ajl.sagepub.com/cgi/content/short.</u>

- Ezzati M VHS. Lawes CM. Leach R. James PT. Lopez AD. Rodgers A. Murray CJ. Rethinking the Diseases of Affluence Paradigm: Global Patterns of Nutritional Risks in Relation to Economic Development.PLoS Med. 2005; 2(5):e133.
- 12. Owusu I. K. Causes of Heart Failure as Seen in Kumasi, Ghana. 2007. Availablehttp://www.ispub.com. Accessed 15 January 2011.
- Cheung BM. Ong KL. Man YB. Lam KS. Lau CP. Prevalence, awareness, treatment, and control of hypertension: United States National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey 2001–2002. J ClinHypertens (Greenwich).2006; 8: 93–98. (7)
- Saha M S.Serum lipid profile of hypertensive patients in the northern region of Bangladesh.2006. Biol.Sci.14:93-98.
- Abriado-Lanza AF. Armbrister AN. Florez KR. Aguirre AN. Toward a Theory-Driven Model of Acculturation in Public Health Research. 2006. American Journal of Public Health 96 .1342-1346.
- Suzanne c. Smeltzer Brenda G Bare, et al. Brunner and Siddarth's Textbook of Medical Surgical Nursing. 12th ed. Philadelphia: wolters Kluwer.2010.890.
- Linda D.Urden. Kathleen M.Stacy .Mary E. Lough. Critical Care Nursing. 6 th ed. Missouri: Mosby Elsevier.2010. (www.elsevier.com/permissions) http: //evolve.elsevier.com/Urden/criticalcare.
- Harrison.T.R.Principlesof Internal Medicine.2012. Vol-2.18 th ed. 2042. New Delhi.
- Suzanne C.Smeltzer, Brenda G.Bare, Janice.L.Hinkle, Kerry.H.Cheever Title: Medical Surgical (South Asian Edition) Edition: Twelfth Edition (2010) Vol.I Pub: Wolters Kluwer India Pvt.Ltd. Pl: New Delhi. (sheetal.mattoo@wolterskluwer.com) http:// thepoint.lww.com/Smeltzer12e

- 20. Ramkumar Thiyagarajan. Pravati Pal.GopalKrushna Pal.Senthil Kumar Subramanian. Madanmohan Trakroo. Zachariah Bobby and Ashok Kumar Das. Additional benefit of yoga to standard lifestyle modification on blood pressure in prehypertensive subjects: a randomized controlled study. Advance online publication 4 September 2014.
- Neupane D1. McLachlan CS. Sharma R. Gyawali B. Khanal V. Mishra SR. Christensen B.Kallestrup P. Prevalence of hypertension in member countries of South Asian Association for Regional Cooperation (SAARC): systematic review and meta-analysis.Medicine . 2014 Sep; 93 (13):e74.
- Khandaker, R. K.Observence of world hypertension day. Paper presented at the meeting of the Hypertension Committee, National Heart foundation Hospital & Research Institute (NFH&RI), Dhaka, Bangladesh.2008.
- Vaidya A, Pokharel PK, Nagesh S. War veterans of Nepal and their blood pressure status: a population-based comparative study. J Hum Hypertens. 2007.21:900–903.
- 24. Available from: http://www.who.int/world-health-day/en/. Last accessed April 24, 2013.'
- Tanu.Midha et.al. Isolated hypertension and its determinants. Indian journal of community medicine.2010 April.35(1):89-93.
- MoHFW. WHO. National Cardiovascular Disease Database. 2012. Retrieved from hypertensionhttp://www.ebookbrowse.com/ nmhresources-national-cvd – database-final-report-pdf.d24505988.
- Mohan V.Deepa M. Farooq S.DattaM.Prevalence, awareness and control of hypertersion in Chennai. The Chennai Urban Rural Epidemiology Study (CURES-52).J Assoc Physicians India. May 2007.55:326-332.
- Integrated Disease Surveillance Report (IDSP).Non communicable disease Risk factor Survey.2007-08.29.

- 29. Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India and World Health Organization. National Cardiovascular Disease Database. Available at the URL: http://www.whoindia.org/LinkFiles/NMH_Resources_National_CVD_database-Final_Report.pdf.
- Iyer U. Mathur G. PanchanmiyaN.DhruvS.Risk factor scenario in an industrial set-up: Need for an effective screening tool to assess the high-risk group, Indian J Community Med, 2010.35.262-6. Available from: http://www.ijcm.org.in/text.asp?2010/35/2/262/66884'
- Gupta.R&Guptha. S. Strategies for initial management of hypertension. Indian J Med Res 132. November 2010. 531-542.
- 32. ProCor. Charting the history of hypertension in Ghana. Pobee J.O.M. An interview by Dr. Collins Kokuro. 2009. Available: http://www.procor.org/advocacy/advocacy_show. 12 Dec 2010.
- Doris Samal.et.al. Journal on stroke The Relation Between Knowledge About Hypertension and Education in Hospitalized Patients With Stroke in Vienna.
- Ike SO.Aniebue PN et.al .Department of Medicine. University of Nigeria Teaching Hospital. 2010 Jan; 104(1):55-60.Available from sobiajuluike@gmail.com.Acessed on Sep 4 2010.
- Thomas L. Lenz and Michael S. Monaghan. J Am Pharm Assoc. 2008;e92– e102. http://dionysus.psych.wisc.edu/lit/articles/LenzT2008a.pdf.'
- 36. Mohammadirfan MH, Desai VK, Kavishvar A. A study on effect of lifestyle risk factors on prevalence of hypertension among white collar job people of Surat. The International Journal of Occupational Health 2011 Nov;1(1):131.
- DrivenhornE.Kjellgren KI. Outcome following programme for lifestyle changes in people with hypertension. Journal of Clinical Nursing 2005 Sep; 16(7):144-51.
- Jane H. Johan D. Hypertension improvement through healthy lifestyle modification. The International Journal of Occupational Health 2011 Apr;1(3):188.'

- Svetkey LP et al. Effect of life style modification on BP by Race, Sex, Hypertension status and Age. Journal of human hypertension.2005 January; 1: 21-31.
- HedayatiS.ElsayedE.Reilly R. Non-pharmacological aspects of blood pressure management:Kidney International [serial on the Internet]. (2011, May 15), [cited August 21, 2015]; 79(10): 1061-1070. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 41. Srinath Reddy K.KatanMB.Diet, nutrition and the prevention of hypertension and cardiovascular diseases.Public Health Nutr. 2004 Feb;7(1A):167-86.
- Appel L J et.al Effects of protein, monounsaturated fat, and carbohydrate intake on blood pressure and serum lipids: results of the Omni Heart randomized trial. JAMA 2005; 294: 2455 –1464. II.
- 43. Maher J. The effect of a fruit and vegetable mix on hypertensive subjects and its potential as a high compliance alternative to the D.A.S.H. diet. Nutritional Perspectives: Journal Of The Council On Nutrition [serial on the Internet]. (2009), [cited August 21, 2015]; 32(1): 5. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- Primary prevention of essential hypertension. Technical report series, A Guide; WHO.Geneva; 1984.
- Hasarika and alhawat.A study on awareness and treatment of hypertension.
 2005. Retrieved from http://www.jhpdc.unc.edu/
- 46. Syed.NabelZafar et.al. Awareness, risk factor, presting features and complication of hypertension among Hypertensive's and normotensives, Journal of Pakistan,Medical Association,2010 December;6:2-5.http://www.pame.org.pklemnji 5.
- 47. Paul.Munter.et.al.Factors associated with hypertension, awareness, treatment and controlavailablefromhttp://hyper.ahajournalsorg/cgi/external_ref?access_num=1 4744929&link type Accessed on January 26 2004.

- Ike SO. AnieubuePN.Aniebue UU. Knowledge perception and practice of lifestyle modification measures among adult hypertensives in Nigeria. Trans SrSoc Trop Med Hyg 2010 Jan;104(1):55-60.
- 49. Melinda Sue darling. Non-pharmaceutical management of hypertension among middle aged and older adults. Master science thesis submitted to university of Arizona 2009. www.Nursingarizona.edu/scripts/num=84141562351220991330.
- 50. KanchanaG.Nagarathnamma M. Effect of structured teaching programme on patient attending cardiology outpatient department. Nurses of India: 2009 October; 10(10):4-6.
- Dietary Guidelines
 Americans2010.www.cnDD.usda.aov/Publications/DietarvGuldelines/2010/Pol icvDoc/PolicvDoc.Ddf.Accessed January 25,2012.
- 52. Eskridge MS. Hypertension and chronic kidney disease: the role of lifestyle modification and medicationmanagement .Nephrology Nursing Journal (NEPHROL NURS J), 2010 Jan-Feb; 37 (1): 55-60, 99.
- 53. Udupa KN. Stress and its management by yoga. 2nd ed. Delhi: MotilalBanarsidass Publishers; 1985.
- Patel C. Marmot MG. Terry DJ. CarruthersM.Hunt B. Patel M. Trial of relaxation in reducing coronary risk: four year follow up. Br Med J (Clin Res Ed) 1985; 290: 1103-6.
- 55. Van MontfransGA.Karemaker JM. WielingW.DunningAJ. Relaxation therapy and continuous ambulatory blood pressure in mild hypertension: a controlled study. BMJ 1990; 300 : 1368-72.
- 56. Kearney P M.Whelton M. Reynolds K. MuntnerP.Whelton P K.and He J. Global burden of hypertension: analysis of worldwide data. Lancet 2005; 365:217–223.
- 57. GhoshArnab.Effects of daily exercise on blood pressure, plasma glucose, and obesity measures in 55–64-year-old obese Asian Indian men: The Calcutta longitudinal study. American Journal of Human BiologyVolume 18, Issue 5, pages 718–721, September/October 2006.'

- Chanudet X et al. Physical activity in hypertension management. Press Med. 2006 Jun; 35(6 Pt 2):1081-7.
- Mendes R. Sousa N and BarataJL.Physical activity and public health: recommendations for exercise prescription.Acta Med Port. 2011 Nov-Dec; 24(6):1025-30. E.pub 2012 Feb 20.
- Byron's. Brisk Walking Lowers Blood Pressure, Increases Fitness In Obese.
 Annual Meeting of the American College of Sports Medicine; 2008 June.
- RughMcCaffery.PratumRukmi.UraiHottha Kit PayooKasetsamboon. The effects of yoga on Hypertensive persons in Thailand.Histolic Nursing Practice. July – Aug. 2005; 173-179.
- 62. FalguniDesai.OnaVyas. A study to determine the effectiveness of yoga, biofeedback and music therapy in management of hypertension.The Indian Journal of Occupational Therapy. Vol. 23 (2): 3.
- 63. Murthy SN. Rao NS. NandkumarB.Kadam A .Role of naturopathy and yoga treatment in the management of hypertension. INYS Medical Research Society. Jindal Nature cure Institute. Jindal Nagar.Bangalore. India. Complementary therapies in clinical practice. 2011 Feb;17(1):9-12.
- 64. Rioux.JenniferGrace.Ritenbaugh. Cheryl. Alternative Therapies in Health & Medicine.2013 May-Jun; 19 (3): 32-46.
- Miles SC. Chun-Chung C. Hsin-Fu L. Hunter SD. Dhindsa M. Nualnim N. Tanaka H. Alternative Therapies in Health & Medicine, 2013 Jan-Feb; 19 (1): 38-45.
- 66. Chandrababu R. Effectiveness of self instructional module on the knowledge of lifestyle modification of hypertensives among patients with hypertension. Nightingale Nursing Times 2012 Aug;1(8):30.
- 67. KirubelZemedkun Gebreselassie1 and MojganGebreselassie. Epidemiology of Hypertension Stages in Two Countries in Sub-Sahara Africa: Factors Associated with Hypertension Stages International Journal of Hypertension Volume 2015 (2015), Article ID 959256, 12 pages http://dx.doi.org/10.1155/2015/959256

- S. Yadav R. Boddula G. Genitta V. Bhatia B. Bansal S. Kongara S. Julka A. Kumar H.K. Singh, V. Ramesh &Bhatia E . Prevalence & risk factors of prehypertension & hypertension in an affluent north Indian population Indian J Med Res 128.December 2008. 712-720.
- 69. Doumas M. PapademetriouV.FaselisC.KokkinosP.Gender differences in hypertension: myths and reality. *Biology of Sex Differences* 2012, 3:7
- 70. Giridhara R Babu. Jotheeswaran A T. TanmayMahapatra.SanchitaMahapatra. Ananth Kumar SR, Roger Detels. Neil Pearce.Is Hypertension Associated With Job Strain? A Meta-analysis of Observational Studies. Occup Environ Med. 2014;71(3):220-227.
- 71. Wang H .Effects of marital status and transition on hypertension in Chinese women: a longitudinal study. Unpublished 2005. Presented at the 2005 Annual Meeting of the Population Association of carried out a longitudinal study at nine America.Philadelphia. Pennsylvania; March 31 - April 2, 2005. 20.
- 72. Peter Lloyd-Sherlock.John Beard. Nadia Minicuci.ShahEbrahim.SomnathChatterji.Hypertension among older adults in low- and middle-income countries: prevalence, awareness and control
- 73. Alexander G Logan. Hypertension in aging patients'.Expert Rev CardiovascTher. 2011;9(1):113-120. http://www.medscape.com/viewarticle/734880_4
- 74. Brisk walking. Eur J Epidemiol. 2005;20(5):421-7. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/16080590
- 75. DimeoF.PagonasN.SeibertF.ArndtR.ZidekW.WesthoffTH. Aerobic exercise reduces blood pressure in resistant hypertension.2012 Sep.60(3).653-8
- 76. Tommy Boone brisk walking http://www.yogapoint.com/info/pranayama4.htm
- Leosco D. Parisi V. Femminella GD. Formisano R. Petraglia L. Bonaduce D. Effects of exercise training on cardiovascular adrenergic system. Biomed Res Int. 2014; 2014:634132. doi: 10.1155/2014/634132. Epub 2014 Apr 27.

- Petriz BA. Franco OL. J Am SocHypertens. 2013 Nov-Dec;7(6):494-506. doi: 10.1016/j.jash.2013.07.004. Epub 2013 Aug 28.
- Gliemann L. Nyberg M. Hellsten Y. Nitric oxide and reactive oxygen species in limb vascular function: what is the effect of physical activity?.FreeRadical Res. 2014 Jan;48(1):71-83. doi: 10.3109/10715762.2013.835045. Epub 2013 Oct 7.
- Tschentscher M. NiederseerD.Niebauer J. Health benefits of Nordic walking: a systematic review Am J Prev Med. 2013 Jan;44(1):76-84.
- 81. liSoroush. Cheryl Der Ananian, Barbara Ainsworth. Michael Belyea. Eric Poortvliet. Pamela Swan. JenelleWalker.AgnetaYngve. Effects of a 6-month walking study on blood pressure and cardiorespiratory fitness in U.S. and Swedish adults: ASUKI Step Study. 2013. 4(2).
- Lee LL, Watson MC, Mulvaney CA, Tsai CC. Lo SF. The effect of walking intervention on blood pressure control: a systematic review.Int J Nurs Stud. 2010 Dec;47(12):1545-61. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed.
- Maddison R. Review: regular brisk walking improves cardiovascular risk factors in healthy sedentary adults. Evidence Based Nursing [serial on the Internet. (2008), 11(1): 15. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 84. Miyashita M.BurnsS.Stensel D. Accumulating short bouts of brisk walking reduces postprandial plasma triacylglycerol concentrations and resting blood pressure in healthy young men. American Journal Of Biophysiological Nutrition .2008 :8(5): 1225-1231. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- Lenz TL. Monaghan MS Lifestyle modifications for patients with hypertension. .Am J Hypertens. 2009 Mar; 22(3):325

31.http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/18653408. 2008 Dec 18.

- 86. Wu RZ. Zheng YP. Clinical study on conducting physical exercise in lowering blood pressure of hypertensive patients and influencing their endocrine hormones.ZhongguoZhong Xi Yi Jie He ZaZhi. 2001 Dec;21(12):897-9
- 87. http://www.naturehomeopathy.com/breathing-exercise-nadi-suddhi-procedureand-benefits.html

- Awdish.Rana Lee Adawi.Small. Bronwyn Larissa.Cajigas. Hector FloresAlternative Therapies in Health & Medicine. 2015 Mar; 21 (2): 48-5.
- Sharma G. Sharma L.Sood S. Synergistic approach of applied physiology & yoga to combat lifestyle diseases. Internet Journal of Alternative Medicine [serial on the Internet]. 2009, July
- Posadzki.Paul.Cramer.Holger.Kuzdzal.Adrian.Lee.MyeongSoo.Ernst.EdzardCo mplementary Therapies in Medicine (COMPLEMENT THER MED).2014 Jun; 22 (3): 511-22.
- BibinsBaby .KiranRaoChavan . Effectiveness of Yoga on Hypertensive Client-A Community Based study. Asian J.NursingEdu and Research 3[4]: October-December 2013:240-242. WWW.anvpublication.org.
- 92. Moa Wolff. Kristina Sundquist.Sara Larsson Lönn and PatrikMidlöv .BMC CardiovascDisord. 2013; 13: 111. Published online 2013 Dec 7. doi: 10.1186/1471-2261-13-111PMCID: PMC4029555http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih. gov /pmc/articles/PMC4029555/
- 93. Cohen D et al. Preliminary results of the limbs study: assessing effects of yoga on blood pressure reduction. Journal of Clinical Hypertension 2012; 15 Suppl 1:122'131.Moa Wolff.KristinaSundquist.Sara Larsson Lönn and PatrikMidlöv.BMCCardiovascDisord. 2013; 13: 111. Published online 2013 Dec 7. doi: 10.1186/1471-2261-13-111PMCID: PMC4029555http://www.ncbi.nlm. nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4029555/
- 94. Okonta NR1. Does yoga therapy reduce blood pressure in patients with hypertension?: an integrative review.HolistNursPract. 2012 May-Jun;26(3):137-41.
- Chung SC1, Brooks MM, Rai M, Balk JL, Rai S.J Altern Complement Med. 2012 Jun;18(6):589-96.[PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE].
- 96. Ramesh L. Bijlani. M.D.Rama P. Vempati.B.N.Y.S. Raj K.Yadav M.D Roomabasu ray, M.sc., Vanigupta, M.D., Ratnasharma, Ph.D., Nalinmehta. Sushil C. Mahapatra. A Brief but comprehensive lifestyle Education Program Based on Yoga reduces Risk Factor for Cardiovascular Disease and Diabetes

Mellitus. The journal of Alternative and complementary Medicine. 2008. Vol 11. NO. 2:267-274.

- 97. Bhavanani AB1. Madanmohan. Sanjay Z. Int J Yoga. 2012 Jul;5(2):108-11. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/22869993.
- 98. JieWang.XingjiangXiongandWei Liu. PLoS One. 2013; 8(10): e76357. Published online 2013 Oct 4. doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0076357PMCID: PMC3790704http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3790704/
- Marshall Hagins. Rebecca States. Terry SelfeandKim Innes. Evid Based Complement Alternat Med. 2013; 2013: 649836. Published online 2013 May 28.
- 100. Tyagi A. Cohen M. AlternTher Health Med. 2014 Mar-Apr;20(2):32-59.
 PMID:24657958 [PubMed indexed for MEDLINE] http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/24657958.
- 101. Cade WT1. Reeds DN. Mondy KE. Overton ET. GrassinoJ.Tucker S. Bopp C. LacinyE.HubertS.Lassa-Claxton S.Yarasheski KEHIV Med. 2010 Jul 1;11(6):379-88.
- 102. Dhameja. Kanupriya. Singh.Savita. Mustafa M. D. Singh, K. P. Banerjee, Basu Dev. Agarwal. MukulAhmed.Rafat S. Journal of Alternative & Complementary Medicine (J ALTERN COMPLEMENT MED), 2013 Mar; 19 (3): 243-9.
- 103. Booklet Pranayama. New delhi:Morarji Desai National Yoga Center and JIPMER.
- 104. Yogam. Revised edition Nov-2005; Triplicane: Vivekananda Kendraprakashan trust.
- 105. John H. Maher. The Effect of a Fruit and Vegetable Mix on Hypertensive Subjects and Its Potential as a High Compliance Alternative to the D.A.S.H. Diet.Nutritional Perspectives: Journal of the Council on Nutrition of the American Chiropractic Association January 2009. 32 (1): 5-12
- 106. Chaturvedi M. Jindal S. Kumar R. Lifestyle modification in hypertension in the Indian context. JIACM 2009; 10(1&2).46-51.

- 107. Tetteh PT .Research exercise summary dietary interventions for managing hypertension(your guide to lowering blood pressure) U.S department of health and human services: National institutes of health national heart, lung, and blood institute.
- 108. Satterfield G, Anderson J, Moore C. Evidence Supporting the Incorporation of the Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension (DASH) Eating Pattern Into Stroke Self-Management Programs: A Review... cue ex pg 251-2. Journal of Neuroscience Nursing .2012, Oct. [cited August 20, 2015]; 44(5): 244-250. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 109. Kim H1. Song HJ. Han HR. Kim KB. Kim MTTranslation and validation of the dietary approaches to stop hypertension for Koreans intervention: culturally tailored dietary guidelines for Korean Americans with high blood pressure.JCardiovascular Nurs. 2013 Nov-Dec;28(6):514-23.
- 110. Azadbakht L. Fard NR. Karimi M.et. al., Diabetes Care. 2011:34:55-57.
- 111. De Koning L. Chiuve SE. Fung .H. et. al.Diabetes Care. 2011:34:1150-1156.
- 112. Fung N. Hu FB. Wu. et. al, Am J din Nutr. 2010; 92:1429-1435.
- 113. Fung TT. Hu FB. Hankinson SE.et. al., AtJi J Epidemioi. 2011; 174:652-660.
- 114. Harnden K. E. Frayn K.N &Hodson L .The British Dietetic Association Ltd.2010 J Hum Nutr Diet, 23, pp. 3–10.
- 115. Blumenthal JA. Babyak MA. Hinderliter A. et.al. Effects of the DASH diet alone and in combination with exercise and weight loss on blood pressure and cardiovascular biomarkers in men and women with high blood pressure: the ENCORE study.Arch Intern Med. 2010 Jan 25;170(2):126-35. doi: 10.1001/archinternmed.2009.470. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/20101007?itool=EntrezSystem2.PEntrez. Pubmed.Pubmed ResultsPanel.Pubmed RVDocSum&ordinalpos=1
- 116. Mulrow CD. Chiquette E. Angel L. Grimm R. Cornell J. SummerbellCD.Anagnostelis BB. Brand M. Withdrawn: dieting to reduce body

weight for controlling hypertension in adults. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2008 Oct 8; (4):CD000484.

- 117. Couch SC Saelens BE. Levin L. Dart K. Falciglia G. Daniels SR. The efficacy of a clinic-based behavioral nutrition intervention emphasizing a DASH-type diet for adolescents with elevated blood pressureJPediatr. 2008 Apr;152(4):494-501. doi: 10.1016/j.jpeds.2007.09.022. Epub 2007 Nov 5.
- 118. Sacks FM1. Svetkey LP. Vollmer WM. AppelLJ Bray GA. Harsha D. ObarzanekE.Conlin PR. Miller ER 3rd.Simons-Morton DG. Karanja N. Lin PH; Effects on blood pressure of reduced dietary sodium and the Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension (DASH) diet. DASH-Sodium Collaborative Research Group.NEngl J Med. 2001 Jan 4;344(1):3-10. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/11136953.
- 119. Feig DI.Sugar-sweetened beverages and hypertension.FutureCardiol. 2010 Nov;6(6):773-6. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/21142633
- 120. Michael A. B The Blood Pressure Effect of the Addition of the DASH Diet and Exercise to the Treatment Plan of Both Pre-hypertensive and Hypertensive Rural AdultsMarian Michel, DNP-c, MS, MA, BS, BSN, RNUniversity of Massachusetts, Amherst
- 121. Rankins J. Sampson W. Brown B. Jenkins-Salley T. Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension (DASH) intervention reduces blood pressure among hypertensive African American patients in a neighborhood health care center. Journal Of Nutrition Education & Behavior [serial on the Internet]. 2005, Sep. [cited August 20, 2015]; 37(5): 259-264. Available from: CINAHL Complete.'
- 122. Scisney-Matlock M. Glazewki L. McClerkingC.Kachorek L. Development and evaluation of DASH diet tailored messages for hypertension treatment. Applied Nursing Research. 2006, May, [cited August 20, 2015]; 19(2): 78-87. Available from: CINAHL Complete. Effectiveness of education in health in the nonmedication treatment of arterial hypertension. ActaPaulista De Enfermagem. 2013, Mar. [cited August 20, 2015]; 26(2): 179-184. Available from: CINAHL Complete.

- 123. Lopes Oliveira T, de Paula Miranda L, de Sousa Fernandes P, Prates Caldeira A
- 124. De de Lima Lopes M. Silva Marcon S. The life experience of seniors and their families dealing with arterial hypertension. Ciencia.Cuidado E Saude [serial on the Internet]. 2013, Apr. [cited August 20, 2015]; 12(2): 241-248. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 125. Annelita Almeida Oliveira R. Franciely Marques Franco S.RosemeiryCapriata de Souza A, Mayara Rocha Siqueira S, Sebastião Junior Henrique D. Compliance with treatment of hypertensive patients at basic health services [Portuguese]. Ciencia, Cuidado E Saude [serial on the Internet]. (2012, July), [cited August 21, 2015]; 11(3): 581-587. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 126. Shimbo D. Levitan E. Booth 3rd J. Calhoun D.JuddS.Muntner P.et al. The contributions of unhealthy lifestyle factors to apparent resistant hypertension: findings from the Reasons for Geographic And Racial Differences in Stroke (REGARDS) study. Journal Of Hypertension [serial on the Internet]. (2013, Feb), [cited August 21, 2015]; 31(2): 370-376. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 127. Effects of individual components of multiple behavior changes: the PREMIER trial. American Journal of Health Behavior [serial on the Internet]. (2007, Sep), [cited August 21, 2015]; 31(5): 545-560. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 128. Lin P. Yeh W. Svetkey L. Chuang S. Chang Y. Pan W. et al. Dietary intakes consistent with the DASH dietary pattern reduce blood pressure increase with age and risk for stroke in a Chinese population. Asia Pacific Journal OfBiophysiological Nutrition [serial on the Internet]. (2013, June), [cited August 21, 2015]; 22(2): 482-491. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 129. Aram V. Chobanian. The hypertension paradox- more uncontrolled disease despite improved therapy. N Engl J Med 2009 ;361:878-87.
- 130. Baena CP1.Olandoski M. Younge JO. Buitrago-Lopez A. Darweesh SK. Campos N. Sedaghat S. Sajjad A. van HerptTT.Freak-Poli R. van den HoovenE. Felix JF. Faria-Neto JR. Chowdhury R. Franco OHEffects of lifestyle-related
interventions on blood pressure in low and middle-income countries: systematic review and meta-analysis.JHypertens. 2014 May;32(5):961-73.

- 131. A Ziv.O Vogel1.D Keret. S Pintov E. Bodenstein. K Wolkomir . K Doenyas. Y Mirovski1 and S Efrati .Comprehensive Approach to Lower Blood Pressure (CALM-BP): a randomized controlled trial of a multifactorial lifestyle intervention.J Hum Hypertens. 2013 Oct;27(10):594-600.
- 132. Huang S.Hu X.ChenH.XieDGanXWu Y. The positive effect of an intervention program on the hypertension knowledge and lifestyles of rural residents over the age of 35 years in an area of China.Hypertens Res. 2011 Apr;34(4):503-8. doi: 10.1038/hr.2010.265. Epub 2011 Jan 20.
- 133. Soudarssanane M .B. Jayalakshmy R. Thiruselvakumar D. NavasakthiD.SahaiA.SaptharishiL.Non-pharmacological Interventions in Hypertension: A Community-based Cross-over Randomized Controlled Trial.Indian J Community Med. 2011 Jul;36(3):191-6.
- 134. Rocha-Goldberg Mdel P. Corsino L. Batch B. Voils CI. Thorpe CT.Bosworth HB. SvetkeyLPHypertension Improvement Project (HIP) Latino: results of a pilot study of lifestyle intervention for lowering blood pressure in Latino adults.Ethn Health. 2010 Jun;15(3):269-82.
- 135. Fujii H. et al Tohoku J Exp Med. 2010 Apr;220(4):307-18. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/20410682.
- 136. Fan AZ. Mallawaarachchi DS. Gilbertz D. Li Y.MokdadAH.Prev Med. 2010 Mar;50(3):138-171. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed. Epub 2009 Dec 16.
- 137. Lopez L. Cook EF. Horng MS. Hicks LS. Lifestyle modification counseling for hypertensive patients: results from the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey 1999-2004. Am J Hypertens. 2009 Mar;22(3):325-31. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/19096366. Epub 2008 Dec 18.
- 138. Fernandez S. Scales KL. Pineiro JM. Schoenthaler AM. Ogedegbe G.J Am Geriatr Soc. A senior center-based pilot trial of the effect of lifestyle intervention on blood pressure in minority elderly people with

hypertension. 2008 Oct;56(10):1860-6. doi: 10.1111/j.1532-5415.2008.01863.x. Epub 2008 Aug 21

- Neutel. C. Campbell .N. R. Changes in lifestyle after hypertension diagnosis in Canada. Can J Cardiol. Mar 2008; 24(3): 199–204.
- 140. Scala D. D'Avino M. Cozzolino S. Mancini A. Andria B. Caruso G. Tajana G. Caruso D. Promotion of behavioural change in people with hypertension: an intervention study.Pharm World Sci. 2008 Dec; 30(6):834-9. Epub 2008 Jun 27.
- 141. Viera AJ. KshirsagarAV.HinderliterAL.Lifestyle modifications to lower or control high blood pressure: is advice associated with action? The behavioral risk factor surveillance survey.JClinHypertens (Greenwich). 2008 Feb;10(2):105-11 http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/18256575.
- 142. Lien LF. Brown AJ.Ard JD, Loria C. Erlinger TP. Feldstein AC. Lin PH. Champagne CM. King AC. McGuire HL. Stevens VJ. Brantley PJ. Harsha DW. McBurnie MA. Appel LJ. SvetkeyLP.Effects of PREMIER lifestyle modifications on participants with and without the metabolic syndrome. 2007 Oct;50(4):609-16. Epub 2007 Aug 13.Hypertension. 2007 Oct;50(4):609-16. Epub 2007 Aug 13 http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.
- 143. Miura K. Myogadani H. KadoyaY.Hayashi M. Motoya M. Kuzumaki M. YonedaM.Mitsui T, Nishijo M. MorikawaY.Nakanishi Y. Nakashima M. Nakagawa H. Effectiveness of lifestyle modification programs for control of blood pressure: a non-randomized controlled trial in Komatsu, Japan. Nihon KoshuEiseiZasshi.2006;53(8):533-42. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.
- 144. Ohta M .NanriH.Matsushima Y. Sato Y. Ikeda M. Blood pressure-lowering effects of lifestyle modification: possible involvement of nitric oxide bioavailability. Hypertension Res.2005 Oct;28(10):779-86 .http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.
- 145. Pajak A. Kawalec E. Lifestyle characteristics and hypertension in the middleaged population of Kraków. 2005 Dec; 2:17-21.Blood Press Suppl. 2005 Dec; 2:17-21 http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov.

- 146. Dickinson HO. Mason JM. Nicolson DJ. Campbell F. Beyer FR. Cook JVWilliams B. Ford GA. J Hypertens. 2006 Feb;24(2):215-33.
- 147. DusekJA.HibberdPL.BuczynskiB.ChangBH.DusekKC.JohnstonJM.Wohlhueter AL.BensonH.ZusmanRMJ.Altern Complement Med. Mar; 2008 14(2):129-38.
- 148. Adel Al-Wehedy. Soad Hassan AbdElhameed.DoaaAbd El-Hameed Effect of Lifestyle Intervention Program on Controlling Hypertension among Older Adults Vol 5, No 5 (2014) journal of education and practice.http://www.iiste.org/Journals/index.php/JEP/article/view/10955
- 149. Svetkey L. Harsha D. Vollmer W. Stevens V. Obarzanek E. Appel L. et al. Premier: a biophysiological trial of comprehensive lifestyle modification for blood pressure control: rationale, design and baseline characteristics. Annals Of Epidemiology [serial on the Internet]. (2003, July). [cited August 21, 2015]; 13(6): 462-471. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 150. Nowson C. Worsley A. MargerisonC.Jorna M. Godfrey S. Booth A. Blood pressure change with weight loss is affected by diet type in men. American Journal OfBiophysiological Nutrition [serial on the Internet]. (2005, May), [cited August 21, 2015]; 81(5): 983-989. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 151. León-Muñoz L. Guallar-Castillón P. Graciani A. López-García E. Mesas A.Rodríguez-Artalejo F. et al. Dietary habits of the hypertensive population of Spain: accordance with the DASH diet and the Mediterranean diet. Journal Of Hypertension [serial on the Internet]. (2012, July), [cited August 20, 2015]; 30(7): 1373-1382. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 152. Elmer P. Obarzanek E. Vollmer W. Simons-Morton D. Stevens V. Appel L. et al. Effects of comprehensive lifestyle modification on diet, weight, physical fitness, and blood pressure control: 18-month results of a randomized trial. Annals Of Internal Medicine [serial on the Internet]. (2006, Apr 4), [cited August 21, 2015]; 144(7): 485. Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 153. Hyerang. Hee-Jung S. Hae-Ra H. Kim B. K.Miyong T. K. Translation and Validation of the Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension for Koreans Intervention. Journal Of Cardiovascular Nursing [serial on the Internet]. (2013, Nov), [cited August 20, 2015]; 28(6): 514-523. Available from: CINAHL Complete.

- 154. Premalatha.p.prevalence of hypertension and its correlates among school children.2014:2(2):2-6.
- 155. TeenaannJohn, waist hip ratio among client with uncontrolled and controlled hypertension.2012:4(2):1-6.
- 156. AnjumHumayun.ArbabSherShah.Riffat Sultana Relation of hypertension with body mass index and age in male and female population of Peshawar.Pakistan. J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad 2009;21(3)- 63.
- 157. DamirchiA.MehrabaniJ.Prevalence Of Obesity, Overweight And Hypertension And Related-Risk Factors In Adults Menolympic Fall 2009, Volume 17, Number 3 (SERIAL 47); 87 To 103.
- 158. Breen J. An introduction to causes, detection and management of hypertension. Nursing Standard. Date of acceptance: May 12 2008. 23, 14, 42-46.
- 159. Tesfaye F. NG Nawi. H Van Minh P Byass. Y Berhane1 R Bonita and S Wall Association between body mass indexes And blood pressure across three Populations in Africa and Asia Geneva Journal of Human Hypertension (2007) 21, 28–37 Journal of Human Hypertension (2007) 21, 28–37 .www.nature.com/jhh.
- 160. William E. Moore PhD . Aietah Stephens MS.Terry Wilson MHR. Wesley Wilson. MHR June E. Eichner PhD. Preventing chronic disease public health research practice and policy Body Mass Index and Blood Pressure Screening in a Rural Public School System: The Healthy Kids Project vol; 3 no 4 Oct 2007.
- 161. Gupta R. Rastogi P. Sarna M. Gupta VP. Sharma SK.Kothari K. Body-mass index, waist-size.waist-hip ratio and cardiovascular risk factors in urban subejcts.
- 162. SanyaAO. OgwumikeOO. Relationship of WHR and BMI to BP of individuals in Ibadan north local government. African journal physiotherapy and rehabilitation sciences: Vol 1(1) ;2009.
- 163. MausumiDe .AmitabhaChattopadhyay .Kanak Kumar Mitra .PrasantaRayKarmakarIndrajitMondal .SanjaySeth . IOSR Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences. A Study of Clinicosocial profile of young female

hypertensives in a tertiary care hospital Volume 11, Issue 6 (Nov.- Dec. 2013), PP 01-06.

- 164. Kathryn . Norman R.C. Campbell. Michel R. Joffre's. Finlay A. McAlister. Marianne Nichol. Susan Quash. Helen L. Johansen and Mark S. Tremblay Blood pressure in Canadian adults. February 2010 Health Reports, Vol. 21, no. 1, March 2010 page no; 1-11.
- 165. Shailendra Kumar Tripathi B. P IOSR Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences.Mishral. RuchiTripathiM. Mishra K. Tripathi.Comparative study of vegetarian and non-vegetarian diet on blood pressure, serum sodium and chloride from two different geographical locations July –December, 2010.Indian.J. Prev. Soc. Med Vol. 41 No.3 & 4.
- 166. Wexler R. Elton T.Pleister A. Feldman D Barriers to blood pressure control as reported by African American patients. Journal of the National Medical Association (J NATL MED ASSOC), 2009 Jun; 101 (6): 597-603.
- 167. Lipowicz A. LopuszanskaM.Marital differences in blood pressure and the risk of hypertension among Polish men. Eur J Epidemiol. 2005;20(5):421-7. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/16080590.
- 168. Haijiang Wang. Effects of Marital Status and Transition on Hypertension in Chinese Women: A Longitudinal Study to be presented at the annual meeting of the Population Association of America, Philadelphia. March 31-April 2, 2005.
- Holland N.Nandi OV, Victoria O, Identifying barriers to hypertension care.
 2008.
- 170. Prathiba.G. Nightingale Nursing Times.Lifestyle modification for hypertensive patients: 2015:11:40-42.
- 171. Sivakiran.M. Health behavior of hypertensive patients between controlled and uncontrolled blood pressure:2014:6(5):16-20.
- 172. Jemijeba malar. cost analysis of treatment among hypertensive patients in private and government hospital erode: The Nurse 2014:6(3):1-6.

- 173. Girija .M, kokilavani.N, Effectiveness of structured teaching programme on knowledge, attitude and practice among patients with hypertension.2014:4(1):136-139.
- 174. Sathyashenbegapriya. Explore the knowledge, perception and awareness about yoga among hypertensive patients in K.S. hedge medical academy, deralakatte, mangalore:2014:2(3):210-212.
- 175. Ramesh.c. Preventing hypertension among urban adults:2014:10(3):48-50.
- 176. Ponchitra .R. A study to assess the effectiveness of structured teaching programme on knowledge of life style modifications in post myocardial infarction patients in selected hospital.2013:14(03):11-14.
- 177. Damayanthi S. Lifestyle modification of hypertensive patients in the prevention of coronary artery disease. Nurses of India 2013;14(11):8-11.
- 178. Ramesh chandrababu.Modifyinglifestyle of patients with hypertension:2012:8(6):30-32.
- 179. Sanne S. MuntnerP.KawasakiL.HyreA.DeSalvo KB.knowledge on hypertension in an urban clinic. Winter2008; 18(1):42-7.Available from: CINAHL Complete.
- 180. Lee SG, Jeon SY .The knowledge, attitude and practice of blood pressure management from the patient's viewpoint: a qualitative study: J Prev Med Public Health. 2008 Jul;41(4):255-64..
- 181. Ola A Akl. Amal E Khairy. NermineMAbdel-Aal. Bothina S Deghedi. Zahraa F Amer. Knowledge, Attitude, Practice and Performance ofFamily Physicians Concerning Holistic Management of Hypertension.J Egypt Public Health Assoc. 2006. Vol. 81 No. 5, 6, :337-353.
- 182. Bell RA.Kravitz RL. Physician counseling for hypertension: what do doctors really do? .Patient Educ Couns. 2008 Jul;72(1):115-21. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/18328663.
- 183. 'Hypertensiontps://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ernestine_Wiedenbach'
- 184. Chinn P & Jacobs M. Theory and nursing .2nd ed. St. Louis; C.V. Mosby. 1987.

- 185.Hypertensiontp://Nursing-Theory.Org/Theories-And-Models/Wiedenbach-The-Helping-Art- Of-Clinical-Nursing.
- 186. Marriner-Tomey. A. Nursing theorists and their work. 3rd ed. Mosby. 1995.
- 187.BasavanthappaB.T.Nursing Theories. 2nd ed. Jaypee publishers. pg no 130-143
- 188. George J. Nursing theories: the base for professional nursing practice .3rd ed.1985. Norwalk, Connecticut: Appleton & Lange.
- 189. www.wikipedia.org/demographic of India 189
- 190. http://www.census2011.co.in/census/district/27-viluppuram.html. 190

APPENDIX – A

LETTER SEEKING PERMISSION FOR DATA COLLECTION

From

K. THAMARAI SELVI Principal, E.S.College of Nursing Villupuram

To

Respected Sir/Madam

Subject : Seeking permission to do Ph.D Data collection reg.

I, Mrs.K. Thamarai selvi, doing ph.D in nursing at CSI Jeyaraj Annapackiam college of Nursing, Madurai, which is affiliated to the Tamilnadu Dr.M.G.R. Medical University, Chennai have undertaken the topic for thesis titled, "EFFECTIVENESS OF LIFE STYLE MODIFICATION STRATEGIES IN LOWERING BLOOD PRESSURE AMONG NEWLY DIAGNOSED HYPERTENSIVE PATIENTS".

My study topic requires newly diagnosed hypertensive patients as study samples. Hence, I request your goodself to grant me permission to collect data in your esteemed area.

Expecting you favourable reply.

Thanking you

Yours Sincerely Mrs.K. Thamarai selvi,

APPENDIX-B

PERMISSION LETTER FOR CONDUCTING MAIN STUDY-VIKKIRAVANDI

From

The President Vikkiravandi town panchayat Villupuam District.

То

Prof.K.Thamarai selvi.K Principal E.S College of Nursing, Villupuram.

Respected madam

I here by grant permission to prof.Thamarai selvi.K, Principal,E.S College of Nursing, Villupuram, to conduct data collection for her Ph.D title " Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients" residing at Vikkiravandi for the period from January -2014 to December-2014.

RAV

SIGNATURE

ூ. பலர்பல் என்னன். க. க. பேரூராட்சி மன்ற தலைவர், விக்கிரவாண்டி பேரூராட்சி, விருப்புறம் மாவட்டம்-60%

APPENDIX-C

PERMISSION LETTER FOR CONDUCTING MAIN STUDY-VAZHUDAREDDY

PERMISSION CERTIFICATE

I hereby grant permission to prof.Thamarai selvi.K, Principal, E.S College of Nursing, Villupuram, to conduct data collection for her Ph.D title **"Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients"** residing at vazhudhareddy, Villupuram District during the period from January-2014 to December-2014.

> M. Caneson . நகர் மன்ற உறுப்பினர், 27வது வார்டு. வடுதரைப்பு விருப்புரம் நகராட்கி.

APPENDIX-D

INSTITUTIONAL ETHICAL CLEARANCE CERTIFICATE

Minutes of the ethical committee meeting held on 08.08.2009 in C.S.I. Jeyaraj Annapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai. The research title "Life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients" was approved by the committee and Mrs. K. Thamarai Selvi is permitted to do the research under the Guidance of Dr. R. Rajkumar, M.D., Ph.D and Co-Guidance of Prof. Dr. Santhi Appavu, M.Sc(N), Ph.D for the research work is provisionally registered from 01.10.2010 for your years as a part time candidate for research leading to the award of Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing in the broad field of Community Health Nursing to The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R. Medical University, Chennai.

1. Chairperson Prof.Dr.A.Charles Stephen Rajasingh, M.S.,M.Ch., Medical Superintendent, Christian Mission Hospital, Madurai.	6. Member Secretary Prof.Dr.C. Jothi Sophia, M.Sc(N)., Ph.D., Principal, C.S.I. Jeyaraj Annapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai.
 Co-Chairperson Prof.Dr. K. Rajalakshmi, M.Sc(N)., Ph.D., Research Coordinator, C.S.I. Jeyaraj Annapackiam College of Nursing, Madurai. 	7. Member-Clinician Prof.Dr.P. Jeyasingh, M.D.,D.V.,Ph.D., Head of Department (STD), Christian Mission Hospital, Madurai.
3. Medical Scientist	8. Legal Expert
Prof.Dr.V.N.Rajasekaran, M.D. Ph.D.,	Mr. C. Fernandez Rathinaraja, M.A.,B.L.,
Medical Director,	Legal Advisor,
Meenakshi Mission Hospital, Madurai	DM & R, Madurai.
4. Philosopher	9. Social Scientist
Prof.Dr.,J.P.Gabriel, M.Sc.,M.Ed.,M.Phil.,Ph.D.,	Mr. R. Ravikumar, M.A,B.Ed., M.Phil.,
Director,	Principal,
C.S.I. School of Education, Madurai.	Bethsan Special School, Madurai.
 Member Secretary	10. Community Worker
Curriculum Development,	Mrs. Gandhimathi,M.A.,
The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R. Medical University,	Community Worker-Grade-III,
Chennai.	Thiruparankundrum, Madurai.

Signature of the Chairperson Prof.Dr.A.Charles Stephen Rajasingh CHAIRPERSON ETHICAL COMMITTEE NURSING RESEARCH CENTRE, C.S.I. JEYARAJ ANNAPACKIAM COLLEGE OF NURSING, JONESPURAM, PASUMALAI, MADURAI - 4.

APPENDIX-E

CERTIFICATES

1.YOGA CERTIFICATE

Annie Ranke Cores & Nature Cores & Manuella Core	Certificate of Merit This is to certify that <u>PROF. MAS. K. THE MARALS F.W.</u> of <u>ES.COMEDE NUMERAN NUMERAN</u> . has completed a DIPLOMA COURSE IN YOGA He led is surved T. Grade for his / her neformance in the evanination held during the	Academic year
--	---	---------------

TRANSLATION CERTIFICATE

I certify that the tools used for the study on "Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients" by Prof. Mrs. Thamaraiselvi. K. registered her Ph. D in Nursing under the guidance of Dr. R. Rajkumar at The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical University, Chennai Tamil Nadu was translated by me to the best of my judgment from Tamil to English.



ignature I.MARIA JOSEPH, M.A., M.A., M.Ed., M.Phil, Graduate Teacher (B.T. Asst.) Gevt. Panchayat Union Middle School, Kuthampoondi, Vikravandi Taluk, Villupuram District - 605 652.

TRANSLATION CERTIFICATE

I certify that the tools used for the study on "Effectiveness of life style modification strategies in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients" by Prof. Mrs. Thamaraiselvi. K. registered her Ph. D in Nursing under the guidance of Dr. R. Rajkumar at The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical University, Chennai Tamil Nadu was translated by me to the best of my judgment from English to Tamil.

A. NATARAJAN, M.A. B.E. B.T. TEACHER, (TAMI) P.U.M. SCHOOL, KUTHAMPOONDI, VIKRAVANDI BLOCK, VILLUBURAM DISTRICT, 605 652.



APPENDIX-F

LETTER SEEKING EXPERT OPINION FOR THE CONTENT VALIDITY OF TOOL

From

Prof. K. Thamaraiselvi, Principal, E.S. College of Nursing, Villupuram.

То

Respected Madam,

I, **Ph.D Scholar** request your good self to kindly validate my dissertation tool for the study titled, "Effectiveness of lifestyle modification in lowering blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients" enrolled under the TN.Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai.

I would be deeply grateful for the validation of my tool and for your valuable suggestions.

Thanking you

Yours faithfully

(K. THAMARAISELVI)

Date: Place:

Encl:

- 1. Tool 1-7
- 2. Validity certificate
- 3. Self addressed envelope

APPENDIX-G

CRITERIA CHECKLIST FOR VALIDATION OF THE TOOL

Dear madam/sir

Kindly go through the evaluation criteria check list for validation of the tool. There are three columns given for your responses and a column for your remarks. Kindly put a tick mark in the appropriate column and give your valuable remarks in the column wherever appropriate.

S.No	Criteria	Relevant	Needs Modification	Irrelevant	Remarks
1.	Base line data				
	a)all the characteristics				
	b)relevant to the topic of the study				
	c)all items are measurable				
	d)all the items can be retained				
	e)any other suggestions				
2.	Proforma on socio demographic clinical variable				
3.	Proforma on bio physiological variables				
4.	Teaching module on life style modification strategies				
5.	Daily practice LSMS calendar				
6.	Rating scale on level of satisfaction of life style modification strategies				
7.	Open ended feedback questionnaire on life style modification strategies				
8.	Check list on life style modification strategies				

APPENDIX -H

CRITERIA CHECK LIST FOR TEACHING MODULE

S NO	ITENIC		NEEDS	IDDEI EVANT
5.NU	11EM8	KELEVANI	MODIFICATION	IKKELEVANI
1.	Definition blood pressure,			
	hypertension and goal			
	Blood Pressure.			
2.	Stages of hypertension			
3.	Risk factors of			
	hypertension.			
4.	Benefits of effective control			
	on hypertension			
5	Complications of			
	undiagnosed and			
	uncontrolled hypertension.			
6	Demonstration of brisk			
	walking			
7	Demonstration of yoga-			
	Nadisudhi pranayama and			
	Savasana			
8.	Imparting DASH diet			

APPENDIX-I

CERTIFICATE OF THE TOOL VALIDATION

I, hereby certify that I have validated the tool presented by Prof. Mrs. K. Thamaraiselvi, Ph.DScholar, enrolled under The Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R. Medical University, Chennai, who is undertaking the study "Effectiveness of lifestyle modification strategies in lowering Blood pressure among newly diagnosed hypertensive patients" and it is found to be valid.

Signature of the expert	•
Name	:
Designation	:
Seal	:

Place:	
Date:	

APPENDIX-J

S.No	Name of the Expert	Working Place	Area of Spealication
		Consultant Cardiologist	M D(Mad)
1	Dr.PRAMOD KUMAR K.P	Appollo Hospitals	D M(Cardialagy)
		Chennai-600 006	D.M(Cardiology)
		Professor And Head	
2		Department Home Science	Food Science And
2	DR.KANCHANA	College Research Institution	Nutrition
		Madurai-625 104	
2	DD ANICE CEODCE	Desferrer MCON Marinel	Medical Surgical
3	DR.ANICE GEORGE	Professor MCON Manipal	Nursing
4		Dean SRM College Of	
4	DR.A JUDIE	Nursing Chennai	Paediatrices Nursing
		C.S.I Jeyaraj Annapackiam	
	PROF.DR.RAJALAKSHMI	College Of Nursing And	De alistais e Manuina
5		Allied Science Merry New	And Descent Crite
		Hills Jonespuram Pasumalai	And Research Guide
		Madurai-625 064	
		Principal Vignesh College	
6	S.VIJAYALAKSHMI	Of Nursing,	OBG
		Thiruvannamalai	
		Principal Omayalachi	
7	DR.S.KANCHANA	College Of Nursing. Nu.45	Community Health
/		Ambattur Road, Puzhal	Nursing
		Chennal-600 066	
		Professor Of Rani	
		Meiyammai College Of	
0	DR.KARALINE	Nursing Annamalai	
8	KARUNAGARI	University Annamalai	M.Sc(N),Ph.D
		Nagar.	

LIST OF EXPERTS WHO VALIDATED THE TOOL

9	MS.RAJESWARI.R	Staff Nurse, NCD Clinic, Villupuram Government Medical College and Hospital, Villupuram	DGNM
10	DR.K. NATARAJAN	HOD And Associate Professor of Medicine Government Medical College and Hospital, Villupuram	M.D (Gen, Med)
11	DR.R.NARMADHA LAKSHMI	Chief-IMCU Government Medical College And Hospital, Villupuram	Chief-IMCU Department Of Medicine
12	MR.SUNDHARAMOORTHY	Yoga Master	M.A, M.Phil, Ph.D
13	DR.SANTHI APPAVU	Principal Christian College Of Nursing Neyyoor-629 02 Kanniya Kumari District, Tamil Nadu	Medical Surgical Nursing
14	MR.JAYALAKSHMI	Principal College Of Nursing, SVBCH Silvassa U.T of D and NH	Medical Surgical Nursing
15	DR.PRPAKASH CHANDIAN	Sr.Consultant-Cardiologist Apollo Hospitals Chennai-600 006	M.D DNB (Cardio)
16	DR.PATRICIA TRUE MAN	HOD-Diet And Education Mv-Hospitals For Diabetes	Hod-Diet And Education
17	Dr. KANNAN	KVK, Viruthachalam (Co Ordinator)	M.Sc (Food Science), Ph.D.

APPENDIX-K

PATIENT CONSENT FORM-ENGLISH

CONSENT FORM

Name:

Date:

I, the newly diagnosed hypertensive Patient have been clearly explained of the Life Style Modification Strategies (LSMS) by the nursing researcher for her nursing Research. I am whole heartedly willing to participate in this study. I would like to come forward to participate in this research. The researcher has given me the permission to withdraw myself at any stage of my participation. I give consent to use all my personal data for the research purpose. I was assured for the confidentiality regarding the information gathered from me.

Signature of the researcher.

Signature of the patient.

APPENDIX-L

INFORMED CONSENT FORM-TAMIL

ஒப்புதல் அறிக்கை

நாள்:

பெயர்:

எனக்கு ''புதிதாக கண்டறியப்பட்ட ரத்த அழுத்த நோயாளிகளுக்கு அழுத்தத்தை குறைக்க வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற பயிற்சிகளின் ரத்த பங்கு" என்ற இந்த செவிலிய ஆய்வினை பற்றிய முழு விவரம் விளக்கமாக இந்த ஆய்வில் பங்கு கொள்வதில் இருந்த நன்மைகள் எடுத்துரைக்கப்பட்டது. பற்றி முழுமையாக புரிந்து கொண்டேன். இந்த ஆய்வில் தானாக முன்வந்து பங்கு பெறுகிறேன். மேலும் எனக்கு ஆய்வில் இந்த இருந்து எந்த சமயத்திலும் விலகிக்கொள்ள முழு அனுமதி வழங்கப்பட்டுள்ளது. என்னுடைய அதை விவரங்களை பார்வையிட்டு ஆய்வில் பயன்படுத்தி கொள்ள **(Ψ**(Ψ) அளிக்கிறேன். ஏன்னுடைய பெயர் மற்றும் அனுமதி அடையாளங்களை ரகசியமாக வைத்து கொள்ளப்படும் என்றும் எனக்கு உறுதியளிக்கப்பட்டுள்ளது.

நோயாளின் கையொப்பம்

செவிலியர் கையொப்பம்

APPENDIX - M

TOOL 1- CHECKLIST FOR SCREENING THE HYPERTENSIVE PATIENTS

S.NO: ____NAME: ____TELEPHONE NO: _____

ADDRESS:

S.	Type of	Variablas	Item	Classification	Sco	ore
No.	Criteria	v al lables	No.	Classification	Yes	No
1.	Inclusion	Age in years	1	31-60	1	0
2.		BP (mmHg)	2	Systolic >140	1	0
			3	Diastolic >80	1	0
3.		Known H/O	4	<6 months	1	0
		hypertension				
4.		Type of hypertension	5	Primary	1	0
5.		Any major health	6	Altered sensory	0	1
		problems		perception		
			7	Hard of hearing	0	1
			8	Breathing difficulty	0	1
			9	Pain on walking	0	1
			10	Diabetes Mellitus	0	1
			11	any other	0	1
6.	Exclusion	Complications of	12	Stroke	0	1
		hypertension	13	Kidney disease	0	1
			14	Vision impairment	0	1
			15	Cardiac disease	0	1
7.		Practice any form of	16	Practice any form	0	1
		LSMS like yoga,		of LSMS		
		brisk walking, etc				

Development

The checklist on screening for hypertension was developed by the investigator based onliterature review and experts opinion. The content of this tool was based on inclusion and exclusion criteria for sample selection.

Interpretation

The checklist on screening for hypertension consisted of seven variables namely age, BP, known history of hypertension, type of hypertension, practice of LSMS (brisk walking, yoga, DASH diet), any major health problems and complications of hypertension with 16 items. The first four variables were based on inclusion criteria with four items and 5 responses and given a score of one for "yes" response and 0 for "No" response. There were two variables in exclusion criteria with 10 items with 10 responses and they were given a score of "0" for "yes" response and a score of one for "No" response. Under the head of practice of LSMS, there was one itemwith one response and given a score of one "No" response. Thus in total there were seven variables and sixteen items. Those patients, scored seventeen (5- yes response, 11- no response) were chosen as samples to participate in the study.

TOOL 2. PROFORMA ON SOCIODEMOGRAPHIC CLINICAL DATA

S.No		Patient's Name:			
A	Address				
Ph	none	No 1:	Phone	No.	2:
1	Ag	e in years:	10	His	story of smoking
	a)	31-40		1.	Past
	b)	41-50		a)	Yes
	c)	51-60		b)	No
2	Ger	nder		2.	Present
	a)	Men		a)	Yes
	b)	Women		b)	No
3	Edı	ication	11	His	story of alcoholism
	a)	Primary		1.	Past
	b)	Secondary		a)	Yes
	c)	Higher secondary		b)	No
	d)	Graduate Level		2.	Present
	e)	Post Graduate Level		a)	Yes
4	Ma	rital Status		b)	No
	a)	Married	12	Far	nily history of hypertension
	b)	Window		1.	Paternal
	c)	Divorced /Separated		a)	Not applicable
5	Oce	cupation		b)	1 degree relative(Siblings)
	a)	Labor		c)	2 degree relative(Grandparents,
	b)	Business			grandchildren, aunts, uncles,
	c)	Health Professional			nephews, nieces or half siblings)
	d)	Non Health Professional		d)	3 degree relative(First cousins,
	e)	Home Maker			great- grandparents or great
					grandchildren)

6 Income Per month(Indian rupees) 2. Maternal

xviii

- a) <5000
- b) 5001-10000
- c) 10001-15000
- d) >15001
- 7 Dietary Pattern
 - a) Vegetarian
 - b) Non vegetarian
- 8 Religion
 - a) Hindu
 - b) Christian
 - c) Muslim
- 9 Type of family
 - a) Nuclear
 - b) Joint
 - c) Extended family

- a) Not applicable
- b) 1 degree relative
- c) 2 degree relative
- d) 3 degree relative
- 13 Mode of diagnosis
 - a) Not applicable
 - b) Sign and symptom of hypertension
 - c) Master checkup
 - d) Other condition
- 14 Treatment prescribed
 - a) Life Style Modification
 - b) Drugs
 - 1. If on drugs level of compliance
 - a) To the most extent
 - b) To the less extent

Content	pretest	Posttest II
15. BMI		
Weight		
Height		
16. WHR		
Hip circumference		
Waist circumference		

TAMIL TOOL

சமூக மருத்துவ தரவு

	ഖ പ്ര	ரிசை.எண்நோயா pகவரி:	ளியின்	ର୍ଘ୍ୟ	பர்:	
	େ	தாலைபேசிஎண் 1:	தொ	லடே	பசி எல	ooi. 2
1.	ഖപട്ട	த / வருடங்கள்		10.	உங்க	களுக்கு புகைபிடிக்கும் பழக்கம் இருந்ததா?
	அ)	30-40			அ)	ஆம்
	ஆ)	41-50			ஆ)	இல்லை
	(51-60			10.1.	தற்போது புகைக்கிறீர்களா?
2.	பாலி	னம் / இனம்))	ஆம்
	<u>அ</u>)	ஆண்			ஆ)	இல்லை
	ஆ)	பெண்				
3.	கல்ல	பி நிலை		11.	உங்க	களுக்கு மது அருந்தும் பழக்கம்
					இருந்	ததா?
	அ)	ஆரம்பக்கல்வி			<u>அ</u>)	ஆம்
	ஆ)	இடைநிலை			ஆ)	இல்லை
	(உயர்நிலை			11.1.	தற்போது மது அருந்துகிறீர்களா?
	IF)	பட்டப்படிப்பு			அ)	ஆம்
					ஆ)	இல்லை
4.	திருட	Dண நிலை				
	<u>அ</u>)	திருமணம் ஆனவர்		12.	குடும்	பத்தில் யாருக்கேனும் உயர்இரத்த
					அழுத	ந்தம் உள்ளதா?
	ஆ)	கணவன்/மனைவியை இழந்த	வர்		12.1	தந்தை வழி
	(விவாகரத்து ஆனவர்			அ)	முதல் நிலை சொந்தம்
5.	தொ	ழில்			ஆ)	இரண்டாம் நிலை சொந்தம்
	அ)	കുരി ഖേതെ			(மூன்றாம் நிலை சொந்தம்
	ஆ)	சுய தொழில்			12.2.	தாய்வழி
	(மருத்துவம் சார்ந்த தொழில்))	முதல் நிலை சொந்தம்
	آ	மருத்துவம் சாரா தொழில்			ஆ)	இரண்டாம் நிலை சொந்தம்
	ഉ_)	இல்லத்தரசி			(மூன்றாம் நிலை சொந்தம்

6.	மாத	வருமானம் (இந்திய ரூபாயில்)	13	எவ்வாறு உங்களுக்கு உயர்
				இரத்த அழுத்தம் இருப்பது
				கண்டறியப்பட்டது?
))	10000ரூபாய்		அ) அறிகுறிகள
	ஆ)	10001-20000ரூபாய்		ஆ) ஆரோக்கிய பரிசோதனைகள
	(20001-30000ரூபாய்		இ) இதர காரணங்கள
	₩)	30000 ரூபாய்		
7.	ഉത	ரவு முறை		என்ன வைத்தியம்
			14	அறிவுறுத்தப்பட்டிருக்கிறது?
))	சைவம்		அ) வாழ்க்கை முறை மாற்றம்
	ஆ)	அசைவம்		ஆ) மாத்திரைகள
8.	மதம்	b		14.1 மாத்திரைகள் எனில் தினசரி
				தவறாது எடுத்துக்கொள்கிறீர்களா?
))	இந்து		அ) கூடுமான அளவிற்கு
	ஆ)	கிறிஸ்த்துவர்		ஆ) ஒரளவிற்கு
	(இஸ்லாமியர்		
9.	9. குடும்ப வகை 15			15.உடல் பரும விகிதம்

ഌ∟-

பொருள்	முந்தைய நிலை	பிந்தைய நிலைII
15. உடல் பரும விகிதம்		
ஏடை		
உயரம்		
16. இடைதொடைவிகிதம்		
இடையளவு		
தொடையளவு		

அ) சிறு குடும்பம்

ஆ) கூட்டுக் குடும்பம்

Tool 3. Assessment of BP

S.No	Items	Pre test at week 1	Posttest I 12 weeks	Posttest II at 24 weeks
1	Systolic Blood Pressure			
2	Diastolic Blood Pressure			

TOOL 4 STRUCTURED TEACHING MODULES ON LIFESTYLE MODIFICATION STRATEGIESON HYPERTENSION

Topic: "Lifestyle modification strategies on hypertension"

Group: Newly diagnosed Hypertensive patient.

Time: 30 minutes. Size: 1

Place : Vikkravandi

Method of teaching: Lecture cum discussion, demonstration, and returns demonstration. Audio visual aids: Real objects, Flex, Standard nutritional cups, booklet and video clip.

CENTRAL OBJECTIVE:

At the end of teaching program, the newly diagnosed Hypertensive patients will be able to gain adequate knowledge and desirable attitude towards lifestyle modification strategies on hypertension, and apply this knowledge in their day to day life.

CONTRITUTIVE OBJECTIVES:

Newly diagnosed hypertensive patients will be able to

- 1. Define blood pressure, normal Blood Pressure and hypertension
- 2. State the stages of hypertension
- 3. Enlist the risk factors of hypertension.
- 4. Discuss the benefits of effective control on hypertension
- 5. Mention the complications
- 6. Impart LSMS
 - a. Demonstrate brisk walking
 - b. Demonstrate yoga- Nadisudhi pranayama, Savasana
 - c. Discuss/ impart the DASH diet.

7. Communicate the tips to adopt DASH diet.

INTRODUCTION:

We feel happy looking at a aerated and colorful balloon, but when the pressure inside the balloon exceeds, it gets bust and our happiness is also lost. Our blood vessels are compared to colorful balloons. If the blood pressure is within normal limits, a man looks and feels healthy like a beautiful balloon. When the blood pressure reaches the peak, the blood vessel get ruptured, and he has to face the consequences. In case the pressure is maintained within optimal level, it lasts longer, be it in case of a balloon or a human body. Here are a few tips to keep one to be like a beautiful balloon.

Hypertension or high BP is a non communicable disease and hypertension itself does not manifest any signs and symptoms. It is revealed while initiatives are taken to diagnose other conditions or when it ends up with irrevocable complications. Hence it is called, a silent killer. In case the high BP is identified in time and treatment is initiated, one can lead a normal life. If neglected, one has to face hazardous consequences.

S. No	Contributory Objective	Contents		Patients activity
1.	Define the blood	Blood pressure:	Explaining and	Listening and
	pressure, Normal Blood Pressure and Hypertension.	 Blood pressure measures the amount of force / pressure on the walls of the arteries as the blood is pumped by the heart and circulated throughout the body. Normal BP: Normal BP is less than 120 and 80 mm/ Hg of systolic and diastolic BP respectively for healthy persons. But for the hypertensive patients the BP level < 140/90 mmHg, is considered as optimal. Hypertension is the term used for high blood pressure reading above twice at 140 mmHg of systolic BP or above 90 mmHg of diastolic BP. It is confirmed by checking two different times within a day or within a week by an examiner using the same instrument. Blood pressure that is consistently more than 140/90 mm of Hg requires treatment. 	demonstrating	observing

2.	State the stages						Explaining and	Listening and
	of hypertension	S.NO	Systolic Blood Pressure	Diastolic Pressure	Blood	JNC	demonstrating	observing
		1	< 120 and	~90		Normal		
		1		~80		nomiai		
		2	120 to139 or	80 to 89		Pre hypertension		
		3	140 to159 or	90 to 99		Stage-1		
		4	<u>></u> 160 or	>`100		Stage-2		
3.	Enlist The risk	a) Non-m	odifiable risk fac	tors:			Explaining	Listening
	factors of hypertension	No identifica 1. Ho 2. Ag 3. Go at 4. Go 5. Fa b) Modifi The follo care, to pressure: > Di hy > W be > La fac > Ha	b control is possible ation is possible and are dity – it is a car- ge – Cardio Vascu ender – men are r- equal risk as a ma- enetic Factors amily History - Fa- able risk factors: able risk factors can- enable control co- fetary pattern: pertension risk fac- feight: If body ma- overweight and in- ack of exercise: ctor. abits: Tobacco us-	ole over the foll nd treatment in use for hyperter lar Disease (CV nore prone to C n. amily History of n be modified can over the r A diet high in ctors. uss index (BMI) ndicates a greated Sedentary lifes	lowing fa nitiation insion (D) risk in (VD. Afte f CVD is f CVD is through risk of in sodiun) is 25 or er hyperte style is a re alcoho	actors. But early is essential:is essential:increases with age.er menopause, a woman isalso a predisposing factor.our life style with due developing high bloodm is one of the majorhigher, it is considered to ension risk.major hypertension riskl consumption are known		

		 contributors to high blood pressure. Diabetes: Diabetes actually doubles the risk of developing high blood pressure, and people who have both diabetes and high blood pressure are at four times the risk of developing heart disease considering a person without either condition. Stress: Stress increases the Blood Pressure level. Patients' non compliance towards treatment: Not getting blood pressure checked regularly. Not taking medication exactly as prescribed by the doctor. Stopping the medication when the blood pressure reaches the normal by itself. 		
4.	The benefits of effective control on hypertension	 Prevents or delays the development of high blood pressure and its complications. Enhances the effectiveness of blood pressure medications. Lowers the direct and indirect cost of management 	Explaining	Listening, questioning
5.	The	> Stroke	Explaining	Listening and
	complications	Heart attack	using video	questioning
		➢ Heart failure	clip,	
		 Kidney failure 		
		Peripheral vascular disease		
		> Impotence	Clarifying	
		> Dementia		
		 cognitive impairment, 		
		Eye damage (blindness)		

6.	Impart LSMS-	Life style modification strategies includes the following		
	a. Demonstrate	Brisk walking, yoga and DASH diet. The participants were instructed as	Demonstration	Listening
	brisk walking	follows	using booklet	
		Brisk walking		
		1. Stand erect and hold your head high look forward; focus your eyes 5-6		
		meters ahead, back straight and shoulders relaxed.		
		2. Bend elbow 90° with hands loosely clenched. Swing arms without		
		crossing centre line.	Demonstration	
		3. Lead with, and transfer your weight through your heel.		Observing,
		4. Move hands and legs in opposition.		Return
		5. Lean forward to balance better. Take smaller steps.		demonstration
		6. Practice it for 30 minutes.		
		ACTION:		
		1. Act on sympathetic nervous system and relaxes the nerves and vessels		
		thereby lower BP		
		2. Increases the level of Nitrous Oxide and endogenous antioxidant		
		which are essential to keep the arteries patent.		
	b. Demonstrate	Nadisudhi pranayama	demonstration	Observing,
	yoga- Nadisudhi	1. Sit in sugasana over a mat or sheet. Relax the muscles of the body and		Return
	pranayama,	become aware of your breath. Keep the spine erect and your head and		demonstration
	Savasana	neck straight and eyes remain closed.		

	2. Place the left hand in gnanamuthra. (Hold the left thumb and index
	finger together lightly and let the other three remaining fingers remains
	extended. Place the left hand on the left thigh in palm up position)
	3. With right hand, let your fingers stretch and bend your index and your
	middle fingers and place them on the palm of your same hand
	(Nasikamuthra).
	4. Place the right thumb on right nostril and the tip of the ring finger
	against the other nostril. The thumb and ring finger of the right hand
	will be used to close the alternate nostrils as you breathe in.
	5. Begin the exercise by blocking your left nostril and breathe out with
	your right nostril.
	6. Continue to block your left nostril and breathe in through your right
	nostril.
	7. Open your left nostril as you simultaneously cover and block your
	right nostril. Breathe out slowly using the open, left nostril.
	8. Once this is done go ahead and breathe in with your left nostril that is
	open.
	9. Close the left nostril and let the air move out through your right nostril
	that you now leave open.
	10. This is considered one cycle. Let the breathing be slow and rhythmic.
	12. Continue breathing this way by opening and closing left and right

nostrils and complete 20 cycles.
ACTION:
\checkmark Act on sympathetic nervous system and relaxes the nerves and
vessels thereby lower blood pressure.
\checkmark The pranayama purifies the whole blood system and helpful to
increase the overall health of the body.
\checkmark The whole body is nourished with an extra supply of pure oxygen,
and the carbon dioxide is more efficiently eliminated.
B) STEPS IN SHAVASANA:
(ii) Savasana.
Practice as follows.
1. Lie on your back without pillows with your legs straight and comfortably
apart. Let your feet drop open and be relaxed. Rest your arms at your sides
and your palms facing up. Close your eyes.
2. Breathe deeply and slowly through the nostrils.
3. Allow your body to feel heavy on the ground. Let the whole body be
relaxed.
4. Work from the soles of your feet up to the crown of your head; consciously

c. Discuss
DASH diet.

		the use of flex,
	The DASH dietary pattern is	measuring
	• Lower in fat, saturated fat, cholesterol (decreasing intake of saturated	cups, spoons
	fat and Trans fat as well as overall intake of dietary fat.)	and booklet on
	• Sodium (less than 1,500 milligrams of sodium per day), and	LSMS.
	• Higher in potassium, magnesium, and calcium (for adults is 4.7	
	grams/day).	
	We should know our weight for height and energy requirement to	
	estimate the food to be taken.	
	This can be judged by the following method,	
	Formula:	
	Calculation for	
	weight for height= height (cm)- 100 = weight in Kg.	
	Example:	
	150cm-100=50 Kg.	
	Energy requirement = weight in Kg x $24 + \frac{1}{2}$ (weight x 24)	
	Example:	
	$50 \text{ Kg x } 24 + \frac{1}{2} (60 \text{ Kg } + 24)$	
	= 1200 + 600 = 1800	
	So, 50 Kg person needs 1800 Kcal/day.	
	COMPONENTS OF DASH DIET:	

1. GRAINS: (6 to 8 servings a day)	
Example : Grains include bread, rice and millets.	
Examples of one serving: 1 slice whole-wheat bread, 1 ounce (oz.)	
dry cereal, or 1/2 cup cooked cereal, rice or millets.	
2. VEGETABLES :(4 to 5 servings a day)	
> Example: Vegetables should also comprise green leafy vegetables,	
roots and tubers and cruciferous vegetables.	
Example of One serving: includes 1 cup raw leafy green vegetables	
or 1/2 cup cut-up raw or cooked vegetables.	
3. FRUITS: (4 to 5 servings a day)	
Examples: banana, watermelon, orange, grapes, pine apple.	
Examples of one serving: include 1 medium fruit or 1/2 cup fresh fruit	
or 4 ounces of juice.	
4. LOW FAT OR FAT FREE DAIRY FOODS (2 to 3 servings a day)	
Examples: butter milk, goat milk.	
Examples of one serving: 1 cup skim or 1 percent milk.	
5. LEAN MEAT, POULTRY AND FISH :(2 or fewer servings a day)	
> Examples of one serving: 1 oz. cooked skinless poultry, seafood or	
lean meat or 1 egg.	
6. NUTS, SEEDS AND LEGUMES: (4 to 5 servings a week)	
Examples: almonds, sunflower seeds, groundnut, peas, kidney beans.	
Examples of one serving: 1/3 cup (1 1/2 oz.) nuts, 2 tablespoons	

	seeds, or 1/2 cup cooked beans or peas.	
	7. FATS AND OILS :(2 to 3 servings a day)	
	Examples: vegetable oil.	
	Examples of one serving: 1 teaspoon vegetable oil/day.	
	8. RESTRICT SALT IN YOUR DIET: (1 serving a day)	
	> Examples of one serving: It is ideal to use not more than one level	
	teaspoon of salt per day (i.e. 5 grams per day.)	
	9. SWEETS AND ADDED SUGARS: (5 servings a week)	
	Examples: sugar, jelly, jam, hard candy.	
	Examples of one serving: 1 Tbsp sugar, 1 Tbsp jelly or jam of low fat.	
	ACTION:	
	DASH diet causes pliability of arteries and arterioles and resultant	
	vasodilatation and lowering the effect of blood pressure.	
	TIPS TO ADOPT DASH DIET .	
	1. Restriction of fat and calories	
	a. When you begin to eat food, first eat fruits, greens and green	
	leafy vegetables	
7.	b. Use less oil in diet and reduce the use of ghee, butter,	
	vanaspathi, coconut oil and palm oil as they contain high	
	amount of fat.	
	c. Avoid or restrict the following items which are rich in fat, fried	
	non vegetarian food, vada, bajji, bonda, samosa, puffs, deep	

		fried snacks, packed snacks and savories (mixture, pagoda,		
		chips etc.), biryani, fried rice, parrotta etc.		
	d.	Better alternatives for fried snacks are raw sprouts and oil free		
		snacks such as puffed rice, sundal, vegetables, roasted grams,		
		puttu, steamed snacks etc.	Explaining,	Listening,
Communicate	2. Cooki	ng tips for reducing fat in the diet:	discussing and	discussing,
the tips to adopt	a.	Use a small spoon of oil rather than pouring it from the	clarifying with	questioning
DASH diet		container.	the use of flex,	
	b.	Avoid reuse of the oil.	measuring	
	с.	It is better to alternate or switch the cooking oil once in every	cups, spoons	
		month instead of using one of the asme brand or variety all	and booklet on	
		through.	LSMS.	
	d.	Boil food instead of frying.		
	e.	Before cooking non-vegetarian food, it is better to remove the		
		skin off the meat or chicken.		
	f.	Non- stick utensils can be used especially for dosa, chapatti,		
		roti & addai.		
	g.	If you have temptation to eat vadai, bajji, bonda, puffs atleast		
		press them into a tissue paper so that excess oil gets absorbed.		
	3. Restri	ction of salt in your diet:		
	a.	Avoid the habit of sprinkling /adding extra salt to the food.		
			1	

	b.	Avoid canned foods such as dry fish, pappads and bottled items	
		like pickles, jams, aerated drinks etc.	
	c.	Fresh lime, pepper and pudina etc can be used as an alternative	
		for salt.	

Conclusion

Effective control of blood pressure by compliant to LSMS, helps in the prevention of complications.

உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்திற்கான வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகள்

பாடத்திட்டம்

மையக்குறிக்கோள்:

புதிதாக கண்டறியப்பட்ட உயர் இரத்த அழுத்த நோயாளிகள் இந்த பாடத்தை கேட்ட பிறகு அவர்கள் வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகளை பற்றிய அறிவு மற்றும் அணுகுமுறை பெற்று இப்பயிற்சியினை தினந்தோறும் கடைபிடித்தல்.

துணைக்குறிக்கோள்கள்:

புதிதாக கண்டறியப்பட்ட உயர் இரத்த அழுத்த நோயாளிகள்

- இரத்த அழுத்தம் இயல்பான இரத்த அழுத்தம் மற்றும் உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தை வரையறுப்பர்.
- 2. இரத்த அழுத்த நிலைகளை கூறுவர்.
- 3. உயர் இரத்த அழுத்த காரணிகளை பட்டியலிடுவர்.
- இரத்த அழுத்தத்தை கட்டுக்குள் வைத்திருப்பதால் ஏற்படும் நன்மைகளை பகிர்ந்து கொள்வர்.
- உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தால் ஏற்படும் விளைவுகளை குறிப்பிடுவர்.
- 6. வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகளைப் பற்றி விளக்குவர்.
 - 1. துரிதநடையை செயல்முறைபடுத்து்தல்.
 - 2. நாடிசுத்தி மூச்சு பயிற்சி (ம) சவாசனத்தை செயல்முறைபடுத்து்தல்.
 - 3. உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்திற்கான சிறப்பு உணவைப் பற்றி பகிர்தல்.
- உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்திற்கான சிறப்பு உணவை கடைபிடிக்கும் வழிமுறைகளை எடுத்துரைப்பர்.

முன்னரை:

காற்றடைக்கப்பட்ட வண்ணமிகு காணும்போது நாம் பலூனை மகிழ்ச்சியடைகிறோம். ஆனால் பலூனின் உள்ளே உள்ள காற்றழுத்தம் அதிகமாகி மகிழ்ச்சியும் போய்விடுகிறது. இதைப்போலவே வெடிக்கும்போது நம் நம் இரத்த அழுத்தம் கட்டுக்குள் இருக்கும்போது ஒரு மனிதன் ஆளோக்கியமாக உணர்கிறான். தென்படுகிறான். அழுத்தம் அதிகரிக்கும் போது இரக்க குழாய் இரத்த வெடிப்பு ஏற்பட்டு அந்த மனிதன் மருத்துவமனையில் அனுமதிக்கப்பட்டு அனைத்து விதமான பிரச்சனைகளுக்கும் உள்ளாகிறான். தற்போது அழகிய பலூனை பாதுகாப்பது போல் நம் உடலின் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தை கட்டுக்குள் வைக்க உதவும் சில உத்திகளை காண்போம்.

இதனை சரியான காலத்தில் கண்டறிந்து சிகிச்சை மேற்கொண்டால் இயல்பான வாழ்க்கையை வாழ முடியும். இதனை உதாசினப்படுத்தினால் அதன் பின்விளைவுகளை நாம் சந்திக்க நேரிடும்.

வரிசை	ா ணர் எறிர் ரோன் என்			ஆய்வாளர்	நோயாளி	
ഞ്	൭഻൭൭ൟ൹൙൮൛ൔൟഩഩ൴ഩ		ம்பாருள்ட	ϷΦͲ	செயல்முறை	செயல்முறை
1.	இரத்த அழுத்தம்,	இரத்த அழுத்தத்	தின் பொருள்-		விளக்கமும்	கவனித்தல்
	இயல்பான இரத்த	≻ இரத்த அ	அழுத்தம் என்பது நம்முல	டைய இரத்த நாள சுவர்களில்	செயல்முறையும்	
	அழுத்தம் மற்றும்	உள்ள (இரத்தம் இதயம் சுருங்கு	ம் போது எந்த அளவிற்கு		
	உயர் இரத்த	வேகத்தை	த ஏற்படுத்தி உடல் மு	ழுவதும் பாய்கிறது என்பதாகும்.		
	அழுத்தத்திற்கான	இயல்பான இரத்த	5 அழுத்தம்:			
	ഖത്യെലത്നു.	≻ ஆரோக்க	யெமானவர்களின் இரத்த	அழுத்தம் <120/80 mm Hg		
		இருத்தல்	வேண்டும். ஆனால் உ	யர் இரத்த அழுத்த நோயாளிகள்		
		இரத்த அ	அழுத்தத்தை <140 90	ன் கீழ் பராமறித்தல்.		
		உயர் அழுத்தத்த	தின் பொருள்:-			
		≽ உயர் இ	ரத்த அழுத்தம் என்றால்	் இரத்த அழுத்தம் அதிகமாகுதல்.		
		≻ இரத்த அ	அழுத்தம் 140/90 mmHg	தக்கு மேல் தொடர்ந்து இருப்பின்		
		மருத்துவ	மேலாண்மைகள் தேன	வப்படும்.		
		> ஒருநானை	ாக்கு இருமுறையோ (அ	א) ஒரு வாரத்திற்கு இருமுறையோ		
		இரத்த அ	அழுத்தமானது ஒரே பரி	சோதரரால் பரிசோதிக்கப்படும்		
		போது இ	ருமுறையும் 140/90 mm	n Hg க்கு மேல் இருப்பின் உயர்		
		இரத்த அ	அழுத்தம் உறுதிசெய்யப்	யடுகிறது.		
2.	இரத்த அழுத்த				விளக்கமும்	கவனித்தல்
	நிலைகள்	வரிசை	சிஸ்டாலிக்	டயஸ்டாலிக் இரத்த	செயல்முறையும்	
		எண்	இரத்த அழுத்தம்	அழுத்தம்		
		1	<120 மட்டும்	<80		
		2	120-139 அல்லு <u>த</u>	80-89		
		3	140-159 அல்லது	90-99		
		4	≥160 அல்லது	>100		

3.	உயர் இரத்த அழுத்த	அ) மாற்ற முடியாத ஆபத்து காரணிகள்:-	விளக்கமும்	கவனித்தல்
	காரணிகள்	1. பரம்பறை:	செயல்முறையும்	
		உயர் இரத்த அழுததத்திற்கு பரம்பறையும் ஓர் காரணம்.		
		2. வயது- வயது அதிகமாவதால் இருதயநோய்களின் ஆபத்து		
		காரணிகள் அதிகமாகிறது.		
		3. பாலினம்-் இருதயநோய் வர ஆண்களுக்கே அதிக வாய்ப்பு		
		உள்ளது. மாத விலக்கு ஏற்பட்ட பின் இருபாலருக்கும் சமமான		
		ஆபத்து உள்ளது.		
		4. மரபியல் காரணிகள்:-		
		5. குடும்ப வரலாறு:		
		இருதய நோய்க்கு குடும்ப வரலாறு ஒரு முக்கியமான		
		காரணியாகும்.		
		ஆ) மாற்றகூடிய ஆபத்து காரணிகள்:-		
		1) உணவு முறை:-		
		≽ அதிகமாக நம்முடைய உணவில் சோடியம்		
		உட்கொள்வதால் இரத்த அழுத்தம் ஏற்பட காரணியாக		
		உள்ளது.		
		குறைவான உப்பு, கொழுப்பு (ம) அதிகமான		
		காய்கறிகளை உட்கொள்வதால் இதனை குறைக்கலாம்.		
		2) எഞ_:-		
		≽ உடல் பருமன் விகிதம் அளவு 25 அல்லது 25ந்கு மேல்		
		இருந்தால் இது அதிக உடல் எடையாக கருதப்படுகிறது.		
		3) உடற்பயிற்சியின்மை:-		
		≽ உடற்பயிற்சி இல்லாததால் உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தம் வர		
		காரணமாக அமைகிறது.		
1				1

		4) தீய பழக்கங்கள்:
		≻ புகையிலை பழக்கம் மற்றும் அதிகமாக மது
		உட்கொள்ளுதல். இதுவே உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்திற்கு
		காரணமாக அமைகிறது.
		5) நீரிழிவு:
		≻ நீரிழிவு நோய் உள்ளவர்களுக்கு உயர் இரத்த
		அழுத்தம் ஏற்பட இருமடங்கு காரணியாக அமைகிறது.
		இருதய நோய் வர இயல்பானவர்களைக்காட்டிலும் 4
		மடங்கு வாய்ப்புள்ளது.
		6) மன அழுத்தம்:
		≽ மன அழுத்தம் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தை அதிகரிக்கிறது. மன
		அழுத்தம் உள்ளவர்களின் சூழ்நிலையை புரிந்துகொண்டு
		அவர்களின் உடலும், மனமும் தளர்வாக இருப்பதற்கு
		காற்றோட்டமான பகுதிக்கு அழைத்துச் செல்லவும்.
		7) சிகிச்சை முறைக்கு நோயாளியின் இசைவு:
		≽ குறிப்பிட்ட கால இடைவெளியில் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தை
		பரிசோதனை செய்து கொள்ளுதல்.
		≽ மருத்துவ ஆலோசனைப்படி தகுந்த மருந்துகளை எடுத்துக்
		கொள்ளவும்.
		≽ இரத்த அழுத்தம் இயல்பு நிலைக்கு திரும்பிய பின்னும்
		மருந்துகளை தொடர்ந்து எடுத்தல்.
4.	இரத்த அழுத்தத்தை	• உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தை அதிகரிக்காமல்
	கட்டுக்குள்	கட்டுப்படுத்துதல்.
	வைத்திருப்பதால்	
	ஏற்படும் நன்மைகள்	
		• நேரடி மற்றும் மறைமுகமான செலவினங்களை குறைத்தல்

5.	உயர் இரத்த	🕨 பக்கவாதம்	ஒளிக்காட்சி	கவனித்தல்
	அழுத்தத்தால் ஏற்படும்	≽ மாரடைப்பு	பயன்படுத்தி	
	விளைவுகள்	≽ இருதய செயலிழப்பு	விளக்கமளித்தல்	
		≽ சிறுந¶ரக செயலிழப்பு		
		≻ இரத்த நாள நோய்கள்		
		≽ ஆண்மையின்மை		
		≽ ஞாபகமறதி		
		≻ அறிவு திறன் குறைதல்		
		≽ கண்பார்வை பாதிப்பு		
6.	வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை	நாம் கடைபிடிக்கப்போகும் வாழ்க்கை முறை மாற்றங்களின்	விளக்கமும்	கவனித்தல்
	மாற்ற உத்திகள்	உத்திகளை இப்போது விளக்குகிறேன்.	செயல்முறையும்	
	1	 சுறுசுறுப்பாக நடத்தல். 		
	1. துரத்நடையை செயல்முறைபடுக்குகல்	• யோகா.		
	ം പംഷ്യന്ത്രം പ്രവൃത്തില്ലാം പ	≻ நாடி சுத்தி பிரணாயாமம்.		
		≻ சுவாசணா.		
		• உணவு முறை.		
		சுறுசுறுப்பாக நடக்கும் முறைகள்:		
		≽ நிமிர்ந்து நின்று தலையை நேராக வைக்கவும்.		
		≽ கண்களை 5-6 மீட்டர் அளவிற்கு முன்னோக்கி பார்த்து		
		முதுகை நிமிர்த்தியவாறும் தோள்பட்டையை தளர்வான		
		நிலையிலும் வைத்துக்கொள்ளவும்.		
		≻ முழங்கையை 90º அளவில் மடக்கி கை விரல்களை		
		தளர்வாக மூடவும்.		

≽ குதிங்காலை முன்வைத்து குதிங்காலிலேயே உடல் எடையை	
செலுத்தவும்.	
≽ கைகளை உடலின் நடுப்பகுதியின் குறுக்கே வராமல்	
முன்னும் பின்னும் அசைக்கவும். கைகளை கால்களின்	
திசைக்கு எதிர்திசையில் அசைக்கவும்.	
≽ உடல் எடையை சமன் செய்ய முன்னோக்கி நகரவும்.	
சிறுசிறு அடியாக எடுத்து வைக்கவும்.	
இதனை தினமும் 30 நிமிடம் செய்யவும்.	
செயல்முறை:	
1. இது நரம்பு மண்டலம் (ம) இரத்த நாளங்களின் மீது	
செயல்பட்டு தளரச்செய்வதன் மூலம் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தைக்	
குறைக்கிறது.	
2. இந்த துரித நடை உடலினுள் சுரக்கும் வேதிப்பொருளான	
நைட்ரஜன் ஆக்ஸைடு (ம) நோய் எதிர்ப்புக் காரணிகளை	
அதிகர்ப்பதன் மூலம் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தைக் குறைக்கிறது.	
நாடிசுத்தி முச்சு பயிற்சி நாடிசுத்தி ப்ரணாயாமா: விளக்கமு	ம் கவனித்தல்
(ம) சவாசனத்தை > பாய் (அ) விரிப்பின் மீது சுகாசனத்தில் அமரவும். உடல் ^{செயல்} முறை	யும் செய்துகாட்டுத
செயல்முறைபடுத்துதல். தசைகளை தளர்வாகவும் தலை மற்றும் கழுத்தை நேராகவும்	ல்
கண்களை மூடியும் அமரவும். உங்கள் சுவாசத்தை உற்று	
நோக்கவும்.	
≽ இடது கையை ஞானமுத்திராவில் வைக்கவும்.	
≽ வலது கையை நாசிகாமுத்திராவில் வைக்கவும்.	
≻ வலது கையின் கட்டை விரலை வலது நாசியின் மீதும்	
மோதிரவிரலை இடது நாசியின் மீதும் வைக்கவும். கட்டை	

	விரலையும் மோதிர விரலையும் சுவாசித்தலின் போது மாறி	
	மாறி மூடவும்.	
	≻ உடற்பயிற்சி செய்ய ஆரம்பிக்கும் போது இடது நாசியை	
	அடைத்துக்கொண்டு வலது நாசியின் வழியாக மூச்சை	
	வெளியே விடவும்.	
	≻ தொடர்ந்து இடது நாசியை அடைத்துக்கொண்டு வலது	
	நாசியின் வழியாக மூச்சை உள்ளிழுக்கவும்.	
	≻ இதையே மாறாக வலது நாசியை அடைத்துக் கொண்டு	
	இடது நாசியின் வழியாக மூச்சை வெளியே விடவும்.	
	≻ பின்பு வலது நாசியை அடைத்துக் கொண்டு இடது நாசியின்	
	வழியாக மூச்சை உள்ளிழுக்கவும்	
	≻ இடது நாசியை அடைத்துக்கொண்டு வலது நாசியின்	
	வழியாக மூச்சை வெளிவிடவும்.	
	≽ இது ஒரு சுழற்சி ஆகும். பின்பு மெதுவாக சுவாசிக்கவும்.	
	≻ தொடர்ந்து இதுபோல் வலது இடது மூக்கின் வழியான	
	சுவாசத்தை 20 சுழற்சி வரை செய்ய வேண்டும்.	
செ	பல்முறை:	
	1. இது நரம்பு மண்டலம் (ம) இரத்த நாளங்களின் மீது	
செ	யல்பட்டு தளரச்செய்வதன் மூலம் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தைக்	
கு	றைக்கிறது.	
	2. இந்த மூச்சு பயிற்சி உடலிலுள்ள இரத்தத்தை சுத்தம்	
செ	ய்து உடலின் ஆரோக்கியத்தை ஒழுங்குபடுத்துகிறது.	
3.	இந்த உடற்பயிற்சியின் மூலம் உடலுக்குத் தேவையான	
பிர	ாணவாயு அதிகமாக கிடைப்பதன் மூலம் கார்பன்-டை-ஆக்ஸைடு	
ଭ	வளியேற்றப்படுகிறது.	

එ	பூ) சவ	ாசனாசெய்முறை :-		
	\succ	முதுகுத் தண்டுநேராக இருக்குமாறுகீழே தலையணையின்றி	விளக்கமும்	கவனித்தல்
		கண்களை மூடியவாறு படுக்கவும். இருகால்களையும் நேராக	செயல்முறையும்	செய்து
		வசதியான இடைவெளியில் வைக்கவும். பாதங்கள் தளர்வாக		காட்டுதல
		இருக்கட்டும். கைகளை உடலின் பக்கவாட்டில் வைக்கவும்.		
		உள்ளங்கை மேல்நோக்கி இருக்கட்டும்.		
	\triangleright	மெதுவாக ஆழ்ந்த மூச்சு எடுக்கவும்.		
	\triangleright	உடலின் எடை முழுவதும் தரையில் இருப்பதாக		
		உணருங்கள். உடல் முழுவதும் தளர்வான நிலையில்		
		இருக்கட்டும்.		
	\succ	ஒவ்வொரு உள் வெளி சுவாசத்தின் போதும் உடல் தளர்ந்த		
		நிலையில் இருப்பதாக உணருங்கள்.		
	\triangleright	ஒவ்வொரு வெளி சுவாசத்தின் போதும் உங்களது பதற்றம் ,		
		மன அழுத்தம், மனச்சோர்வு (ம) கவலை வெளியேற்றப்படும்.		
	\triangleright	இப்பொழுது ஒவ்வொரு உடல் உறுப்பையும் காலில் இருந்து		
		தலைவரை மனக்கண்ணால் பார்க்கவேண்டும். எந்தெந்த		
		உறுப்புகளை நீங்கள் காண்கிறீர்களோஅவ்வுறுப்புகள்		
		ஆரோக்கியமாகவும் தளர்ந்தநிலையிலும் இறுக்கமில்லாமலும்		
		இருப்பதாகஉணருங்கள்.		
	\succ	உங்கள் முகத்தை தளர்வாக வைத்துக்கொள்ளுங்கள்.		
		உங்கள் கண்களும் ஆழ்ந்த நிலையில் இருக்கட்டும்.		
		உங்கள் உடலிலும் மனதிலும் அமைதியை வரவழையுங்கள்.		
	\succ	தினமும் இந்த ஆசனத்தை 10 நிமிடம் செய்யவும். இந்த		
		ஆசனத்தின் முடிவில் ஆழ்ந்து சுவாசித்து கால் கையின்		

		விரல்களையும் உடலையும் மெதுவாக அசைக்கவும். பின்	
		வலது பக்கம் திரும்பி ஒரு நொடி ஓய்வெடுக்கவும். பின்பு	
		மூச்சை உள்ளிழுத்தவாறு எழுந்து அமரவும்.	
		செயல்முறை:	
		1. உடலின் ஆற்றலை சீர்செய்வதன் மூலம் இரத்த	
		குழாய்களை தளர்வடைய செய்து மனதிற்கு அமதியைக்	
		கொடுக்கிறது.	
		2. இது உடலின் நோய் எதிர்ப்பு சக்தியை	
		மேம்படுத்துகிறது.	
		3. இது மனதை ஒருமுகப்படுத்தவும், ஆழ்ந்த உறக்கம்	
		பெறவும் உதவுகிறது.	
8.	உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்திற்கான சிறப்பு உணவை கடைபிடிக்கும் வழிமுறைகளை எடுத்துரைத்தல	 இரத்த அழுத்தத்திற்கான சிறப்பு உணவை பின்பற்றுதல்: I. கொழுப்பு மற்றும் மாவுச்சத்தை குறைத்தல். > சாப்பிட ஆரம்பிப்பதற்கு முன் பழங்கள், காய்கள் மற்றும் கீரை வகைகளை சாப்பிடவும் > சமைப்பதற்கு மிகக் குறைவான எண்ணெயையே பயன்படுத்தவும். கொழுப்பு சத்து அதிகமுள்ள எண்ணெய்களான நெய், வெண்ணெய், வனஸ்பதி, தேங்காய் எண்ணெய் மற்றும் பனை எண்ணெய் ஆகியவற்றை மிக குறைவான அளவில் பயன்படுத்தவும். > கொழுப்பு சத்து அதிகம் நிறைந்த கீழ்கண்ட உணவுகளை தவிர்க்கவும் (அ) மிக குறைந்த அளவு 	

சாப்பிடவும். உதார	ணமாக எண்ணெயில் பொரித்த
புலால் உணவு, வ	டை, பஜ்ஜி, போன்டா, சமோசா,
பப்ஸ், எண்ெ	னயில் பொரித்தெடுக்கப்பட்ட
திண்பண்டங்கள்,	பைகளில் அடைக்கப்பட்ட
பதார்த்தங்கள், கா	ரவகைகள் (மிக்சர், பக்கோடா,
சிப்ஸ்) பிரியாணி,வறு	த்த சோறு, பரோட்டா மற்றும் பல.
> எண்ணெயில் பொ	ித்த உணவுகளுக்கு பதிலான
உணவு வகைகளான	ர முளைகட்டிய பயறுகள், பொறி,
சுண்டல், காய்கறிக	ள், வறுத்த கடலைகள், புட்டு,
ஆவியில் வெந்த	திண்பண்டங்கள் ஆகியவற்றை
சாப்பிடுங்கள்.	
II. சமையலில் எண்ணெயை கு	றைக்க உதவும் குறிப்புகள்:
≽ சமையல்	எண்ணெயை பாட்டிலிலிருந்து
நேரடியாக உ	<u></u> எற்றாமல் சிறிய கரண்டியைப்
பயன்படுத்தவும்	
> ஒரு முறை	பயன்படுத்திய எண்ணெயை
ഗത്വവർവും വവര	ன்படுத்தாதீர்கள்.
≽ சமையலுக்கு ஒ	ஒரே எண்ணெயை பயன்படுத்தாமல்
மாதந்தோறும்	வெவ்வேறு எண்ணெய்களை மாற்றி
மாற்றி பயன்படு	<u>த</u> ்தவும்.
≽ உணவை பொர	ரிப்பதற்கு பதிலாக அவிக்கவும்.
> புலால் உணவ	ுகளை தோலை நீக்கி சமைத்து
சாப்பிடுவது சிற	ரந்தது.

	🕨 தோசை, சப்பாத்தி, ரொட்டி மற்றும் அடை
	போன்றவற்றை சமைக்க ஒட்டாத பாத்திரங்களை
	பயன்படுத்தவும்.
	≻ நீங்கள் வடை, பஜ்ஜி, போன்டா மற்றும் பப்ஸ்
	போன்றவற்றை சாப்பிட நேர்ந்தால் அவற்றை திசு
	காகிதத்தில் வைத்து அழுத்தி எண்ணெயை
	எடுத்தபின் சாப்பிடவும்.
III .ഉ.ഞാ	ில் உப்பைக் குறைக்கும் முறைகள்:
	≽ உணவில் உப்பை தூவும் மற்றும் கூடுதலாக
	இடும் பழக்கத்தை கை விடுங்கள்.
	≽ பதப்படுத்தப்பட்ட கருவாடு, அப்பளம் மற்றும்
	பாட்டிலில் அடைக்கப்பட்ட ஊறுகாய், ஜாம்
	மற்றும் காற்றடைக்கப்பட்ட பானங்கள்
	போன்றவற்றை விட்டொழியுங்கள்.
	≽ உப்பின் சுவைக்கு மாற்றாக எலுமிச்சம்பழம்,
	மிளகு, புதினா போன்றவற்றை பயன்படுத்தவும்.

முடிவுரை:

நாம் இந்த வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகளைப் பின்பற்றி உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தைக் குறைப்பதன் மூலம் நாம் உயர் இரத்த அழுத்தத்தால் ஏற்படும் பின்விளைவுகளை தடுக்கலாம்.

TOOL 5 OBSERVATIONAL CHECK LIST-ENGLISH

S.NO	ITEMS	YES	NO
Ι	BRISK WALKING		
	1. Does he/she stand erect and hold his/her head high, look		
	forward focussing eyes 5- 6 meters ahead with back		
	straight and shoulders relaxed?		
	2. Does he/she bend elbow 90° with hand loosely clenched,		
	swing arms without crossing centre line?		
	3. Does he/shelead with and transfer weight through his		
	/her heal?		
	4. Does he/she move hands and leg in opposition?		
	5. Does he/she lean forward to balance better, take smaller		
	steps?		
	6. Does he/she practice it for 30 minutes?		
II a	YOGA		
	1. Does he/she sit in sugasana over a mat or sheet, relax the		
	muscles of the body and become aware of his/her breath,		
	keep the spine erect and his/her head and neck straight		
	and eyes remain closed.		
	2. Does he/she let with right hand , fingers stretch and bend		
	his/herindex and middle fingers and place them on the		
	palm of his/her same hand (nasikamuthra).		
	3. Does he/she place the left hand in gnanamuthra. (hold the		
	left thumb and index finger together lightly and let the		
	other three remaining fingers remains extended. Place the		
	left hand on the left thigh in palm up position)		
	4. Does he/she place the right thumb on right nostril and the		
	tip of the ring finger against the other nostril and let the		
	thumb and ring finger of the right hand to close the		
	alternate nostrils as he/she breathe in.		

	5. Does he/she begin the exercise by blocking his/her left	
	nostril and breathe out with your right nostril.	
	6. Does he/she continue to block his/her left nostril and	
	breathe in through his/her right nostril.	
	7. Does he/she open his/her left nostril as he/she	
	simultaneously cover and block his/her right nostriland	
	breathe out slowly using the open, left nostril.	
	8. Does he/she go ahead and breathe in with his/her left	
	nostril that is open.	
	9. Does he/she close the left nostril and let the air move out	
	through his/her right nostril that he/shethen leave open.	
	10. Does he/she let the breath be slow and rhythmic and	
	complete 20 cycles.	
II b	1. Does he/shelie on his/her back without pillows with	
	his/her legs straight and comfortably apart? Let his/her	
	feet drop open and be relaxed, rest his/her arms at his/her	
	sides, palms facing up and close his/her eyes.	
	2. Does he/she breathe deeply and slowly through the	
	nostrils.	
	3. Does he/she allow his/her body to feel heavy on the	
	ground and let the whole body be relaxed.	
	4. Does he/she contract and relax every body part, organ,	
	and cell from the soles of his/her feet up to the crown of	
	his/her head,	
	5. Does he/sheStay in Shavasana for 10 minutes daily. To	
	exit the pose, he/she begin to deepen his/her breath,	
	wriggle his/her fingers and toes. Roll to his/her right side	
	and rest there for a moment. With an inhalation, gently	
	press himself/herself.	

III.	DASH DIET	
	1. Does he/she consume 7-8 servings (180-240g) of grains	
	daily?	
	2. Does he/she consume 4 - 5servings of vegetable daily?	
	3. Does he/she take 4 - 5 servings of fruits daily?	
	4. Does he/she consume 2 or less servings of lean meat	
	/poultry daily?	
	5. Does he/she consume less than 20-25g of nuts, legumes,	
	seeds per day? (150g/week)	
	6. Does he/she take < 15 ml of vegetable oils daily?	
	7. Does he/she take < 11g of sugar daily?	
	8. Does he/she take < 5 g of salt daily?	

TOOL 5 OBSERVATIONAL CHECK LIST-TAMIL

ഖ.எண்	பொருள்	ஆம்	இல்லை
Ι	துரித நடை		
	1. அவர் தலையை உயர்த்தி நிமிர்ந்து நின்று முதுகு		
	தண்டை நேராகவும் தோள்பட்டையை தளர்வாகவும்		
	வைத்து கண்களால் 5-6 மீட்டர் முன்னோக்கி		
	பார்க்கின்றாரா?		
	2. அவர் முழங்கையை 90ºமடக்கியும் கைகளை		
	தளர்வாக பாதி மூடிய நிலையிலும் வைத்திருக்கிறாரா -		
	?		
	3. அவர் குதிங்காலை முன்வைத்து, உடல் எடையை		
	குதிங்காலிலேயே செலுத்துகிறாரா?		
	4. அவர் கைகளை உடலின் நடுப்பகுதியின் குறுக்கே		
	வராமல் முன்னும் பின்னும் அசைத்து கைகளையும்		
	கால்களையும் எதிர்திசையில் அசைக்கிறாரா?		
	5. அவர் உடல் எடையை சமன் செய்ய முன்னோக்கி		
	சாயவதுடன சிறு சிறு அடி எடுத்து வைக்கிறாரா?		
	6. இப்பயிற்சியை 30 நிமிடங்கள் செய்கின்றாரா?		
II	யோகா		
	நாடிசுத்தி ப்ரணாயாமம்		
	1. அவர் பாய் (அ) விரிப்பின் மீது சுகாசனத்தில்		
	அமர்ந்து் முதுகுத்தண்டு, தலை மற்றும் கழுத்தை		
	நேராகவும், கண்களை மூடியும், உடல் தசைகளை		
	தளர்வாகவும் வைத்திருக்கின்றாரா?		
	2. அவர் இடது கையை ஞானமுத்திராவில்		
	வைத்திருக்கின்றாரா?		
	3. அவர் வலது கையை நாசிகாமுத்திராவில்		
	வைத்திருக்கின்றாரா?		
	நாசியின் மீதும், மோதிரவிரலை இடது நாசியின் மீதும்		
	வைத்து கட்டை விரலையும், மோகிா விரலையும்		
	கவாசிக்கவின் போகுடமாலி மாலி மூடுகின்மாா?		
	ാ. എംബ് ഇപ്വാവന്ത്രം ശ്വേസ് ക്ലോഗ്വാക്ക്രം വേണ്ണ്.		
	இடது நாசியை அடைத்துக்கொண்டு வலது நாசியின்		

	வழியாக மூச்சை வெளியே விடுகின்றாரா?	
6.	அவர் தொடர்ந்து இடது நாசியை அடைத்துக்கொண்டு வலது நாசியின் வழியாக மூச்சை	
	உள்ளழுக்கின்றாரா ?	
7.	அவர் இதையே மாறாக, வலது நாசியை அடைத்துக் கொண்டு இடது நாசியின் வழியாக மூச்சை வெளி விடுகின்றாரா?	
8.	அவர் பின்பு வலது நாசியை அடைத்துக் கொண்டு இடது நாசியின் வழியாக மூச்சை உள்ளிழுக்கின்றாரா ?	
9.	அவர் இடது நாசியை அடைத்துக்கொண்டு வலது நாசியின் வழியாக மூச்சை வெளிவிடுகின்றாரா?	
10.	அவர் தொடர்ந்து இதுபோல் 20 சுழற்சி வரை செய்கின்றாரா?	
சவா	சனா செய்முறை:	
1.	அவர் முதுகுத் தண்டுநேராக இருக்குமாறு கீழே தலையணையின்றி கண்களை மூடியவாறு படுத்து, இருகால்களையும் நேராக வசதியான இடைவெளியில் வைத்து, பாதங்கள் தளர்வாகவும் கைகளை உடலின் பக்கவாட்டிலும் வைத்து, உள்ளங்கை மேல்நோக்கி இருக்குமாறு படுத்திருக்கின்றாரா?	
2.	அவர் மெதுவாக ஆழ்ந்த மூச்சு எடுக்கின்றாரா?	
3.	அவர் உடலின் எடை முழுவதும் தரையில் இருப்பதாகவும் , உடல் முழுவதும் தளர்வான நிலையில் இருப்பதாகவும் உணர்கின்றாரா?	
4.	அவர் ஒவ்வொரு உள் வெளி சுவாசத்தின் போதும், உடல் தளர்ந்த நிலையில் இருப்பதாக உணர்கின்றாரா?	
5.	அவர் ஒவ்வொரு வெளி சுவாசத்தின் போதும் தனது பதற்றம், மன அழுத்தம், மனச்சோர்வு (ம) கவலை போன்றவை வெளியேருமாறு உணர்கின்றாரா?	
6.	அவர் ஒவ்வொரு உடல் உறுப்பையும் காலில் இருந்து தலைவரை மனக்கண்ணால் பார்த்து, எந்தெந்த உறுப்புகளை அவர் காண்கிறாரோ அவ்வுறுப்புகள் ஆரோக்கியமாகவும்,	

		தளர்ந்தநிலையிலும், இறுக்கமில்லாமலும் இருப்பதாக	
		உணர்கின்றாரர் ?	
	7.	அவர் தனது முகத்தை தளர்வாகவும், கண்களை	
		ஆழ்ந்த நிலையில் வைத்து, தனது உடலிலும் ,	
		மனதிலும் அமைதியை வரவழைக்கின்றாரா?	
	8.	அவர் தினமும் இந்த ஆசனத்தை 10 நிமிடம்	
		செய்கின்றாரா இந்த ஆசனத்தின் முடிவில் ஆழ்ந்து	
		சுவாசித்து, கால் கையின் விரல்களையும் ,	
		உடலையும் மெதுவாக அசைத்து பின் வலது பக்கம்	
		திரும்பி, ஒரு நொடி ஓய்வெடுத்து, பின்பு மூச்சை	
		உள்ளிழுத்தவாறு எழுந்து அமர்கின்றாரா?	
III.	சிறப்	ப்பு உணவுமுறை:	
	1.	அவர் தினமும் 180-240கி.க்குள் தானியங்களை	
		உட்கொள்கிறாரா ?	
	2.	அவர் தினமும் 400-500கி காய்கறிகளை	
		உட்கொள்கிறாரா ?	
	3.	அவர் தினமும் 400-500கி பழங்களை	
		உட்கொள்கிறாரா?	
	4.	அவர் தினமும் 100கி க்கு மிகாமல் மீன் /கோழி	
		இறைச்சி சாப்பிடுகிறாரா ?	
	5.	அவர் தினமும் 20-25கி கொட்டைகள் பருப்பு	
		வகைகள் விதைகளை எடுத்துக்கொள்கிறாரா ? (ஒரு	
		வார காலத்திற்குள் 150கி)	
	6.	அவர் தினமும் 15மிலி.க்கு மிகாமல் தாவரஎண்ணெய்	
	7	வருத்துக்கொள்கறாரா / வலர் சிசுமல் 11 சிச்சு மிச்சுலல் இனிப்படலாக	
	/.	அவா தானமும் பகு.க்கு மகாமல் இன்படி வகை	
	8	அவர் கினமும் உப்பின் அளவை 5கிக்கு மிகாமல்	
	0.	சோக்குக்கொள்கினாா ?	

SCORING OF LSMS PRACTICE

Sl.no	LSMS Practice	Bi weekly observation									Total ?					
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12			
1	Brisk Walking															
2	Yoga															
	Nodisuthi Pranayama															
	Shavana															
3	DASH diet															
	TOTAL															

TOOL6 RATING SCALE ON LEVEL OF SATISFACTION ON LIFESTYLE MODIFICATION STRATEGIES–ENGLISH

Blue print of rating scale to assess the level of satisfaction on practicing Life style modification strategies among hypertensive patients in experimental group.

S.NO.	CONTENT	ITEMS	TOTAL ITEMS	PERCENTAGE
1	LSMS	1-3	3	25
2	Effectiveness of LSMS	4-8	5	33
3	Investigator's attitude	9-12	4	42

Purpose: This rating scale is designed to assess the level of satisfaction of the participants. This is developed by the investigator for the same purpose. This is a 4 point scale with the score ranging from 4-1(Highly satisfied, satisfied, dissatisfied and highly dissatisfied).

Instruction:

There are 12 items below. Kindly read the items. Response extends from highly satisfied, satisfied, dissatisfied and highly dissatisfied. Put a tick mark against your answers. Describe your responses frankly. The responses will be kept confidential and used for research purpose only.

S. No	Items	Highly satisfied	Satisfied	Dissatisfied	Highly dissatisfied
1	I feel more comfortable in following the life cycle modification strategies				
2	I am able to follow all the instruction				
3	I like to follow it regularly				
4	It controls my Blood Pressure				
5	Experience reduction in symptoms of Blood Pressure				
6	I could spare time to do this				
7	It improved my well being				
8	It is at affordable cost				
9	The explanation about LSMS was clear				
10	All the doubts were cleared by the investigator				
11	Demonstration by investigator was easily understandable				
12	Throughout the procedure, the investigator completely guided me				

TOOL 6 RATING SCALE ON LEVEL OF SATISFACTION - TAMIL

✓ கீழே 12 வினாக்கள் கொடுக்கப்பட்டுள்ளன. அதை படியுங்கள். வினாக்களுக்கு உங்கள் பதில் மிகவும் திருப்திகரமானது, திருப்திகரமானது, அதிருப்திகரமானதுமற்றும் மிகவும் அதிருப்திகரமானது என்பனவற்றில் எதைத்தேர்ந்தெடுக்கிறீர்களோ அதனை (✓) அடையாளக் குறி மூலம் குறிப்பிடவும். உங்கள் பதில் உண்மையாக இருக்கட்டும்.

உங்கள் பதில் இரகசியமாக வைக்கப்பட்டு ஆராய்ச்சிக்காக மட்டுமே பயன்படுத்தப்படும்.

வரிசை.எண்	பொருளடக்கம்	மிகவும் திருப்திகரமானது	திருப்திகரமானது	அதிருப்திகரமானது	மிகவும் அதிருப்திகரமானது
1.	வாழ்க்கைநடைமுறைம				
	ாற்றம்				
2	குறித்தஉத்திகளைபின்				
Ζ.	பற்றுவதுஎன்க்கும்கவும				
	வசதுயாக இருக்காது. என்னால்				
3	ഖഞ്ഞെർക്കം ക്കിക്കണ				
5.	பும் பின்புக்குமுலகிக்கு				
	ான் நான்				
4.	இதைத்தொடர்ந்துபின்ப				
	ற்றவிரும்புகிறேன்.				
	இதுஎன்				
5.	இரத்தஅழுத்ததினைக்				
	கட்டுப்படுத்துகிறது.				
6	இரத்தஅழுத்தத்திற்கா				
0.	னஅறுகுறுகள சுறைவரை என்னால்				
	ത്തുവരുള്ളത്തിന്റെ				
7	உணரமுடியற்று. இகனைசெய்வகம்கான்				
<i>,.</i>	னால்				
	முடிந்தவரைநேரம்				
	ஒதுக்கமுடிகிறது.				
8.	இதுஎன்				
	உடல்நலத்தைமேம்படு				
0	த்திஉள்ளது.				
9.	യ്യക്ഷ്യ മാന് പ്രാംഗം പ				
	வலைமலுவானது.				
10	வாழகலகநடைமுறைம ாம்ம உக்கிகள்				
10.	பும்றியவிளக்கம்				
	எனக்குதெளிவாகவிளக்				
11.	கபட்டது.				
	அனைத்துசந்தேகங்க				
	ளும் ஆய்வாளரால்				
	தெளிவாகதீர்க்கப்பட்ட				
	து.				
12	ஆயவாளா பெய்யாகாட்டிய செய்யுக				
12.	சையதுகாட்டியசேயமு பையில் சிமிசுவம்				
	எளிகாகபரிந்துகொள்				
	അഥ് ഥ്രത്നെലിര്				
	இருந்தது.				
	செயல்முறையின்				
	போதுஆய்வாளர்				
	என்னைமுழுமையாகவ				
	ழிநடத்தினார்.			1	

TOOL 7 OPEN ENDED FEEDBACK QUESTIONNAIRE ON LSMS

- 1. Do you like this LSMS? If yes, give reasons.
- 2. Do you feel any discomfort to follow this LSMS?
- 3. To what extent do you continue to do this LSMS?
- 4. To what extent do you feel this LSMS is useful to you?

TOOL 7 OPEN ENDED FEEDBACK QUESTIONNAIRE ON LSMS -TAMIL

- நீங்கள் இந்த வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகளை விரும்புகிறீர்களர்? ஆம் எனில் காரணம் கூறவும்
- இந்த வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகளை கடைபிடிப்பதால் ஏதேனும் அசௌகரியத்தை உணர்கிறீர்களா?
- இந்த வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகளை எந்த அளவிற்கு தொடர்ந்து செய்ய விரும்புகிறீர்கள்?
- 4. இந்த வாழ்க்கை நடைமுறை மாற்ற உத்திகள் உங்களுக்கு எந்த அளவிற்கு உபயோகமாக இருக்கிறது என்று உணர்கிறீர்கள்?

APPENDIX-N

VALUES OF BIO PHYSIOLOGICAL PARAMETERS

> JNC 7(JAMA 2003) classification of hypertension for adults

BP CLASSIFICATION	SBP (mmHg)	DBP(mmHg)
Normal	<120	And <80
Pre hypertension	120-139	Or 80-89
Stage 1 Hypertension	140-159	Or 90-99
Stage2Hypertension	≥160	Or >100

2. BMI measurement:

Height measurement:

- > The subject stands erect with heel of the feet touching against the wall.
- The ruler is leveled with skull vault and the height is recorded to the nearest 0.5cm using an inch tape.

Weight Measurement:

The patient stands on a regularly calibrated bathroom weighing scale in light clothes and no shoes. Read nearest 100gm (0.1kg).

Example:

- ➢ Weight = 68kg, Height = 165cm (1.65m)
- > BMI = $68/(1.65)^2 = 24.98 \text{ Kg/m}^2$.

3. WHR measurement:

Waist circumference

> It is measured at the level of the umbilicus to the nearest 0.5cm.

- The subject stands erect with relaxed abdominal muscles, arms at the side, and feet together.
- > The measurement was taken at the end of a normal expiration.

4. Hip circumference

- It is measured at the point of greatest circumference around hips and buttocks to the nearest 0.5cm.
- > The subject was standing.
- Measurement taken with a flexible, non-stretchable tape in close contact with the skin, but without indenting the soft tissue.

BMI and WHR reference range based on NHLBI Obesity				
Education Initiative (2000)				

S.NO	VARIABLE	CATEGORY	REFERENCE RANGE
1	Body Mass	Underweight	< 18.5
	Index(BMI)	Normal range	18.5 - 24.9
		Overweight:	25 – 29.9
		Obesity	30–34.9
		Extreme obesity	>40.0
	Waist Waist–hip ratio (WHR)	Cut off point	$\leq 0.90 \text{ cm (M)}$ $\leq 0.85 \text{ cm (W)}$
	(

APPENDIX - O

WORK SCHEDULE

Weeks	Pretest	Observation to experimental group	Post test I	Post test II
1.	Control groupI	-	-	-
2.	Control- area II	-	-	-
3.	Control- area III	-	-	-
4.	Control- area IV	-	-	-
5.	Control- area v	-	-	-
6.	Control- area vi	-	-	-
7.	Control- area	-	-	-
	vii)			
8.	Control- area VIII)	-	-	-
9.	Experimental group-1	-	-	-
10.	Experimental group 2	-	-	-
11.	Experimental group 3	group-1(10 samples/week)		-
12.	Experimental group 4	group-2(10 samples/week)		-
13.	Experimental group 5	group-1,3(4 samples/day*5 days)	Control group I (10 samples/2 days)	-
14.	Experimental group 6	group-2, 4(4 samples/day*5 days)	Control group II (10 samples x 2 days)	-
15.	Experimental group 7	group-1,3,5(6 samples/day*5 days)	Control group III (10 samples x 2 days)	-
16.	Experimental group 8	group-2,4,6(6 samples/day*5 days)	Control group IV (10 samples/day x2 days)	-
17.	Experimental group 9	group-1,3,5,7(8 samples/day*5 days)	Control- area v (10 samples/ day x2 days)	-
18.	Experimental group 10	group-2,4,6,8(8 samples/day*5 days)	Control- area vi (10 samples/ day x2 days)	-
19.	Experimental group 11	group- 1,3,5,7,9(10 samples/day*5 days)	Control- area vii (10 samples/ day x2 days)	-

20.	Experimental group 12	group- 2,4,6,8,10(10 samples/day*5 days)	Control- area VIII (10 samples/ day x2 days)	-
21.	Experimental group 13	group-3,5,7,9,11 8-9sa	Experimental group-1 mples/day	-
22.	Experimental group 14	group- 4,6,8,10,12	Experimental group 2	-
23.	Experimental group 15	group-1, 5,7,9,11,13	Experimental group 3	-
24.	Experimental group 16	group- 2,,6,8,10,12,14 10 sa	mples/day Experimental group 4 mples/day	-
25.		group- 1,3,7,9,11,13,15	Experimental group 5	Control-I (10 samples/2
26.	-	group- 2,4,8,10,12,14,16	Experimental group 6	days) Control-II (10 samples/2
27.		16 sampl	es/day*5 days	days)
		1,3,5,9,11,13,15 16 sampl	es/day*5 days	(10 samples/2 days)
28.	-	group-2,4,6, 10,12,14,16	Experimental group 8	Control-IV (10 samples/2
29.	_	group-1,3,5,7,	Experimental group 9	days) Control-v
		,11,13,15 16 sampl	es/day*5 days	(10 samples/2 days)
30.	-	group- 2,4,6,8,12,14,16	Experimental group 10	Control-vi (10 samples/2
31		16 samples/day*5 days		days)
51.	-	1,3,5,7,9,,13,15	es/day*5 days	(10 samples/2 days)

32.	-	group-2,4,6,8,10 ,14,16	Experimental group 12	Control- VIII (10	
		16 sampl	es/day*5 days	days)	
33.	-	group- 3,5,7,9,11,15	Experimental group 13	Experiment al group-1	
			11-12 samples/day		
34.	-	group- 4,6,8,10,12,16	Experimental group 14	Experiment al group 2	
		11-	12samples/day*5 days		
35.	-	Group- 5,7,9,11,13,	Experimental group 15	Experiment al group 3	
			10 samples/day		
36.	-	group- 6,8,10,12,14,	Experimental group 16	Experiment al group 4	
		10 samples/day			
37.	-	group- 7,9,11,13,15		Experiment al group 5	
38.	-	group- 8,10,12,14,16		Experiment al group 6	
			8-9 samples/day	•	
39.	-	Group- 9,11,13,15		Experiment al group 7	
			7-8 samples/day		
40.	-	Group- 10,12,14,16		Experiment al group 8	
			7-8 samples/day		
41.	-	Group-11,13,15		Experiment al group 9	
			5-6 samples/day	1	

42.	-	Group-12,14,16		Experiment al group 10
			5-6 samples/day	·
43.	-	Group-13,15		Experiment al group 11
			4-5 samples/day	_
44.	-	Group-14,16		Experiment al group 12
			4-5 samples/day	·
45.	-	Group-15		Experiment al group 13
			2-3 samples/day	
46.	-	Group-16		Experiment al group 14
			2-3 samples/day	
47.	-			Experiment al group 15
48.	-			Experiment al group 16

APPENDIX - P

PHOTO DOCUMENTATION



Measuring Bp



Collection of data



Teaching LSMS



Audio Visual Aids for DASH diet


Demonstration of brisk walking



Demonstration of Shavana





Demonstration of Nodisuthi pranayama

ANTI PLAGIARISM REPORT



Urkund Analysis Result

Analysed Document: Submitted: Submitted By: Significance: CHAPTER 1 .docx (D27572518) 2017-04-26 10:46:00 mirthaasan@yahoo.co.in 0 %

Sources included in the report:

Instances where selected sources appear:

0



Urkund Analysis Result

Analysed Document: Submitted: Submitted By: Significance: CHAPTER II.docx (D27572519) 2017-04-26 10:46:00 mirthaasan@yahoo.co.in 0 %

Sources included in the report:

Instances where selected sources appear:

0



Urkund Analysis Result

Analysed Document: Submitted: Submitted By: Significance: CHAPTER III.docx (D27572521) 2017-04-26 10:46:00 mirthaasan@yahoo.co.in 0_mailto:mirthaasan@yahoo.co.in

Sources included in the report:

Instances where selected sources appear:

0

ANTI PLAGIARISM REPORT



Analysed Document: Submitted: Submitted By: Significance:

Urkund Analysis Result

Chapter IV.docx (D27572522) 2017-04-26 10:46:00 mirthaasan@yahoo.co.in 0 %

Sources included in the report:

Instances where selected sources appear:

0

URKUND

Urkund Analysis Result

Analysed Document: Submitted: Submitted By: Significance: CHAPTER V.docx (D27572517) 2017-04-26 10:46:00 mirthaasan@yahoo.co.in 0 %

Sources included in the report:

Instances where selected sources appear:

0

URKUND

Urkund Analysis Result

Analysed Document: Submitted: Submitted By: Significance:

K.T Selvi.docx (D27551297) 2017-04-25 19:22:00 mirthaasan@yahoo.co.in 0 %

Sources included in the report:

Instances where selected sources appear:

0